
- 1 - 

 
BROMSGROVE DISTRICT COUNCIL 

 
MEETING OF THE CABINET 

 
WEDNESDAY 1ST JULY 2009 AT 6.00 P.M. 

 
THE COUNCIL HOUSE, BURCOT LANE, BROMSGROVE 

 
MEMBERS: Councillors R. Hollingworth (Chairman), G. N. Denaro (Vice-

Chairman), Dr. D. W. P. Booth JP, J. T. Duddy, Mrs. J. Dyer M.B.E., 
Mrs. M. A. Sherrey JP, R. D. Smith, M. J. A. Webb and 
P. J. Whittaker 
 

 
 
 

AGENDA 
 

1. To receive apologies for absence  
 

2. Declarations of Interest  
 

3. To confirm the accuracy of the minutes of the meetings of the Cabinet held on 
3rd June 2009 (attached) and 24th June 2009 (to follow) (Pages 1 - 6) 
 

4. To receive the minutes of the meeting of the Overview Board held on 2nd 
June 2009 (Pages 7 - 12) 
 
(a) To receive and note the minutes 
(b) To consider any recommendations contained within the minutes  
 

5. Minutes of the meeting of the Audit Board held on 8th June 2009 (Pages 13 - 
14) 
 
(a) To receive and note the minutes 
(b) To consider any recommendations contained within the minutes 
  

6. Minutes of the meeting of the Joint Overview and Scrutiny Board held on 9th 
June 2009 (Pages 15 - 16) 
 
(a) To receive and note the minutes 
(b) To consider any recommendations contained within the minutes 



- 2 - 

  
7. Minutes of the meeting of the Performance Management Board held on 15th 

June 2009 (Pages 17 - 20) 
 
(a) To receive and note the minutes 
(b) To consider any recommendations contained within the minutes 
  

8. Town Centre - Update on Bus Station  
 

9. Revised Joint Waste Management Strategy (Pages 21 - 30) 
 

10. Travel Plan (Pages 31 - 50) 
 

11. Improvement Plan Exception Report (April 2009) (Pages 51 - 64) 
 

12. Improvement Plan 2009/2010 (Pages 65 - 114) 
 

13. To consider any other business, details of which have been notified to the 
Head of Legal, Equalities and Democratic Services prior to the 
commencement of the meeting and which the Chairman, by reason of special 
circumstances, considers to be of so urgent a nature that it cannot wait until 
the next meeting  
 

 K DICKS 
Chief Executive  

The Council House 
Burcot Lane 
BROMSGROVE 
Worcestershire 
B60 1AA 
 
22nd June 2009 
 



 

B R O M S G R O V E  D I S T R I C T  C O U N C I L 
 

MEETING OF THE CABINET 
 

WEDNESDAY, 3RD JUNE 2009 AT 6.00 P.M. 
 
 
 

PRESENT: Councillors R. Hollingworth (Chairman), G. N. Denaro (Vice-Chairman), 
Dr. D. W. P. Booth JP, J. T. Duddy, Mrs. M. A. Sherrey JP, R. D. Smith, 
M. J. A. Webb and P. J. Whittaker 
 

 Observers: Councillors D. L. Pardoe and C. B. Taylor  
 

 Officers: Mr. K. Dicks, Mr. T. Beirne, Mr. P. Street, Mr. H. Bennett, Mr. M. 
Bell, Mrs. C. Felton, Ms. J. Pickering, Ms. J. Pitman, Mr. J. Godwin, Mrs. 
D. Ibbitson and Ms. R. Cole.   

 
1/09 APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE  

 
An apology for absence was received from Councillor Mrs. J. Dyer M. B. E. 
 

2/09 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  
 
There were no declarations of interest. 
 

3/09 MINUTES  
 
The minutes of the meeting of the Cabinet held on 29th April 2009 were 
submitted. 
 
RESOLVED that the minutes be approved as a correct record. 
 

4/09 SCRUTINY BOARD  
 
The minutes of the meeting of the Scrutiny Board held on 28th April 2009 
were submitted.  
 
The Cabinet was in support of the recommendations relating to the reduction 
of air pollution by addressing the problem of stationary vehicles with running 
engines (Minute No 27/08), but queried how regular communication with taxi 
drivers and operators could be achieved.  
 
In relation to the recommendation relating to the implementation of a new bus 
station for Bromsgrove (Minute No 30/08), the Executive Director – 
Partnerships and Projects reported that some upgrading and improvements to 
the existing bus station were taking place in conjunction with the work on the 
toilet facilities. The County Council had previously indicated support for the 
undertaking of a multi modal study which would have included consideration 
of a new bus station. Unfortunately the study had not yet received approval 
from the County Council.  

Agenda Item 3

Page 1



Cabinet 
3rd June 2009 

 

 
It was reported that there was to be a meeting of the Town Centre Steering 
Group shortly and the Executive Director – Partnerships and Projects 
undertook to request the Town Centre Project Manager to raise the issue of 
the study together with the overuse of the Taxi rank at the bus station. 
 
RESOLVED: 
(a) that the recommendations contained at Minute No 27/08 be approved 

subject  to officers giving consideration as to how regular 
communication with taxi drivers and operators can be achieved 
effectively; 

(b) that further consideration of the issues relating to a new bus station be 
deferred and that an item be included on the Agenda for the next 
Cabinet to report the outcome of discussions to take place at the next 
meeting of the Town Centre Steering Group;  

(c) that the remainder of the minutes be noted.     
     
 

5/09 PERFORMANCE MANAGEMENT BOARD  
 
The minutes of the meeting of the Performance Management Board held on 
18th May 2009 were submitted. 
 
It was noted that as part of the Board’s consideration of the Customer First 
Strategy Review, concern had been expressed regarding the proposal within 
the action plan to eventually close the Cash Office at the Customer Service 
Centre.  
 
The Head of Finance reported that whilst it was likely the Cash Office in its 
existing form would be closed, there would still be the opportunity to make 
cash payments and that this could be through an automated facility with 
assistance being offered by staff where required. It was also reported that the 
proposed change to the existing arrangements would need to be the subject 
of a further report including an Equality Impact Assessment. 
 
RESOLVED that the minutes be noted and the recommendations contained 
at Minute No 6/09 be approved, subject to the discussion referred to above.
  
 

6/09 LOCAL STRATEGIC PARTNERSHIP  
 
The minutes of the meeting of the Local Strategic Partnership held on 7th April 
2009 were submitted. 
 
RESOLVED that the minutes be noted. 
 

7/09 EQUALITY AND DIVERSITY FORUM  
 
The minutes of the meeting of the Equality and Diversity Forum held on 9th 
April 2009 were submitted. It was noted that the Forum and the associated 

Page 2



Cabinet 
3rd June 2009 

 

Disabled Users Group were providing valuable assistance and feedback on 
services to the Authority. 
 
RESOLVED: 
(a) that the minutes be noted; and  
(b) that thanks be expressed to the members of the Forum for the work  

which they are undertaking. 
 
 

8/09 SHARED SERVICES BOARD  
 
The minutes of the meeting of the Shared Service Board held on 28th May 
2009 were submitted. 
 
RESOLVED that the minutes be noted. 
 

9/09 COMPREHENSIVE PERFORMANCE ASSESSMENT REPORT  
 
Consideration was given to a report on the outcome of the Comprehensive 
Performance Assessment. The report included the planned actions to address 
the recommendations made by the Audit Commission.  
 
During the discussion of this item the Assistant Chief Executive referred to the 
importance of Members gaining a full understanding of the new 
Comprehensive Area Assessment process. Training would be arranged on the 
new system and it was important that all Members attended.   
 
RESOLVED: 
(a) that the Council’s significant improvement in moving from a Poor rating 

to a Fair rating in two years be noted; 
(b) that the further improvement which is still required in order to deliver the 

Council’s vision of “working together to build a district where people are 
proud to live and work, through community leadership and excellent 
services”  be recognised; and  

(c) that the recommendations made by the Audit Commission be noted 
and that the actions being taken to address these be approved.  

 
10/09 CUSTOMER FIRST STRATEGY REVIEW  

 
The Cabinet considered a report on the proposed adoption of a new Customer 
Access Strategy to replace the existing Customer First Strategy. During the 
discussion of this item Members paid tribute to the improvements in the 
Council’s customer performance which had been achieved in particular at the 
Customer Service Centre but also within other areas of the Council. 
 
RESOLVED: 
(a) that the significant improvement in the Council’s customer performance 

over the last three years, in particular at the Customer Service Centre 
be noted; 

(b) that it be noted that whilst process times are generally much improved, 
customer satisfaction and staff satisfaction remain too low; 

Page 3



Cabinet 
3rd June 2009 

 

(c) that the proposed updated corporate customer standards be approved 
and that these be inserted into each service business plan and be 
published to customers later in the year; 

(d) that the recommendation contained in the Comprehensive Performance 
Assessment report that ”a culture of customer focus should be fully 
established at all levels within the Council” be noted; 

(e) that the Strategy’s priorities for the year ahead be approved, together 
with the detailed action plan to support the delivery of these priorities; 

(f) that the Strategy scorecard 2009/2010, including the proposed 
customer measures be approved and that the distance the Authority 
still requires to travel in order to become an excellent Council be 
recognised.        

 
11/09 PLANNING POLICY GUIDANCE (PPG17)  - OUTTURN  

 
The Cabinet considered a report on the operational implications arising from 
the PPG17 assessment in relation to the delivery of services within the Parks 
and Open Spaces section. The report sought to establish a set of key 
principles in respect of the planning, implementation, funding and delivery of 
the services affected by the review. 
 
There was detailed discussion of the recommendations contained within each 
section of the report relating to various types of open space within the district.  
 
RESOLVED: 
(a) that the recommended actions relating to Parks and Gardens  

contained within section 3.6 of the report be approved; 
(b) that the recommended actions relating to Amenity Green Spaces 

contained within section 3.7 of the report  be approved; 
(c) that the recommended actions relating to Provision for Children and 

Young People contained within section 3.8 of the report be approved; 
(d) that the comments in respect of the recommended actions relating to 

Outdoor Sports facilities contained within section 3.9 of the report be 
noted; 

(e) that the recommended actions relating to Allotments contained within 
section 3.10 of the report be approved; 

(f) that the recommended actions relating to Cemeteries and Churchyards 
contained within section 3.11 of the report be approved, but that the 
work to be  undertaken in respect of the first action also include the 
investigation of alternative possibilities such as cremation facilities; 

(g) that the recommended actions relating to Civic Space contained within 
section 3.12 of the report be approved; and 

(h) that in view of the significant volume of work to be undertaken over a 
period of time in relation to the implications arising from the PPG 17 
study, a Work Programme be produced for consideration at a future 
meeting.             

 
12/09 SPORTS HUB PROVISION  

 
Consideration was given to a report on the proposed allocation of capital 
funding relating to the provision of Sports Hubs within the district. It was noted 

Page 4



Cabinet 
3rd June 2009 

 

that the report was linked to the Playing Pitch Strategy review contained within 
the Planning Policy Guidance (PPG17) assessment. It was also noted that the 
proposed expenditure was already contained within the approved Capital 
Programme.  
 
Detailed consideration was given to the schemes within the report and it was  
 
RESOLVED: 
(a) that the proposed schemes and projects as listed in section 3.15 of the 

report be approved; 
(b) that officers be requested to review the sections of the PPG17 report 

which relate to Playing Pitches and Outdoor Sports Facilities and to 
develop appropriate action plans to address the issues contained 
therein prior to the 2010/2011 football season. The review should 
include where appropriate the inclusion of additional funding bids within 
the forthcoming business planning cycle and the review of the Medium 
Term Financial Plan; 

(c) that the introduction of a “Bromsgrove First” approach to the pitch 
allocation and booking system be deferred to enable further 
consideration to be given to the possibility of avoiding any detrimental 
impact on Teams within the district; and   

(d) that the officers be requested to report separately on the possibility of 
undertaking work to improve the facilities at Boleyn Road.     

 
13/09 HEALTH AND SAFETY ROLES AND RESPONSIBILITIES FOR ELECTED 

MEMBERS  
 
The Cabinet considered a report on the need to raise the awareness of 
Members of their role in relation to Health and Safety issues following the 
newly issued guidance from the Institution of Occupational Safety and Health 
(IOSH). During the discussion it was suggested that consideration be given to 
the possibility of listing Members’ statutory responsibilities, including Health 
and Safety, within the description of Members’ Roles and Responsibilities. 
 
RESOLVED: 
(a) that all Members be required to attend a mandatory training session 

based on the new IOSH guidance; 
(b) that Councillor R. D. Smith be appointed as the Council’s Corporate 

Health and Safety Champion; and  
(c) that in accordance with the guidance from IOSH, a section addressing 

Health and Safety considerations be included within the standard 
Cabinet report format.        

    
 

14/09 IMPROVEMENT PLAN EXCEPTION REPORT (MARCH 2009)  
 
Consideration was given to the Improvement Plan Exception Report for March 
2009, together with the corrective action being taken. 
 
 
 

Page 5



Cabinet 
3rd June 2009 

 

RESOLVED: 
(a) that the revisions to the Improvement Plan Exception Report together 

with the corrective actions being taken be noted and approved; and 
(b) that it be noted that for the 102 actions highlighted for March within the 

plan, 80.4 percent of the plan was on target (green), 3.9 percent was 
one month behind (amber) and 2 percent was over one month behind 
(red). In addition the actions which had been reprogrammed were listed 
in the report. 

 
15/09 LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972  

 
RESOLVED that under Section 100 I of the Local Government Act 1972, as 
amended, the public be excluded from the meeting during the consideration of 
the following minute on the grounds that it involves the likely disclosure of 
exempt information as defined in part 1 of Schedule 12A to the Act, as 
amended, the relevant paragraph of that part being as set out below and that 
it is in the public interest to do so. 
 
 Minute No    Paragraph 
   16/09         3     
  
 

16/09 SITE AT SHERWOOD ROAD  
 
Consideration was given to a report on land at Sherwood Road, Bromsgrove. 
Following discussion it was  
 
RESOLVED: 
(a) that the proposed assignment of the leasehold interest in the property 

situate at Sherwood Road, Bromsgrove be approved; 
(b) that that the proposal to enter into a conditional contract relating to the 

surrender of the existing lease and the grant of a long lease with a third 
party developer be approved and that this be on terms to be agreed by 
the Executive Director – Partnerships and Projects in consultation with 
the relevant Portfolio Holders and the Head of Legal, Equalities and 
Democratic Services and the Head of Finance; and 

(c) that the proposal to enter into a long lease with a third party developer 
be approved and that this be on terms to be agreed by the Executive 
Director – Partnerships and Projects in consultation with the relevant 
Portfolio Holders and the Head of Legal, Equalities and Democratic 
Services and the Head of Finance.  

 
(During the consideration of this item there was a short adjournment to 
enable the Monitoring Officer to advise Members). 

 
The meeting closed at 8.20 p.m. 

 
 
 
 

Chairman 

Page 6



 

B R O M S G R O V E  D I S T R I C T  C O U N C I L 
 
 

MEETING OF THE OVERVIEW BOARD 
 

TUESDAY, 2ND JUNE 2009 
AT 6.00 P.M. 

 
 

PRESENT: Councillors Mrs. M. Bunker (not present during Minutes Nos. 10/09 to 
13/09), S. R. Colella, Mrs. R. L. Dent (not present during Minutes Nos. 
10/09 to 13/09), Mrs. J. M. L. A. Griffiths, Mrs. C. J. Spencer and 
L. J. Turner 
 

 Observers: Councillor D. L. Pardoe 
 

 Officers: Mr. T. Beirne, Mr. P. Street, Mr. M. Bell, Mr. J. Godwin, 
Mrs. S. Sellers and Mr. A. C. Stephens 
 

 
1/09 ELECTION OF CHAIRMAN  

 
RESOLVED that Councillor S. R. Colella be elected Chairman of the Board for 
the ensuing municipal year. 
 

2/09 ELECTION OF VICE-CHAIRMAN  
 
RESOLVED that Councillor Mrs. M. Bunker be elected Vice-Chairman of the 
Board for the ensuing municipal year. 
 

3/09 APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE  
 
No apologies for absence were received. 
 

4/09 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  
 
Councillor Mrs. J. M. L. A. Griffiths declared a personal interest in Minute No. 
9/09 (Item 9 on the Agenda) in respect of the discussions as part of the Sports 
Hub Provision in that the Alvechurch Lions Football Club play on land owned 
by Alvechurch Parish Council, of which she is a Member. 
 

5/09 MINUTES  
 
The minutes of the meeting of the Overview Board held on 31st March 2009 
were submitted. 
 
RESOLVED that the minutes be approved as a correct record. 
 

6/09 CIVIL PARKING ENFORCEMENT  
 
The Head of Street Scene and Community addressed the meeting and 
informed Members that he would be submitting a report to Cabinet at the 

Agenda Item 4

Page 7



Overview Board 
2nd June 2009 

 

 

meeting to be held on 29th July 2009 which would deal with issues relating to 
Civil Parking Enforcement. 
 
Mr. Bell explained that there was a detailed and complicated process which 
had to be followed before Civil Parking Enforcement could be implemented, 
but added that the new system was anticipated to be introduced in conjunction 
with the regeneration proposals for Bromsgrove Town Centre.  He stated that 
there were a number of issues which needed to be clarified with 
Worcestershire County Council which would, in turn, be reported to Members 
during the preparation and implementation processes. 
 
Members of the Board expressed their concerns with the reasons for the 
Council having to introduce Civil Parking Enforcement but acknowledged that, 
in due course, there were benefits in terms of the parking pricing policy, the 
income which could be generated and the effects on car parking in general 
within the town centre. 
 
RESOLVED that a draft copy of the report to be considered by Cabinet at its 
meeting to be held on 29th July 2009 be submitted to the next meeting of the 
Board on 7th July 2009 in order that: 
 
(a) Members can be informed further about the Civil Parking Enforcement 

requirements and the proposals to be considered; and 

(b) the comments of the Board on the draft report be forwarded to the 
Cabinet prior to making a decision. 

 
7/09 OLDER PEOPLE TASK GROUP - UPDATE  

 
At the invitation of the Chairman, Councillor Mrs. M. Bunker addressed the 
meeting and updated Members on the work of the Older People Task Group. 
 
Councillor Mrs. Bunker stated that the Task Group had held only one meeting 
to date, on 12th May 2009 at which Members of the Group identified areas 
within their terms of reference which they wished the officers to investigate 
and research ahead of the next Task Group meeting.  She added that, in 
order to give officers sufficient time to research the large subject area the 
Task Group covered, the next meeting would take place at the end of June 
2009. 
 
From the meeting of the Task Group held on 12th May 2009, 
recommendations were made to the Board in respect of the Council's 
involvement in the promotion of National Older People's Day on 1st October 
2009. 
 
The Board discussed the information communicated by Councillor Mrs. 
Bunker and considered the recommendations made by the Task Group. 
 
RECOMMENDED: 
(a) that the Cabinet approve the promotion of the National Older People’s 

Day on 1st October 2009 throughout the Council and via the Council’s 
Communications Plan; and 

Page 8



Overview Board 
2nd June 2009 

 

 

(b) that the Older People Task Group be authorised to oversee the 
promotion exercise to ensure a coordinated approach. 

 
8/09 ADDITIONAL TASK GROUP MEMBER - OLDER PEOPLE TASK GROUP  

 
The Board considered an additional membership form which had been 
completed for the Older People Task Group from Councillor S. R. Colella. 
 
In considering the report, the Board were informed that, in relation to the size 
of Task Groups, the general rule was for between three and a maximum of 
seven Members in order to be able to carry out an effective scrutiny 
investigation.  It was explained that this additional request would result in 
there being seven Members on the Older People Task Group. 
 
RESOLVED that Councillor S. R. Colella be approved as an additional 
Member on the Older People Task Group. 
 

9/09 PPG17 OUT-TURN / SPORTS HUB PROVISION  
 
The Deputy Head of Street Scene and Community introduced the two reports 
to be considered by the Cabinet at its meeting to be held on 3rd June 2009. 
 
(i) PPG17 Out-turn 

 
Mr. Godwin stated that the report detailed work undertaken by the 
Local Development Framework Working Party which had considered a 
report on the findings of the Open Space, Recreation and Sports Needs 
Study.  He stated that the initial study had been undertaken by 
Planning and Environment Services to assist Street Scene and 
Community Services in the development of long term strategies in 
relation to open space, sport and recreation within the district. 
 
Mr. Godwin reported that the study had been undertaken in accordance 
with Planning Policy Guidance 17 (PPG17) and had covered ten 
categories of open space, sport and recreation facilities throughout the 
district, and set out the recommended quality and accessibility 
standards in respect of each category.  The study was therefore to be 
used to help to ensure there is adequate provision of such open space 
and facilities. 
 
Members then asked Mr. Godwin a number of questions in respect of 
some of the key areas / priorities identified within the report, including 
Parks and Gardens, Outdoor Sports Facilities and Allotments. 
 
RESOLVED: 
(a) that the recommendations contained within the report to Cabinet 

at its meeting to be held on 3rd June 2009 be noted; and 

(b) that the recommendations made by Cabinet on 3rd June 2009 in 
respect of the report be referred back to the Board in 12 months' 
 

Page 9



Overview Board 
2nd June 2009 

 

 

time in order for Members of the Board to assess the delivery of 
services in respect of PPG17. 

 
(ii) Sports Hub Provision 

 
Mr. Godwin explained that the report in respect of the Sports Hub 
Provision was closely linked to the playing pitch strategy and outdoor 
sports facilities review contained within the PPG17 Out-turn report.  It 
dealt with the proposed allocation of the Capital funding in relation to 
the Provision of Sports Hubs which formed part of the Council's 
Forward Capital Programme. 
 
He stated that the report was essentially concerned with football pitch 
provision because the evidence from the PPG17 Out-turn report 
indicated that rugby and cricket clubs tend to benefit from better 
organisational structures and improved facilities in general.  As a result, 
the Sports Hub Provision report was a starting point for the project as a 
whole with a view to improving quality of pitches throughout the district. 
 
He summarised each of the scheme / project areas, stating how each 
area was considered justified under the aims of PPG17 and explained 
the reasons for the budget provision to each one.  In addition, it was 
noted that the funding would not be provided without formal 
undertakings from the sports clubs referred to in the report agreeing to 
carry out the improvement works for which the funding has been. 
 
Members questioned Mr. Godwin on the works to be carried out and 
the issues surrounding the provision of sporting facilities in general.  
The Board were also keen to note that, as well as the anticipated 
creation of additional football and other sports clubs throughout the 
district, the Council were also promoting the health issues to younger 
people to be involved in organised sporting events.  Furthermore, 
Members were encouraged by the opportunities the proposals may 
have in respect of gaining favourable publicity that goes with the 
provision of sporting facilities. 
 
RESOLVED: 
(a) that the Board welcomes and supports the proposals contained 

within the report to Cabinet at its meeting to be held on 3rd June 
2009; and 

(b) that the Board expresses its appreciation of the work that has 
gone into the preparation of the report, and encourage officers 
and Members to promote and publicise the improvements which 
will be made to sports facilities within the district. 

 
10/09 FORTHCOMING CABINET DECISIONS  

 
The Executive Director - Services addressed the Board and updated Members 
on the following matters:- 
 

Page 10



Overview Board 
2nd June 2009 

 

 

(a) Arts Services Strategy 
 
Mr. Beirne informed the Board that the current Arts Services Strategy 
would operate until the end of this year.  He added that the Arts and 
Events Strategy for 2010/11 to 2013/14 was anticipated to be 
considered by Cabinet in December 2009 and would provide an 
overarching strategy for the future focussing on community events 
alongside those promoted by the Council. 

 
(b) Contract and Procedure Rules 

 
Mr. Beirne reported that the current Contract and Procedure Rules had 
been agreed by Council and were formally incorporated within the 
Council's Constitution.  He stated that the update to the Contract and 
Procedure Rules which would be considered by Cabinet in April 2010 
would take into account the work undertaken within the Financial 
Services Department during the financial year and would be updated to 
reflect the need for increased competition, sustainability and equality 
and diversity considerations. 

 
(c) Council House Accommodation 

 
Mr. Beirne informed the Board that preparatory work was on-going in 
advance of the decision to be made on any new Council House 
accommodation.  He explained that whilst a new site had not yet been 
identified, an audit of requirements and facilities had already been 
conducted, together with determining the amount of office and storage 
space that would be required. 
 
However, he added that it was still too early to give definite details due 
to the timescales involved, changes in working practices and potential 
sharing arrangements with partners and other agencies. 

 
11/09 FORWARD PLAN OF KEY DECISIONS  

 
Members of the Board gave consideration to the Forward Plan (for 1st June to 
30th September 2009) which referred to the key and non-key decisions due to 
be taken by the Cabinet over the period covered by the Plan. 
 
The Chairman questioned whether the Board might find it useful to examine 
the Local Neighbourhood Partnerships in the light of item no. 18 and the 
proposals relating thereto.  However, it was suggested that an investigation 
into the two Local Neighbourhood Partnerships which had already been 
established in Alvechurch and Rubery would not fall within the terms of 
reference for the Overview Board and that, if such a request were to be 
received, it would be forwarded to the Scrutiny Board for consideration. 
 
RESOLVED that the Forward Plan of key and non-key decisions due to be 
made during the period 1st June to 30th September 2009 be noted. 
 

Page 11



Overview Board 
2nd June 2009 

 

 

12/09 ANTICIPATED REPORTS DUE TO BE CONSIDERED BY THE CABINET 
BETWEEN OCTOBER 2009 AND JUNE 2010  
 
Consideration was given to the list of anticipated reports within each service 
area which were due to be considered by the Cabinet between October 2009 
and June 2010. 
 
RESOLVED that the list of anticipated reports to be considered by Cabinet 
between October 2009 and June 2010 be noted. 
 

13/09 WORK PROGRAMME  
 
Members considered the items listed within the Work Programme for the 
Board. 
 
RESOLVED that the Overview Board's Work Programme be noted and 
updated as necessary. 
 
 

The meeting closed at 8.05 p.m. 
 
 
 
 

Chairman 

Page 12



B R O M S G R O V E  D I S T R I C T  C O U N C I L 
 

MEETING OF THE AUDIT BOARD 
 

MONDAY, 8TH JUNE 2009 AT 6.00 P.M. 
 
 

PRESENT: Councillors D. Hancox, Ms. H. J. Jones, B. Lewis F.CMI, S. R. Peters, 
C. R. Scurrell and E. C. Tibby 
 

 Observers: Councillor G. N. Denaro (Portfolio Holder for Resources) and 
Councillor D. L. Pardoe 
 

 Officers: Ms. J. Pickering and Ms. P. Ross 
 
 

1/09 ELECTION OF CHAIRMAN  
 
RESOLVED that Councillor S. R. Peters be elected Chairman of the Board for 
the ensuing municipal year. 
 

2/09 ELECTION OF VICE-CHAIRMAN  
 
RESOLVED that Councillor B. Lewis F.CMI be elected Vice-Chairman for the 
ensuing municipal year. 
 

3/09 APOLOGIES  
 
No apologies for absence were received.  
 

4/09 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  
 
No declarations of interest were received. 
 

5/09 MINUTES  
 
The minutes of the meeting of the Audit Board held on 16th March 2009 were 
submitted. 
 
RESOLVED that the minutes be approved as a correct record.  
 

6/09 INTERNAL AUDIT PERFORMANCE AND WORKLOAD - QUARTER 4  
 
Consideration was given to a report that provided a summary of the current 
performance and workload of the Internal Audit Section.  The Head of 
Financial Services provided a number of updates on the current status to date 
and gave a brief explanation on the timescales, procedures and the Audit 
Commission criteria followed to conduct an Audit Review.  The Head of 
Financial Services responded to questions from Members and clarified that a 
joint model of delivering Internal Audit services across Worcestershire was 
being addressed as part of the Worcestershire Enhanced Two Tier (WETT) 

Agenda Item 5

Page 13



Audit Board 
8th June 2009 

 

Programme.  This would include a review of best practice across the  Councils 
within the scheme.    
 
RESOLVED: 
(a) that the Head of Financial Services be tasked to present the following 
 completed Audit Reviews to the Audit Board meeting in September 
 2009:- 

• ICT  Services (including Helpdesk) 
• Payroll  

(b) that the current status and work completed on the 2008/2009 Audit 
Plan be noted and approved; and 

(c) that the work completed by the Internal Audit Section to March 2009 be 
noted. 

 
7/09 RISK MANAGEMENT TRACKER QUARTER 4  

 
Members considered a report which presented an end of year overview of 
Actions/Improvements as detailed in the Corporate and business area risk 
registers for the period 1st April 2008 to 31st March 2009.  The Head of 
Financial Services highlighted the comparison of Internal Audit’s predicted 
position rating (based on the number of Actions/Improvements completed in 
the first half of the year) with the actual end of year rating.  Members were 
informed that for each business area the actual was the same or better than 
predicted. 
 
Members requested that the Head of Financial Services be tasked to present 
the Financial Services risk register to the Audit Board meeting in September 
2009. 
 
RESOLVED that the progress to date against the Corporate and all business 
area risk register actions for the period 1st April 2008 to 31st March 2009, 
Quarter 4, be noted. 
 

The meeting closed at 6.30 p.m. 
 
 
 
 

Chairman 

Page 14



 

B R O M S G R O V E  D I S T R I C T  C O U N C I L 
 

MEETING OF THE JOINT OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY BOARD 
 

TUESDAY, 9TH JUNE 2009 AT 6.00 P.M. 
 
 

PRESENT: Councillors A. N. Blagg, Mrs. M. Bunker, S. R. Colella, R. J. Deeming, 
Mrs. R. L. Dent, B. Lewis F.CMI, D. L. Pardoe, Mrs. C. J. Spencer, 
C. B. Taylor, C. J. Tidmarsh and L. J. Turner 
 

 Invitees:  Sarah Campkin 
 
Observers:  Councillor P. M. McDonald 
 

 Officers: Mrs. C. Felton, Mrs. S. Sellers and Ms. P. Ross 
 
 

1/09 ELECTION OF CHAIRMAN  
 
RESOLVED that Councillor S. R. Collella be elected Chairman of the Board 
for the ensuing municipal year. 
 

2/09 ELECTION OF VICE-CHAIRMAN  
 
RESOLVED that Councillor D. L. Pardoe be elected Vice-Chairman of the 
Board for the ensuing municipal year. 
 

3/09 APOLOGIES  
 
An apology for absence was received from Councillor Mrs. J. M. L. A. Griffiths. 
 

4/09 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  
 
No declarations of interest or whipping arrangements were received. 
 

5/09 PETITION ON HOT FOOD TAKE AWAYS  
 
Members were asked to receive and consider a petition received from 
residents and shopkeepers within the Rubery area.  The petition highlighted 
issues around late night opening of hot food take away establishments, 
including an increase in litter, crime and disorder and anti-social behaviour. 
 
The Chairman welcomed Sarah Campkin, a shop owner in Rubery High Street 
to the meeting.  Ms. Campkin informed the Board that the petition continued to 
be signed by residents with a further 1,000 signatures added.  Ms. Campkin 
explained that residents and shopkeepers had expressed concerns that 
currently 14 out of 83 shops on the High Street were hot food takeaways with 
planning applications for 4 more hot food takeaways to be submitted to 
Bromsgrove District Council.  Residents and shop owners were concerned 
that the late night opening of hot food takeaways was encouraging a night 

Agenda Item 6

Page 15



Joint Overview and Scrutiny Board 
9th June 2009 

 

time culture in a village environment.  The Police had been made aware of 
concerns and issues such as windows being smashed and  shopkeepers 
having to clean up debris and sanitise the area outside their shop premises.  
Ms Campkin also expressed concern that letters and a petition she had 
personally handed in to Bromsgrove District Council had been lost. The 
Monitoring Officer informed Ms. Campkin that she would receive a full 
explanation as to what had happened to the petition after the Council had 
received it.  Ms. Campkin also invited Members to consider whether 
Bromsgrove District Council could adopt a moratorium on opening any more 
hot food takeaways.  She stated that other Local Councils had done so for 
example with only 1 in 20 premises or a total of 6% of retail outlets being used 
as hot food takeaway establishments. 
 
The Monitoring Officer briefly informed Ms. Campkin of the role of the Board.  
In summary, the Board could not scrutinise regulatory committees or 
regulations; it’s role was to scrutinise and investigate the available options for 
future direction in policy review and development and make any relevant 
recommendations to the specific service areas. 
 
At the Chairman’s discretion, Councillor P. M. McDonald, Ward Member for 
Waseley, spoke in favour of the petition and raised concerns about recent 
planning applications and planning processes.  He also expressed concern 
about a lack of enforcement resources to tackle hot food takeaways who were 
in breach of their licence by opening until 2:00am.   
 
Following further discussion and questions from Members, the Senior Solicitor 
informed the Chairman that concerns and issues around hot food takeaways 
had been discussed during a recent meeting of the Scrutiny Board.  Councillor 
C. B. Taylor informed the meeting that officers had been tasked to scope and 
provide further information on other authorities’ policy guidelines on hot food 
takeaway stores.  The Chairman invited Ms. Campkin to attend the next 
meeting of the Scrutiny Board at which officers would provide updates. 
 
RESOLVED: 
(a)  that, at the next meeting of the Scrutiny Board, the Board considers 

 the following issues on hot food takeaways, as discussed by the Joint 
 Overview and Scrutiny Board, namely: Litter, Enforcement and Crime 
 and Disorder; and  

(b)  that the Portfolio Holder for Economic Development be invited to attend 
 the next meeting of the Scrutiny Board with regards to encouraging a
 wider range of retail shops in Rubery and throughout the District.  

 
  
 

The meeting closed at 7.50 p.m. 
 
 
 

Chairman 

Page 16



 

B R O M S G R O V E  D I S T R I C T  C O U N C I L 
 

MEETING OF THE PERFORMANCE MANAGEMENT BOARD 
 

MONDAY, 15TH JUNE 2009 AT 6.00 P.M. 
 
 
 

PRESENT: Councillors Mrs. M. Bunker (Vice-Chairman in the Chair), S. R. Colella, 
Mrs. J. M. L. A. Griffiths and Ms. H. J. Jones 
 

 Observers:  Councillor G. N. Denaro 
 

 Officers: Mr. T. Beirne, Mr. H. Bennett and Ms. R. Cole   
 

12/09 APOLOGIES  
 
Apologies for absence were received from Councillors Mrs. A. E. Doyle and C. 
B. Taylor. 
 

13/09 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  
 
There were no declarations of interest. 
 

14/09 MINUTES  
 
The minutes of the meeting of the Performance Management Board held on 
18th May 2009 were submitted. The Assistant Chief Executive undertook to 
circulate members with information requested in minute 7/09 (c) and (d). 
 
RESOLVED that the minutes be approved as a correct record. 
 

15/09 PERFORMANCE REPORT (APRIL 2009)  
 
The Board considered a report on the Council’s performance at 30th April 
2009. 
 
During the discussion Members raised the issue of attendance at the Dolphin 
Centre and queried whether enough user information was available to officers. 
Higher quality and more detailed user information would enable targeted 
campaigns to be undertaken and particular groups to be reached. It was 
reported that whilst the spatial project could assist partially with this it was 
likely that a budget bid may be made in respect of specialist software which 
would enable more detailed information to be obtained.  In addition it was 
stated that the target may require further consideration. 
 
Members queried whether the new target of 10 days for the payment of 
invoices was achievable. It was noted that Value for Money and Procurement 
was increasingly important and that this would be included as part of the 
integrated Finance and Performance report.  
 

Agenda Item 7

Page 17



Performance Management Board 
15th June 2009 

 

There was also discussion on the issue of Shared Services and it was felt it 
would be helpful for a highlight report on progress with this project to be 
considered regularly by the Board, on a similar basis to that adopted 
previously in respect of the Spatial Project.  
 
RESOLVED: 
(a) that it be noted that 52% of performance indicators were stable or 

improving; 
(b) that it be noted that 50% of performance indicators which have a target 

were meeting target as at the month end and were projected to meet 
their target at the year end; 

(c) that the performance figures for April 2009 as set out in Appendix 2 be 
noted; 

(d) that the particular areas of improvement as set out in section 3.5 of the 
report be noted; 

(e) that the particular areas of concern as set out in section 3.6 of the 
report be noted; and 

(f) that a highlight report on progress with the Shared Services project be 
submitted to the Board on a regular basis.  

 
RECOMMENDED: 
(a) that in respect of the Dolphin Centre usage figures, the Portfolio Holder 

be requested to work with the Deputy Head of Street Scene and 
Community to consider the target and also the potential financial impact 
of any changes; 

(b) that with regard to the payment of invoices within 10 days, the Portfolio 
Holder be requested to discuss with the Head of Financial Services 
whether this is a realistic target.       

 
16/09 SICKNESS ABSENCE PERFORMANCE UPDATE  

 
The Board considered a report on the performance in relation to sickness 
absence as at 30th April 2009. The Portfolio Holder for Resources and the 
Executive Director - Services reported on the measures which were being 
taken to address this issue and answered questions from Members. It was 
noted in particular that additional training was being given to managers in 
undertaking return to work interviews and managing sickness. 
 
Members requested information on short term and long term absences and in 
particular the effect of “stripping out” from the figures short term absences 
which go on to become long term absences. 
 
RESOLVED that the report be noted and a further report be submitted at the 
end of the quarter covering all of the actions taken in relation to sickness 
absence, including the figures referred to above.  
 

17/09 COMPREHENSIVE PERFORMANCE ASSESSMENT REPORT  
 
The Board considered a report on the Comprehensive Performance 
Assessment (CPA), including the recommendations made by the Audit 
Commission and the planned actions to address these.   

Page 18



Performance Management Board 
15th June 2009 

 

 
Whilst it was appreciated that there was still a need to move towards 
becoming an excellent Council, Members acknowledged the work undertaken 
by both officers and Members to enable the Council to progress from poor to 
fair in less than two years.  
 
The Assistant Chief Executive reported that he felt it would be a useful 
exercise for the Board to visit two Councils who had progressed from weak to 
excellent in a short time period, in order to learn from their experiences.  
 
The importance of understanding the Comprehensive Area Assessment 
regime was also discussed and it was confirmed a Member Briefing on this 
would take place on 24th September 2009.   
 
RESOLVED: 
(a) that the significant improvement in the Council’s CPA rating from poor 

to fair in less than two years be noted; 
(b) that it be recognised that fair is an average rating and that as the 

Council’s vision remains ”working together to build a district where 
people are proud to live and work, through community leadership and 
excellent services”, there is still a considerable way to go in order to 
deliver this vision; 

(c) that the recommendations made by the Audit Commission together with 
the actions being taken to address these be noted.      

 
18/09 IMPROVEMENT PLAN EXCEPTION REPORT (APRIL 2009)  

 
Consideration was given to the Improvement Plan Exception Report for April 
2009.  
 
RESOLVED: 
(a) that the revisions to the Improvement Plan Exception Report together 

with the corrective actions being taken be approved; 
(b) that it be noted that for the 93 actions highlighted for April within the 

plan 76.3% of the Improvement Plan was on target (green), 5.4% was 
one month behind (amber) and 3.2% was over one month behind (red). 
The actions which had been reprogrammed with approval reflected the 
reprogramming of the town centre actions as a result of issues relating 
to Parkside and Network Rail, together with the reprogramming of 
Human Resource actions.     

 
19/09 WORK PROGRAMME 2009/2010  

 
Consideration was given to a report on the Board’s proposed work programme 
for 2009/2010.  
 
RESOLVED that the work programme be approved, subject to the inclusion of 
a report to the August meeting on a possible visit to two Councils who had 
moved from a poor to excellent rating, as referred to in minute 17/09.  
 
 

Page 19



Performance Management Board 
15th June 2009 

 

The meeting closed at 7.25 p.m. 
 
 
 
 

Chairman 

Page 20



BROMSGROVE DISTRICT COUNCIL 
 

CABINET 
 

1ST JULY 2009 
 
 
REVISED JOINT MUNICIPAL WASTE MANAGEMENT STRATEGY 
 
Responsible Portfolio Holder  Councillor Mrs. M. A. Sherrey JP 
Responsible Head of Service Head of Street Scene and Community 
 
1.  SUMMARY 
 
1.1 This report updates Members on progress of the Joint Municipal Waste 

Resource Management Forum in revising the Joint Municipal Waste 
Management Strategy.   

 
2. RECOMMENDATION  
 
2.1 That the Cabinet, subject to modifications made following public 

consultation, endorses the strategy.  
 
3. BACKGROUND 
 
3.1 The Joint Municipal Waste Management Strategy for Herefordshire and 

Worcestershire was developed by the Joint Waste Resource 
Management Forum. It was adopted by all the County and District 
Councils within the two counties in 2004. This strategy set down for the 
first time how all the Councils would work together in a coordinated 
manner to reduce the amount of waste being land-filled. 

 
3.2 The present strategy, “Managing waste for a brighter future” was 

developed at a time when the amount of municipal waste collected and 
disposed of was increasing year on year. The strategy was founded on 
six key principles from which emanated eighteen key policies and eight 
specific targets. Applying the waste hierarchy, the strategy focused on 
restricting waste growth, increasing recycling and composting and 
reducing the amount of waste treated and ultimately disposed of to land-
fill. The uppermost concern in producing this strategy was to meet 
restrictions on land-filling of municipal waste introduced under the 
Landfill Allowance Trading Scheme. Substantial financial penalties are 
incurred if restrictions are exceeded. 

 
3.3  An integrated collection and disposal system known as the “Vision for 

Waste Collection” was central to future joint working. In this system, 
collection authorities would collect comingled dry recyclables and 
residual refuse from each household on alternate weeks. Comingled dry 
recyclables will be processed in an automated recycling facility, 
Envirosort, currently under construction at Norton near Worcester. It was 

Agenda Item 9

Page 21



planned that residual waste would be treated using an autoclave process 
capable of reducing its bulk and producing a usable fibre by-product.  
Planning permission was gained for autoclave plants at Hartlebury and 
Madley but it has not proved possible to conclude a satisfactory 
contractual arrangement to construct them. 

 
3.4 This Council’s recycling and waste management performance has 

improved steadily each year since we introduced district wide kerbside 
recycling and green garden waste collections in 2004. Our current 
recycling rate is forecast at almost 43% this year and the amount of 
residual waste we collect is reducing. Other Councils in Herefordshire 
and Worcestershire have also made substantial improvements which 
means that levels of municipal waste across the two Counties have 
begun to fall in recent years. Significant issues remain however, 
especially in relation to treatment and disposal of residual waste to meet 
future restrictions on land-filling. 

 
3.5 The original strategy contained a commitment to regular formal review on 

a three yearly basis recognising the dynamic nature of both waste 
management legislation and technology. The Joint Waste Resource 
Management Forum commenced its review of the strategy in 2006 which 
has taken longer than originally anticipated due to delays in the refresh 
of overarching national government strategy. 

 
3.6 Since the original strategy was developed and adopted, government has 

refreshed national waste strategy with the publication of Waste Strategy 
for England 2007. This focuses much more on the contribution made by 
waste collection, treatment and disposal to climate change. It also set 
out to break the link between economic growth and the growth in waste 
production, by seeing waste as a resource from which value can be 
derived. Targets for recycling, diversion of waste from land fill and 
recovery of value from waste set out in Waste Strategy for England are 
now more demanding than those established previously. The draft 
revised joint strategy takes on board this revised national position. 

3.7 Since 2004, the issue of climate change has become of increasing 
concern and importance. Councils in Herefordshire and Worcestershire 
have adopted robust policies and strategies to meet obligations and 
targets placed upon them to contribute towards reducing their emissions 
of greenhouse gases and to mitigating the effects of climate change. 
New National Indicators require councils to measure their performance 
in relation to greenhouse gas emissions and adapting to climate change.  

3.8 Statutory Guidance has been issued by central government on the 
production of joint municipal waste management strategies subsequent 
to the adoption of our original joint strategy. These strategies have also 
become subject to assessment in accordance with Strategic 
Environmental Impact Assessment legislation. These requirements have 
meant that it has been necessary to change the format of the strategy, 
which is also of considerably greater size. 

Page 22



3.9 The draft revised strategy now comprises a Headline Strategy and a 
series of detailed supporting Annexes as detailed within the appendices.  
Please note that this have not yet been finalised.  

 A full copy of the Strategy is available in the Member’s Room or 
can be provided on request.    

Annex A Waste Growth projections (Draft) 

Annex B Waste Prevention Options Appraisal (Draft) 

Annex C Recycling & Composting Options appraisal (Draft) 

Annex D Residual Waste Options Appraisal (Draft) 

Annex E Scoping Report to inform Strategic Environmental 
Assessment  (Draft) 

Annex F Strategic Environmental Assessment (Draft) 

Annex G Where are We Now (Draft) 

Annex H Feedback from public consultation & how the strategy 
was developed (Not yet complete) 

Annex I  Action Plan (Not yet complete) 

Annex J  Glossary and abbreviations (Draft) 

3.10 The draft revised strategy builds upon the strengths and successes of 
the original strategy. Commitment to the waste hierarchy remains a key 
principle. This is reflected in policies focusing on reducing the amount of 
waste arising, increasing the proportion recycled and from which value is 
derived and minimising the amount of waste that is land-filled. These are 
described in more detail in Annexes B, C and D. 

3.11 The “Vision for waste collection” has been replaced by a policy of 
providing a core service to all households of kerbside services for 
commingled recyclables and residual waste together with additional 
services for other waste streams that may be provided on a charged for 
basis. The previous blanket approach of alternating weekly collections 
has been replaced with a focus on waste reduction being achieved by all 
authorities increasing the amount recycled and restricting either residual 
waste collection frequency and/or container capacity.  

3.12 The prescriptive approach to treatment of residual waste by an autoclave 
process has been removed from the draft revised strategy. There is now 
a new policy to increase diversion away from land fill supported by 
Annex D which provides a detailed appraisal for waste treatment options 
capable of increasing the value derived from the residual waste stream. 
The options appraisal in this Annex will inform the method for future 
treatment of residual waste, proposals for which are expected to come 

Page 23



forward from the Waste Disposal Authorities’ contractor during the first 
half of 2009. The robustness of the strategy is important in supporting 
necessary applications for planning consent. 

 

3.13 Targets within the draft revised strategy are presented on a pooled 
basis, aligned to the Worcestershire Local Area Agreement to which this 
Council is already committed. Each partner Council will have an 
identified contribution to meeting these targets which will, where 
necessary be reflected in an action plan for delivery of the strategy. This 
action plan is currently being drafted and will be presented for adoption 
with the final revised strategy following public consultation. This 
Council’s contribution to meeting the pooled 43% recycling target by 31st 
March 2014 is already in place and will be further improved when co-
mingled collections are introduced within the next 12 months.   

3.14 Endorsement of this consultation draft revised strategy is being sought 
from all member Councils of the Joint Waste Resource Management 
Forum. 

3.15 A verbal update of the results of the consultation will be given at the 
Cabinet meeting.  

 
4. CONSULTATION 

4.1 For the revised joint strategy to be credible and robust, it is essential to 
be able demonstrate that it has been subject to rigorous, extensive and 
properly balanced consultation with the public and interested parties. 
The Joint Waste Forum has adopted a sequential, structured approach 
using an initial series of focus groups to identify key issues that will then 
be explored and quantified through a sample survey. This will provide 
balanced and statistically valid feedback on the consultation draft 
enabling final refinement of the strategy document to fully reflect the 
views expressed by consultees. The sequential approach has been 
selected as this ensures that partners have opportunities at a number of 
stages to endorse the evolving document reducing risks of non-
adoptions of the final strategy.  

 
4.2 The consultation exercise will concentrate on the changes to the strategy 

arising from the review process. In particular this will focus on how the 
revisions have addressed the issue of climate change which has 
become of much greater significance since the original strategy was 
adopted (and on which many Forum partners have now taken robust 
policy positions). There will also be a focus on how the revised strategy 
has responded to the challenges posed in Waste Strategy for England 
2007. It is not intended to consult upon aspects of the strategy that have 
not changed. 

 
4.3 Independent specialists with appropriate knowledge and expertise in 

consultation on waste and environmental matters have been engaged to 

Page 24



lead this process. Support will be provided through existing technical and 
communications resources.  

 
4. FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 
 
4.1 In the medium term there are no further financial implications from this 

report. This Council has already included capital bids for different 
vehicles and new containers to facilitate the introduction of co-mingled 
collections in 2010. 

 
4.2 Because we already operate a service that ensures a recycling rate in 

excess of 40% changes to the service will generate revenue savings in 
the medium term. These savings are already built into the medium term 
financial plan. 

 
5. LEGAL IMPLICATIONS 
 
5.1 This Strategy supports our contribution to meeting the Worcestershire 

Local Area Agreement target for diverting waste away from landfill 
(NI193). 

 
6. COUNCIL OBJECTIVES 
 
6.1  This Strategy will impact on both ‘Improvement’ and ‘Environment’ in the 

Council Objectives. 
 
7. RISK MANAGEMENT 
 
7.1 The main risks associated with the detail included in this report are: 
 

• That the process for dealing with the remaining residual waste 
(not yet determined) will not be agreed and consequently the 
facility will not be built. This will have an impact on the total 
tonnage of waste being landfilled and may attract financial 
penalties from central government. 

• That when agreed the building of the appropriate facility may be 
delayed with the same consequences as above. 

  
8. CUSTOMER IMPLICATIONS 
 
8.1  Changes to the collection system for co-mingled recyclates will improve 

the process for householders. It will also provide a greater storage 
capacity for recycled materials. (A 240 litre bin replacing a 55 litre and 44 
litre box.) 

 
9. EQUALITIES AND DIVERSITY IMPLICATIONS 
 
9.1 The consultation draft revised strategy contains principles and policies 

relating to engagement of all groups within the community. 

Page 25



The consultation process is designed to ensure the views of all groups 
are sought, including hard to reach groups. 

 
9.2 Equalities impact assessments will form part of the action plan to 

implement this strategy. 
 
10.  VFM IMPLICATIONS 
 
10.1 The operation of a co-mingled collection system is far more efficient than 

the existing system resulting in savings in the cost of the service. 
 
11. OTHER IMPLICATIONS 
 

Procurement Issues:                                Vehicle procurement. 
 
Personnel Implications:                            Yes. Changes to JD’s 
 
Governance/Performance Management:                     
 
Community Safety  including Section 17 of Crime and Disorder 
Act 1998:         None                                   
 
Policy:               Yes introduction of Co-mingled collections 
 
Environmental: Yes. Climate change benefits and improved 
recycling and waste processing.                                
 

 
 
12. OTHERS CONSULTED ON THE REPORT 
 

Portfolio Holder 
 

Yes 

Chief Executive 
 

Yes 

Corporate Director (Services)  
 

Yes 

Assistant Chief Executive 
 

Yes 

Head of Service 
 

Yes 

Head of Financial Services 
 

Yes 

Head of Legal, Equalities & Democratic 
Services 
 

Yes 

Head of Organisational Development & HR 
 

Yes 

Corporate Procurement Team No 

Page 26



 
 
 

13. APPENDICES 
 
 Appendix 1 Letter to County Council sent in response to Joint Waste 

Management Strategy Consultation 
 

  

14. BACKGROUND PAPERS 
 
Review of the Refuse Collection and Recycling Operation: Cabinet 2nd July 
2008 
 
Review of the Refuse Collection and Recycling Operation. Supplementary 
Report: Cabinet 3rd September 2008 
 
CONTACT OFFICER 
Name:  Michael Bell, Head of Street Scene and Community 
E Mail: m.bell@bromsgrove.gov.uk 
Tel:      (01527) 881703 
 

Page 27



Page 28

This page is intentionally left blank



Our ref:  
Please ask for: Michael Bell 
Telephone 01527 881703 
e-mail: m.bell@bromsgrove.gov.uk 
 
 
 
Mr Steve Birch  
Head of Trading Standards, Scientific Services  
and Waste Management  
Worcestershire County Council  
County Hall  
Spetchley Road  
Worcester  
WR5 2NP 
 
 
15th May 2009 
 
Dear Steve 
 
Response to JMWMS consultation – Bromsgrove District 
Council 
 
This is the response from Bromsgrove District Council to the revised JMWMS 
following the Information evening for Members of Redditch Borough Council 
and Bromsgrove District Council that was held on 27th April 2009. We will 
forward a copy of the full minutes to you when they are finalised next week. 
 
Bromsgrove District Council is supportive of the new Strategy and its broad 
aims, especially with regards to the continued commitment to the principle of 
the Waste Hierarchy, the Core Service, recognition of the importance of 
Climate Change and the need to ensure value for money.  However, we do 
have concerns regarding the residual waste options appraisal and some of 
the assumptions that have been used to rank/prioritise the options. Our main 
concerns are that: 
 

1. a fictional location for the treatment facility had to be used in calculating 
transport distances and other impacts; 

2. costs of the out of county solution seem to be at odds with the costs of 
constructing an in county treatment facility; 

3. we appreciate that weightings were not allocated to the criteria but feel 
that this is something that should be considered to ensure that this 
reflects the local conditions in Worcestershire/Herefordshire and is 
robust.  

 
We also feel that regional waste solutions have not been fully explored or 
considered, including work being undertaken by Advantage West Midlands on 
behalf of RIEP looking at treatment solutions on a regional basis. This affects 
the robustness of the residual options appraisal and the decision making 
process regarding the preferred residual treatment solution. We would request 

Page 29



that once a site/sites has been identified formally, then the options are re-
evaluated using the known location(s) and its associated impacts and that the 
work carried out by RIEP on regional waste solutions is fully considered and 
incorporated into the residual options appraisal.  
 
Additionally, once there is a firm proposal regarding the location of the site(s) 
and the type of facility to be constructed, further consultation on the proposal 
will be necessary, to ensure the process is robust. 
 
In conclusion, until the location and nature of the treatment solution is 
confirmed and the residual options appraisal is reassessed as outlined above, 
Bromsgrove District Council will be unable to fully endorse the revised 
JMWMS. 
 
 
 
Yours Sincerely 
 
 
 
 
Councillor Margaret Sherrey 
Portfolio Holder Street Scene and Community 
Representative on Member Waste Resource Management Forum 
 

Page 30



 
BROMSGROVE DISTRICT COUNCIL 

 
CABINET 

 
1 JULY 2009 

 
BROMSGROVE DISTRICT COUNCIL TRAVEL PLAN  

 
 
Responsible Portfolio Holder  Councillor Peter Whittaker 
Responsible Head of Service Phil Street 
Non Key Decision   
 
1.  SUMMARY 
 
1.1 This report contains the key findings of the survey conducted by 

Bromsgrove District Council of its elected members and employees 
travel habits in connection with their Council activities. 

 
2. RECOMMENDATION  
 

2.1 That Cabinet note the key findings detailed throughout the 
report; 

2.2 That the Cabinet note the targets for travel habits for elected 
members and employees in connection with their Council 
activities;  

2.3 That performance and implementation against the agreed 
targets be reported to and monitored by the Council’s Climate 
Change Group and that an interim progress report be submitted 
to Cabinet in six months time with a full report on progress in 
twelve months. 

 
3. BACKGROUND 
 

3.1 The Council carried out a survey of travel habits of elected 
members and employees in connection with their Council 
activities. 

3.2 The purposes of collecting data and information on travel habits 
undertaken by Bromsgrove District Council elected members 
and employees was to:  

• establish information on the means used to travel to and from 
work and to carry out Council business;  

• ascertain attitudes to current travel habits and identify 
opportunities to change habits;  

• provide details that allow for assessing the feasibility of 
promoting travel habits that reduce carbon emissions.   

Agenda Item 10

Page 31



3.3 Amongst the Council’s national indicators is NI 185 which 
requires the Council to reduce its carbon emissions. The travel 
plan survey will contribute to performance through promoting 
travel habits designed to reduce the Council’s carbon emissions. 

3.4 Additionally the travel plan can contribute to people reducing 
their travel costs by promoting car sharing, cycling and walking. 
It will also aim to promote healthier lifestyles by encouraging 
healthier means of travel.  

3.5 The travel plan survey was completed by 157 respondents.  

3.6 A map is attached that details anonymously where the 
respondents live to assist in determining the feasibility of car 
sharing.  

3.7 Most of the respondents (67%) worked at or from the Council 
Office. 57% of the respondents usually start work between 8 
a.m. and 9 a.m. and 23% before 8 a.m. 

3.8 49% of respondents leave work between 4.30 p.m. and 5.30 
p.m. and 20% leave between 4 p.m. and 4.30 p.m. 

3.9 Most of the respondents worked five days per week (76%) and 
over 70% of all respondents travel to work by car.  

3.10 Of all respondents 25% live 2 miles or less from work and 32% 
live less than 5 mikes from their place of work. Just over 70% of 
respondents take 30 minutes or less to travel to work with 37% 
taking less than 15 minutes.  

3.11 Respondents were asked why they used their car to travel to 
work and reasons included needing car for work business and 
dropping family members at school or work. 

3.12 Only the introduction of a home working policy or car sharing 
information would persuade people not to use their car although 
39% of respondents said nothing would stop them using their 
car for work. 

3.13 When asked further about car sharing 42% said they would 
consider car sharing and 8% said they already did car share. 

3.14 The full survey results are contained in appendix one.  

3.15 The information obtained from the survey provides indications of 
where the Council can set targets and plan actions to reduce its 
carbon emissions. It provides a guide to where habits could be 
amended or revised to reduce impact on the environment. 

3.16 An important consideration for the Council will be to balance 
brought about by changes in travel habits with the impact on 
cost and outputs. For example, the inference from the survey is 
that pool cars would not have a significant impact on travel 
habits and there is evidence from elsewhere that authority’s with 
pool cars are phasing them out. The cost of purchasing pool 
cars is also prohibitive. Similarly, few employees cycle to work 

Page 32



and it would appear personal safety has an influence on cycle 
usage. Therefore, without substantial investment in cycle lanes 
and showers and changing facilities at work, it is unlikely the 
number of people cycling to work will increase. The costs 
associated with these investments are not commensurate with 
the likely return. However, improving the location and provision 
of cycle sheds might have a marginal affect on cycling as might 
access to the county cycle purchasing and maintenance 
scheme. 

3.17 The district is not well served by public transport and until there 
is a significant improvement in bus services and a better rail 
station the option of using public transport is limited. 

3.18 Targets drawn from the travel survey results are as follows: 

• Car sharing, particularly on an occasional basis, is viewed 
positively by over 40% of respondents. It is suggested that a 
target of 20 people car share at least once a month by March 
2010. It is suggested that the County Car Sharing scheme is 
actively promoted and that three car parking bays at the Council 
Offices are dedicated to staff car sharing with another employee 
of the Council.   

• The idea of working from home is also viewed positively by 
nearly 67% of respondents. Currently some 22% of respondents 
work from home on an occasional basis. It is suggested that a 
target of 33% of staff work from home at least one day a month 
by March 2010. The idea of a nine day working fortnight is being 
investigated with extended hours during the nine days.   

• The number of people walking to work is relatively low with an 
average of 5% of respondents walking to work. This amounts to 
about 7 people. A target of increasing that figure to 14 people 
walking to work at least twice a week by March 2010 is 
proposed. However, it is suggested that discussions take place 
with staff about any changes necessary to promote walking.   

• Although cycling is the least popular mode of travelling to work 
18% of the respondents indicated they would be interested in 
cycling to work either if they had some one to cycle with and / or 
had access to discounted bicycles or maintenance. A target of 5 
people cycling at least twice a week to work is set for March 
2010 and that discussions take place with staff about issues that 
would encourage them to cycle.  

3.19 The issue of recording these targets is proposed. It is suggested 
that all staff have access to a travel to work sheet and those that 
car sharing, working from home, walking to work and cycling is 
recorded monthly. The forms will record the mileage saved, their 
car engine size and there will be a simple means to calculate the 
amount of carbon they have saved. This information will be 
collated and used towards measuring performance against NI 
185. 

Page 33



3.20 An incentive to complete the forms will be devised. This may 
include a quarterly prize draw.  

 

4. FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 
 
4.1  The costs for pursuing the targets in the travel plan are small. The 
possibility of building a cycle shed may be considered, but the 
remaining recommendations can be met from within existing budgets.  

 
 
5. LEGAL IMPLICATIONS 
 
5.1    There are no direct legal implications. 
 
6. COUNCIL OBJECTIVES 
 
6.1  Clean streets and climate change is one of the Council’s objectives and 

the travel plan is a part of tackling climate change. By revising travel 
habits a contribution can be made to reducing carbon emissions.  

 
7. RISK MANAGEMENT 
 
7.1 The central risk is that people will not change their travel habits. Car 
travel is convenient and generally reliable. It is easy to organise and is 
probably regarded as the simplest means of travel. Furthermore some 
employees travel significant distances to work and the option of public 
transport may not exist. 
 
The means for mitigating these risks is to promote the car sharing scheme; 
the cycle discount purchase scheme; the option of home working and the 
financial and health benefits of using alternative means of travel. 
 
8. CUSTOMER IMPLICATIONS 
 
8.1   There are no direct customer implications. 
 
9. EQUALITIES AND DIVERSITY IMPLICATIONS 
 
9.1 There are no direct implications. 
 
10. VALUE FOR MONEY IMPLICATIONS 
 
10.1 There may be some marginal gains by encouraging people to walk to 
places to carry out Council business as opposed to travelling by car. 
 
11. OTHER IMPLICATIONS 
 

Procurement Issues –  None 
 

Page 34



Personnel Implications – There are significant implications if working 
from home is a requirement or Is seen as essential to the pursuit of 
the post. However, the option of occasional home working has few 
personnel issues. 
 
Governance/Performance Management –  None 
 
Community Safety  including Section 17 of Crime and Disorder Act 
1998 - None 
 
Policy  - This supports the policy of tackling climate change  
 
Environmental –  In attempting to change travel habits there could be 
a significant impact on environmental issues. 
 

 
12. OTHERS CONSULTED ON THE REPORT 
 

Portfolio Holder 
 

Yes 

Chief Executive 
 

Yes 

Executive Director - Partnerships and Projects  
 

Yes 

Executive Director - Services 
 

Yes 

Assistant Chief Executive 
 

Yes 

Head of Service 
 

Yes 

Head of Financial Services 
 

Yes 

Head of Legal, Equalities & Democratic 
Services 
 

Yes 

Head of Organisational Development & HR 
 

Yes 

Corporate Procurement Team 
 

Yes 

 
13. WARDS AFFECTED 
 

All Wards  
 
14. APPENDICES 
 
 Appendix 1 - Travel Plan Survey Results 
 
 

Page 35



 
15. BACKGROUND PAPERS 
 
        Not applicable 
 
 
CONTACT OFFICER 
 
Name:   Phil Street  
E Mail:  p.street@bromsgrove.gov.uk 
Tel:       (01527) 881202 
 
 

Page 36



 
Appendix 1 
 

 
 
Bromsgrove Travel Survey 2008  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Analysis of Results 
 
January 2009 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

For more information contact: 
 
Chris Baker 
Research Officer 
Research and Intelligence Unit, Worcestershire County Council 
 
Email: cbaker1@worcestershire.gov.uk 
Tel: 01905 768333 

 

Page 37



 
 
 
ANALYSIS 
 
 
 
There were a total of 157 responses to the online survey. 
 
 
Q1: What is your home postcode? 
 
Figure 1: Map of Respondents Postcodes 

 
 
 
 

 
www.worcestershire.gov.uk/research 

Page 38



 
 
 
 
Q2: What is your usual place of work? 
 
Table 1 

Location Number of 
Responses 

% of Total 
Responses 

Council Office 104 66.2 
Central Depot 32 20.4 
CSC/Dolphin Centre 15 9.6 
Other 6 3.6 
 
Two thirds of respondents work at the main Council Office and 20.4% are located 
at the Central Depot. 
 
 
Q3: Do you have a disability which affects your travel arrangements? 
 
98.7% of respondents stated they do not have a disability, which affects their travel 
arrangements. 
 
 
Q4: What time do you usually start work? 
 
Graph 1 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Most staff start work between 8.00am and 8.30am (30.6%), with the proportion 
decreasing as the morning progresses. 
 
 

0%

5%

10%

15%

20%

25%

30%

35%

Before 8:00 8:00 to 8:30 8:30 to 9:00 9:00 to 9:30 After 9:30

Page 39



 
 
 
 
 
 
Q5: What time do you normally leave work? 
 
Graph 2 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
The profile of times staff normally leave work is very much different to starting 
times. Nearly a third of staff (31.8%) normally leave work between 17.00 and 
17.30. 
 
 
Q6: How many days per week do you work? 
 
Table 2 

Days Number of 
Responses 

% of Total 
Responses 

1 1 0.6 
2 0 0.0 
3 19 12.1 
4 12 7.6 
5 120 76.4 
6 4 2.5 
7 1 0.6 
 
The majority of staff work a full week of 5 days (76.4%) followed by 12.1% who 
work 3 days per week or part-time. 
 

0%

5%

10%

15%

20%

25%

30%

35%

Before 16:00 16:00 to 16:30 16:30 to 17:00 17:00 to 17:30 After 17:30

Page 40



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Q7: How do you usually travel to work on each day of the week? 
 
Table 3 

Day 
Car 
on 
own 

Car with 
colleagues 

Car 
with 
others 

Motorcycle Walk Cycle Bus Train N/A 

Monday 73.8 9.7 5.5 2.1 4.8 0.7 2.1 0.0 1.4 
Tuesday 73.8 9.4 4.7 2.0 4.7 0.7 2.0 0.0 2.7 
Wednesday 70.9 9.3 6.6 2.0 6.6 1.3 2.0 0.0 1.3 
Thursday 73.5 9.5 4.1 2.0 6.1 1.4 2.0 0.0 1.4 
Friday 72.2 9.0 4.9 2.1 6.9 1.4 2.1 0.0 1.4 
Saturday Completed incorrectly 
Sunday Completed incorrectly 

 
Almost three quarters of respondents usually travel to work in a car on their own 
each day of the week. Just under 10% of respondents usually car share with 
colleagues and 5% car share with others.  
 
A small proportion of respondents use a motorcycle (2%), walk (5-6%), cycle 
(1%) or catch a bus (2%). 
 
 
Q8: Does how you travel to work differ in winter or bad weather? 
 
16.0% of respondents stated their travel does differ in the winter or bad weather. 
 
 
Q9: If you use your car for work, please state the fuel type? 
 
Table 4 

Fuel Type Number of 
Responses 

% of Total 
Responses 

Petrol 99 70.2 
Diesel 40 28.4 
LPG 2 1.4 
Petrol Hybrid 0 0.0 
Other 0 0.0 
 
Nearly all staff drive either a petrol (70.2%) or diesel (28.4%) powered car. 
 
 
 
 

Page 41



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Q10: What is the engine size of your car? 
 
Graph 3 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
41.1% drive a car with an engine size between 1,500cc and 1,999cc, followed by 
34.0% who stated 1,000cc – 1,499cc. 22.1% of respondents commented they 
drive a car with an engine size of 2,000cc or greater. Finally just 2.8% have an 
engine size below 1,000cc. 
 
 
Q11: What would be your preferred method of travel if different from your 
usual? 
 
Table 5 

Preferred Method Number of 
Responses 

% of Total 
Responses 

Car on own 27 19.4 
Car with colleagues 40 28.8 
Car with others 12 8.6 
Motorbike 5 3.6 
Walk 25 18.0 
Cycle 10 7.2 
Bus 8 5.8 

0%

5%

10%

15%

20%

25%

30%

35%

40%

45%

Below
1,000cc

1,000 -
1,499cc

1,500 -
1,999cc

2,000 -
2,499cc

2,500 -
2,999cc

3,000cc or
above

Page 42



Train 12 8.6 
 
Most respondents said there preferred method of alternative travel would be car 
sharing with colleagues, 28.8%, followed by 19.4% and 18.0% who stated they would 
use a car on their own or could walk to work, respectively.  
 
 
 
 
Q12: Approximately how many miles do you travel from your home to your 
place of work? (one way in miles) 
 
Graph 4 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Just over a quarter (27.4%) of staff travel between 11 and 25 miles from home to 
work, decreasing linearly down to 10.2% who travel less than a mile. 7.6% of 
respondents have a daily one-way commute of over 25 miles. 
 
 
Q13: Approximately how long does it currently take you to get to work? 
 
Graph 5 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

0%

5%

10%

15%

20%

25%

30%

Less than 1
mile

1 to 2 miles 3 to 5 miles 6 to 10
miles

11 to 25
miles

Over 25
miles

0%

5%

10%

15%

20%

25%

30%

35%

40%

45%

Page 43



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Most respondents take 0-15 minutes or 15-30 minutes to get to work, 37.2% and 
38.5% respectively. 
 
4.4% of respondents stated it takes them over an hour to commute to work. 
 
 
Q14: What are your main reasons for driving into work? 
 
Table 6 

 Number of 
Responses 

% of Total 
Responses 

Need the car for work during the day 53 37.6 
Dropping family member off 30 21.3 
Distance from home too great to walk/cycle 65 46.1 
I can arrive and leave work when I want  59 41.8 
No one to car share with 17 12.1 
No public transport or it takes too long  51 36.2 
Personal safety 4 2.8 
Car needed because of ill health 1 0.7 
Cheaper than public transport 14 9.9 
More reliable than public transport 36 25.5 
Other 17 12.1 

 
The most common reasons given for driving into work are distance from home 
too great to walk/cycle (46.1%), convenience of arriving and leaving when staff 
wish (41.8%) and need car for work during the day (37.6%). 
 
 
Q15: What would encourage you NOT to use your car? 
 
Table 7 

 Number of 
Responses 

% of Total 
Responses 

Information on car sharing 20 15.0 
Information on bus/train times and routes 0 0.0 
Car parking charges 4 3.0 
Shuttle service to and from rail/shuttle 4 3.0 
Taxi home in an emergency 4 3.0 
Home working policy 49 36.8 

Page 44



Nothing 52 39.1 
 
The majority of staff (39.1%) stated nothing would encourage them not to use their 
car, followed closely by 36.8% who stated a home working policy. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Q16: Do you ever work from home? 
 
Just under a quarter of respondents (21.7%) said they have worked from home. 
 
Of those respondents who have worked from home, the number of days per month 
ranges from 1 to 25, with an average of 3.2 days. 
 
 
Q17: On average how often do you use your car alone for work journeys? 
 
Graph 6 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A quarter of staff use their car alone at least 4 days per week for work journeys, but 
conversely 22.5% stated they never use their car alone. 
 
 
Q18: How many miles per month (on average) do you travel whilst on ‘work 
business’? 
 

0%

5%

10%

15%

20%

25%

30%

Ne
ve
r

Oc
ca
ss
io
na
lly

Le
ss
 th
an
 on
ce
 a
 m
on
th

On
ce
 a
 fo
rtn
igh
t

On
e 
da
y p
er
 w
ee
k o
r le
ss

At
 le
as
t 2
 d
ay
s p
er
 w
ee
k

At
 le
as
t 4
 d
ay
s p
er
 w
ee
k

Page 45



The number of miles travelled whilst on ‘work business’ ranges from 0 to 900. 
The average mileage per month for all respondents that replied is 87. 
 
 
Q19: Would you be prepared to car share? 
 
42.4% of employees commented they would be prepared to car share, with 
around half (49.7%) stating they wouldn’t. 7.9% of respondents already car 
share. 
 
 
 
 
 
Q20: Which TWO of the following would most encourage you to car share 
or make your car sharing easier? 
 
Table 8 

 Number of 
Responses 

% of Total 
Responses 

Taxi home in emergency 38 26.8 
Reserved parking for car sharers 13 9.2 
Pool car provided for business trips during the day 37 26.1 
Help in finding car sharers similar working patterns 58 40.8 
Other 6 4.2 
None of the above 51 35.9 
 
The two most popular options that would encourage people to car share or make 
car sharing easier are help in finding car sharers with similar working patterns 
(40.8%) and nothing would encourage respondents (35.9%). 
 
 
Q21: Do you use any other transport for business related travel? 
 
Graph 7 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

0%

10%

20%

30%

40%

50%

60%

70%

Passenger
in car/van
or car
sharing

Taxi Train Bus Bicycle Motorcycle Other

Page 46



 
60.0% of respondents have used the train at some point for business related 
travel, followed by 46.7% who have been a passenger in a car/van or car shared. 
A small proportion of respondents stated they had used a taxi, bus, bicycle or 
motorcycle. 
 
6.7% have used an ‘Other’ mode of transport and the comments made were 
walk, pick-up truck and business class flights. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Q22: Which of the following would encourage you to cycle to work? 
 
Table 9 

 Number of 
Responses 

% of Total 
Responses 

Cycle purchase scheme 23 14.9 
Improved showers/changing facilities 28 18.2 
Lockers 21 13.6 
Covered cycle stands 22 14.3 
Cycle and pedestrian paths 32 20.8 
None of the above 100 64.9 
 
Almost two thirds of staff wouldn’t be encouraged by any incentives to cycle to work. 
However, between 13% and 21% of respondents who be encouraged to cycle  due to 
the options listed. 
 
 
Q23: Below is a list of other possible ideas that could be introduced at your work 
place to reduce the number of journeys made commuting to and from work and 
for work related journeys. 
 
Table 10 

 Number of 
Responses 

% of Total 
Responses 

Condensed working hours (such as a 9 day 
fortnight) 62 47.0 

Working from home  88 66.7 
Someone to walk/cycle/ catch bus with 7 5.3 
Cheaper bicycles (Council discount) 17 12.9 
Use of taxi to train station for business trips 5 3.8 
Lease or loan to convert car to alternative 6 4.5 
Car parking charges 1 0.8 
Council pool cars 27 20.5 
Discounted bus travel 21 15.9 

Page 47



Other incentives 7 5.3 
 
Working from home is the most common response, with two thirds of respondents 
stating this option as an idea to reduce number of journeys made commuting to and 
from work. Condensed working hours (47.0%), council pool cars (20.5%) and 
discounted bus travel (15.9%) where the next most popular ideas. 

 

Page 48



 

Page 49



Page 50

This page is intentionally left blank



17/06/2009 

BROMSGROVE DISTRICT COUNCIL 
 

1ST  JULY 2009 
 

CABINET 
 

 
IMPROVEMENT PLAN EXCEPTION REPORT [APRIL 2009] 
 
Responsible Portfolio Holder  
 

Councillor Roger Hollingworth, 
Portfolio Holder for the Improvement 
Plan  

Responsible Officer Hugh Bennett  
Assistant Chief Executive 
 

Non Key Decision  
 
1.  SUMMARY 

 
1.1 To ask the Cabinet to consider the Improvement Plan Exception Report 

for April 2009 (Appendix 1).   
 
2. RECOMMENDATION  
 
2.1 That the Cabinet considers and approves the revisions to the 

Improvement Plan Exception Report attached as Appendix 1, and the 
corrective action being taken.  

 
2.2 That the Cabinet notes that for the 93 actions highlighted for April 

within the plan 76.3% of the Improvement Plan is on target [green], 
5.4% is one month behind [amber] and 3.2% is over one month behind 
[red].  The actions that have been reprogrammed with approval1reflect 
the re-programming of the town centre actions (as a result of Parkside 
& Network Rail) and the re-programming of HR actions. 

 
2.3  This month’s performance is shown on the first page of Appendix 1.   
 
3 BACKGROUND 
 
3.1 July 2008 Cabinet approved the Improvement Plan 2008/09.  The 

Improvement Plan is directly linked to the five corporate priorities and 
thirteen enablers identified in the Council Plan 2008/2011. 

 
3.2 The Improvement Plan was designed to push the Council through to a 

rating of Fair during 2008.   
 
3.3 There were five amber  and three red activities this month for the 

following areas of the Improvement Plan:- 
 

                                            
1 NB reprogrammed actions are those that have been suspended completely and those that 
have been moved to a later point in the year.  Extended actions are listed separately are 
actions that are anticipated to take longer than had originally been programmed 

Agenda Item 11

Page 51



17/06/2009 

 
 

Ref. Council Plan Balanced 
Scorecard Reference 
 

Number 

CP1 Town Centre 1 
CP4 Sense of Community 

 
2 

FP1 Value for Money 1 
FP3 Financial Strategy 2 
PR5 Planning 1 
HR & OD 
2 

Modernisation 1 

 
3.4 The re-programmed actions i.e. those that have been suspended or 

moved to a much later date in the Plan are:- 
 

 Ref. Action  
 

Reason 

1 1.2.2 Market Hall 
redevelopment  

Suspended. Credit Crunch 

2 1.4.2, 1.4.3, 
1.4.4, 1.4.5, 
1.4.6, 1.4.7 

Market Hall negotiations. 
 

Suspended. Credit 
Crunch. 
 

3 2.1.3, 2.1.4, 2.1.5 Affordable housing SPD. Suspended.  RSS2. 

4 3.3.1 Service data monitoring 
 

Suspended. Expected to 
be introduced Spring 2009 

5 4.1.5, 4.1.13 Consultation for LSP 
neighbourhoods. 
 

Re-programmed.  
Different approach agreed 
for 2009/2010. 

6 4.3.11, 4.3.12, 
4.3.14, 4.3.15 

Review of promotional 
materials / Artrix 

Suspended.  Budget 
constraints / SLA delays 

7 14.3.5 Submission Core Strategy Reprogrammed. Delays 
with RSS review. 

8 15.2.4 Review and consult on the 
“Bromsgrove Way”. 
 

Suspended.  Existing 
approach acceptable.  
Other HR&OD priorities. 
 

9 15.3.1, 15.3.2, 
15.3.3 

“Bromsgrove Way” and 
competency framework for 
non-managers. 
 

See above. 

10 16.1.9 Gap analysis Suspended. Pending 
shared service business 
case. 

11 16.3.3 Review of harassment and 
bullying policy 

Suspended. Pending JE 
implementation 

12 16.4.5 Parental rights guide Re-programmed. Pending 
JE implementation 

13 18.1.2, 18.1.3, 
18.1.4 

PDR process review. 
 

Suspended. Pending JE 
implementation 

14 18.3.1, 18.3.2, 
18.3.3, 18.3.4, 
18.3.5 

Core competencies for all 
staff. 

Suspended. Pending JE 
implementation 

 
4. FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 
 

Page 52



17/06/2009 

4.1 No financial implications.  
 
5. LEGAL IMPLICATIONS 
 
5.1 No legal implications.  
 
6. COUNCIL OBJECTIVES 
 
6.1  The Improvement Plan relates to all of the Council’s four objectives and 

five priorities as per the 2008/2011 Council Plan. 
 
7. RISK MANAGEMENT 
 
7.1.1 The risks associated with the Improvement Plan are covered in the 

CCPP departmental risk register. Specific corporate risks are related to 
the Improvement Plan in the following ways: 

 
Corporate Risk Title Improvement Plan Reference 
KO1: Effective Financial Management 
and Internal Control 

FP2 – Financial Management 
FP3 – Financial Strategy 

KO2: Effective corporate leadership FP1 – Value for Money  
FP2 – Financial Management 
FP3 – Financial Strategy 
FP4 – Financial and Performance 

Reporting 
PR2 –Improved Governance 

KO3: Effective  Member / Officer 
relations 

PR2 –Improved Governance 
HROD1 – Learning and 

Development 

KO4: Effective Member / Member 
relations 

PR2 –Improved Governance 
HROD1 – Learning and 

Development 
KO5*: Full compliance with the Civil 
Contingencies Act and effective 
Business Continuity 

PR1 – Customer Process 

KO6: Maximising the benefits of 
investment in ICT equipment and 
training 

PR3 – Spatial Business Project 

KO7: Effective partnership working PR4 – Improved Partnership 
Working 

KO8: Effective communications 
(internal and external) 

PR1 – Customer Process 
FP4 – Financial and Performance 

Reporting 
HROD 4– Performance Culture 

KO9: Equalities and diversity agenda 
embedded across the Authority 

CP3 – Customer Service 
CP4 – Sense of Community 

KO10: Appropriate investment in 
employee development and training 

HROD1 – Learning and 
Development 
HROD2 – Modernisation 
HROD4 – Performance Culture 

KO11: Effective employee recruitment 
and retention 

HROD2 – Modernisation 
 

Page 53



17/06/2009 

KO12: Full compliance with all Health 
and Safety legislation 

FP3 – Financial Strategy 
PR1 – Customer Process 
HROD2 – Modernisation 

KO13: Effective two tier working and 
Community Engagement 

CP4 – Sense of Community 
PR4 – Improved Partnership 

Working 
KO14: Successful implementation of 
Job Evaluation 

HROD2 - Modernisation 

KO15: All Council data is accurate and 
of high quality 

FP2 – Financial Management 
FP4 – Financial and Performance 

Reporting 
PR3 – Spatial Business Project 
HROD4 – Performance culture 

KO16: The Council no longer in 
recovery 

FP1 – Value for Money 
FP4 – Financial and Performance 
Reporting 

KO17: Effective Projects Management FP1 – Value for Money 
PR3 – Spatial Business Project 

KO19: Effective Business and 
Performance Management 

FP4 – Financial and Performance 
Reporting 

KO20: Effective Customer Focused 
Authority 

CP3 – Customer Service 
CP4 – Sense of Community 
PR1 – Customer Process 

 
* KO5 and KO18 have been merged 
 
8. CUSTOMER IMPLICATIONS 
 
8.1 The Improvement Plan is concerned with the strategic and operational 

issues that will affect the customer. 
 
9. EQUALITIES AND DIVERSITY IMPLICATIONS 
 
9.1 Please see sections CP3 and CP4 of the Improvement Plan 
 
10. VALUE FOR MONEY IMPLICATIONS 
 
10.1 See section FP1 of the Improvement Plan 
 
11.   OTHER IMPLICATIONS 

 
Procurement Issues: See Section FP1 of the Improvement Plan. 
Personnel Implications: See Sections HROD1-HROD4 of the 
Improvement Plan.  
Governance/Performance Management:  See Sections FP4 and PR2 
of the Improvement Plan. 
Community Safety including Section 17 of Crime and Disorder Act 
1998:  See section CP4 of the Improvement Plan 
Policy:  All sections of the Improvement Plan relate to this. 
Environmental:  See sections CP1 and PR5 of the Improvement Plan. 

 
 12.    OTHERS CONSULTED ON THE REPORT 

Page 54



17/06/2009 

  
Portfolio Holder 
 

No 
 

Chief Executive 
 

At CMT 

Executive Director (Partnerships and 
Projects) 

At CMT 

Executive Director (Services)  
 

At CMT 

Assistant Chief Executive Yes 
 

Head of Service At CMT  

Head of Financial Services At CMT 

Head of Legal & Democratic Services 
 

At CMT 

Head of Organisational Development & HR 
 

At CMT 

Corporate Procurement Team 
 

No 

 
13.  WARDS AFFECTED 
 
13.1 All wards  
 
14.   APPENDICES 

 
14.1  Appendix 1 Improvement Plan Exception Report April 2009 
 
15.     BACKGROUND PAPERS: 
 
15.1 The full Improvement Plan for April can be found at 

www.bromsgrove.gov.uk under meetings Minutes and Agendas. A 
hard copy is also left in the Members’ Room each month. 
 

 
CONTACT OFFICER 
Name:   Rebecca Dunne  
E Mail:  r.dunne@bromsgrove.gov.uk 
Tel:       (01527) 881616 
 

Page 55



Exception Report for April 2009 Improvement Plan                                     Appendix 1 

Last Updated on 17/06/2009 16:14 
 

6 

 
PROGRESS IN 2008/09 
 
Overall performance as at the end of April 2009, in comparison with the previous year, is as follows: -  

 

 

 

 
 

July 2007 August 2007 September 2007 October 2007 November 2007 December 2007 
RED 1 0.6% RED 1 0.7% RED 4 2.4% RED 3 1.8% RED 5 3.1% RED 3 2.0% 
AMBER 5 3.2% AMBER 13 9.2% AMBER 11 6.6% AMBER 16 9.6% AMBER 11 7.0% AMBER 17 11.6% 
GREEN 152 95.6% GREEN 126 88.7% GREEN 149 89.2% GREEN 142 85.0% GREEN 138 86.9% GREEN 121 82.3% 
REPRO 1 0.6% REPRO 2 1.4% REPRO 3 1.8% REPRO 6 3.6% REPRO 5 3.1% REPRO 6 4.1% 

January 2008 February 2008 March 2008 April 2008 May 2008 June 2008 
RED 2 1.4% RED 2 1.4% RED 2 1.5% RED 3 2.7% RED 8 7.55% RED 6 6.3% 
AMBER 16 11.4% AMBER 10 7.3% AMBER 10 7.4% AMBER 11 9.9% AMBER 4 3.8% AMBER 4 4.2% 
GREEN 118 84.3% GREEN 122 88.4% GREEN 117 86.7% GREEN 92 82.9% GREEN 86 81.1% GREEN 74 77.0% 
REPRO 4 2.9% REPRO 4 2.9% REPRO 6 4.4% REPRO 5 4.5% REPRO 8 7.55% REPRO 12 12.5% 

July 2008 August 2008 September 2008 October 2008 November 2008 December 2008 
RED 11 8.6% RED 17 14.4% RED 16 11.9% RED 15 10.6% RED 12 8.7% RED 13 9.9% 
AMBER 3 2.3% AMBER 4 3.4% AMBER 8 6.0% AMBER 7 5.0% AMBER 8 5.8% AMBER 5 3.9% 
GREEN 114 89.1% GREEN 96 81.4% GREEN 99 73.9% GREEN 104 73.8% GREEN 106 76.8% GREEN 100 76.3% 
REPRO 0 0% REPRO 1 0.8% REPRO* 11 8.2% REPRO 15 10.6% REPRO 12 8.7% REPRO 13 9.9% 

January 2009 February 2009 March 2009 April 2009 May 2009 June 2009 
RED 0 0% RED 2 1.5% RED 3 2.9% RED 3 3.2% RED   RED   
AMBER 4 3.6% AMBER 3 2.3% AMBER 5 4.9% AMBER 5 5.4% AMBER   AMBER   
GREEN 95 86.4% GREEN 112 86.2% GREEN 80 78.5% GREEN 71 76.3% GREEN   GREEN   
REPRO 11 10.0% REPRO 13 10.0% REPRO 14 13.7% REPRO 14 15.1% REPRO   REPRO   

P
age 56



Exception Report for April 2009 Improvement Plan                                     Appendix 1 

Last Updated on 17/06/2009 16:14 
 

7 

Where: - 
 
 On Target or 

completed 
 One month 

behind target 
or less 

 Over one 
month 
behind target 

 Original date 
of planned 
action 

 Re-
programmed 
date.* 

* NB. Reprogrammed actions are both those that have been suspended completely and those that have been moved to a later point in the 
year.  They are not actions that have been extended and they do not appear on the exception report. 
 
Out of the total of 93 actions for April 2009, 5 actions have been extended with approval.  This amounts to 5.4 percent of the 
original actions scheduled for this month.  Extended actions are shown with hatched marking and extend the timescale of a current 
or ongoing action on the Improvement Plan.  
 
An Exception Report detailing corrective actions follows: 
 
 

P
age 57



Exception Report for April 2009 Improvement Plan                                     Appendix 1 

Last Updated on 17/06/2009 16:14 
 

8 

 
 

 

CP1: Town Centre 
Ref  April 2009 Action Colour  Corrective Action  Who  Original 

Date 
 

Revised 
Date 

1.7.3 Obtain planning permission.  Network Rail require the scheme to be a permitted 
development.  QC advice has been provided that this may 
not be possible.  Meeting held with Network Rail.  
Separate QC advice now being sought by Network Rail to 
back their desire to treat the scheme as a permitted 
development. 

HB Apr 09 TBC 

Ref. Action Lead 

Ju
ly

 

A
u
g
. 

S
ep

. 

O
ct

. 

N
o
v.

 

D
ec

. 

Ja
n
. 

F
eb

. 

M
ar

. 

A
p
r.

 

M
ay

 

Ju
n
e Corrective Action 

41.7 Agree funding and planning permission for train station redevelopment, with transport links to the town centre 
1.7.3 Obtain planning permission. HB             The Regional Transport Partnership’s 

has submitted its Regional Funding 
Advice to the Department of Transport. 
Formal approval is now required by the 
Secretary of State and is expected in 
July 2009. All the dates in the existing 
programme can now be re-programmed 
into the 2009/2010 plan on the basis of 
this funding approval expected in July. 
Network Rail also need to approve the 
Scheme. This is expected in May, but 
Network Rail require the scheme to be a 
permitted development.  QC advice has 
been provided to the Council (and onto 
Network Rail) that this may not be 
possible.  Meeting held with Network 
Rail.  Separate QC advice now being 
sought by Network Rail to back their 
desire to treat the scheme as a permitted 
development. 

P
age 58



Exception Report for April 2009 Improvement Plan                                     Appendix 1 

Last Updated on 17/06/2009 16:14 
 

9 

 

 
 

CP4: Sense of Community 
Ref  April 2009 Action Colour  Corrective Action  Who  Original 

Date 
 

Revised 
Date 

4.1.1
0 

Go live  Meetings planned with Hagley and Charford Members in 
June. Business case to July Cabinet. 

HB Apr 09 TBC 

Ref. Action Lead 

Ju
ly

 

A
u
g
. 

S
ep

. 

O
ct

. 

N
o
v.

 

D
ec

. 

Ja
n
. 

F
eb

. 

M
ar

. 

A
p
r.

 

M
ay

 

Ju
n
e Corrective Action 

4.1 Neighbourhood management 
 

4.1.10 Go live HB             Meetings planned with Hagley and 
Charford Members in June. Business 
case to July Cabinet. P

age 59



Exception Report for April 2009 Improvement Plan                                     Appendix 1 

Last Updated on 17/06/2009 16:14 
 

10 

 

CP4: Sense of Community 
Ref  April 2009 Action Colour  Corrective Action  Who  Original 

Date 
 

Revised 
Date 

4.3.1
3 

Establish monitoring & meeting 
arrangements set out in the SLA 
with the Artrix. 

 Work in this area is ongoing due to concern raised 
by the Operating Trust of the Artrix over some of the 
phrasing in the agreement document.  Extended to 
July. 

JG Jul-08 Jul-09 

Ref. Action Lead 

Ju
ly

 

A
u
g
. 

S
ep

. 

O
ct

. 

N
o
v.

 

D
ec

. 

Ja
n
. 

F
eb

. 

M
ar

. 

A
p
r.

 

M
ay

 

Ju
n
e Corrective Action 

4.3 Popularity of events programme  
 

4.3.13 Establish monitoring & 
meeting arrangements set 
out in the SLA with the 
Artrix. 

JG             At its February 2009 meeting the Artrix 
operating trust rejected the SLA 
proposed by BDC and have proposed a 
revised SLA. Officers have now 
completed the review of the documents 
to identify discrepancy and will be 
meeting with the portfolio holder in May 
to agree our position prior to re opening 
discussion on this matter. We expect the 
SLA to be signed off in July (i.e. 2009/10 
Improvement Plan). 

P
age 60



Exception Report for April 2009 Improvement Plan                                     Appendix 1 

Last Updated on 17/06/2009 16:14 
 

11 

 
 
 

FP1: Value for Money 
Ref  April 2009 Action Colour  Corrective Action  Who  Original 

Date 
 

Revised 
Date 

6.2.6 Quarterly report to PMB to assess the 
effectiveness of the alternative 
methods of service delivery e.g.- 
transfer to leisure trust, payroll service 
provision 

 Due to delays in payroll transfer report on effectiveness to 
be prepared when service has run for 12 months (Sept 
09). Leisure trust no longer to be delivered by trust. 

JLP Apr-09 Sep-09 

Ref. Action Lead 

Ju
ly

 

A
u
g
. 

S
ep

. 

O
ct

. 

N
o
v.

 

D
ec

. 

Ja
n
. 

F
eb

. 

M
ar

. 

A
p
r.

 

M
ay

 

Ju
n
e Corrective Action 

6.2 Alternative methods of service delivery, to include revisiting the shared services/ joint working agenda 
 

6.2.6 Quarterly report to PMB to 
assess the effectiveness of 
the alternative methods of 
service delivery e.g.- 
transfer to leisure trust, 
payroll service provision 

JLP             Due to delays in payroll transfer report 
on effectiveness to be prepared when 
service has run for 12 months ( Sept 09). 
Leisure trust no longer to be  delivered 
by trust.  This action therefore needs to 
be suspended and re-programmed to the 
new improvement plan. 

P
age 61



Exception Report for April 2009 Improvement Plan                                     Appendix 1 

Last Updated on 17/06/2009 16:14 
 

12 

 
 
 

FP3: Financial Strategy 
Ref  April 2009 Action Colour  Corrective Action  Who  Original 

Date 
 

Revised 
Date 

8.1.4 Market test treasury advisors to 
ensure VFM achieved 

 Due to advice and support received from current service 
providers and the current economic climate of investments 
it has been agreed to defer the market testing to April 10. 

JLP Apr-09 May-09 

Ref. Action Lead 

Ju
ly

 

A
u
g
. 

S
ep

. 

O
ct

. 

N
o
v.

 

D
ec

. 

Ja
n
. 

F
eb

. 

M
ar

. 

A
p
r.

 

M
ay

 

Ju
n
e Corrective Action 

8.1 Treasury Management 
 

8.1.4 Market test treasury 
advisors to ensure VFM 
achieved 

JLP        
 

     Due to advice and support received from 
current service providers and the current 
economic climate of investments it has 
been agreed to defer the market testing 
to April 10.  This action therefore needs 
to be suspended and re-programmed to 
the new Improvement Plan. 

P
age 62



Exception Report for April 2009 Improvement Plan                                     Appendix 1 

Last Updated on 17/06/2009 16:14 
 

13 

 
 

FP3: Financial Strategy 
Ref  April 2009 Action Colour  Corrective Action  Who  Original 

Date 
 

Revised 
Date 

8.2.3 Commitment accounting reports 
available for budget holders 

 The reports for commitments will be in place for year 
end and included in future financial budget 
monitoring reports.     

JLP Sep-08 Jun-09 

Ref. Action Lead 

Ju
ly

 

A
u
g
. 

S
ep

. 

O
ct

. 

N
o
v.

 

D
ec

. 

Ja
n
. 

F
eb

. 

M
ar

. 

A
p
r.

 

M
ay

 

Ju
n
e Corrective Action 

8.2 Implement the Purchase Ordering Processing System 
 

8.2.3 Commitment accounting 
reports available for budget 
holders 

JLP        
 

     Due to delays in final implementation the 
reports for commitments will be in place 
for year end ( April 09) and will be 
included in 1st quarter monitoring 
statements ( end June 2009). 

PR5: Planning 
Ref April 2009 Action Colour Corrective Action Who Original 

Date 
Revised 

Date 
14.5.
1 

Maintain training programme every 12 
weeks 

 Recruitment of Principal Planner to this role will 
enable this area to be addressed. 

DH Dec 08 June 09 
 

Ref. Action Lead 

Ju
ly

 

A
u
g
. 

S
ep

. 

O
ct

. 

N
o
v.

 

D
ec

. 

Ja
n
. 

F
eb

. 

M
ar

. 

A
p
r.

 

M
ay

 

Ju
n
e Corrective Action 

14.5 Maintain Greenbelt through enforcement and upheld appeals 
14.5.1 Maintain training 

programme every 12 weeks 
DH             Next training event to cover enforcement. 

Recruitment of Principal Planner to this 
role will enable this area to be addressed 
– Interviews have taken place and 
appointment made. Start date 15th June 
2009. 

P
age 63



Exception Report for April 2009 Improvement Plan                                     Appendix 1 

Last Updated on 17/06/2009 16:14 
 

14 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 

HR & OD 2: Modernisation 
Ref April 2009 Action Colour Corrective Action Who Original 

Date 
Revised 

Date 
16.1.
5 

Workforce skills audit  The original approach to this audit (on which we took 
external advice) has not produced the required 
information.  We are currently re-thinking our 
approach, which needs careful consideration within 
the context of shared services and Single Status. 

HP Mar 09 TBC 
 

Ref. Action Lead 

Ju
ly

 

A
u
g
. 

S
ep

. 

O
ct

. 

N
o
v.

 

D
ec

. 

Ja
n
. 

F
eb

. 

M
ar

. 

A
p
r.

 

M
ay

 

Ju
n
e Corrective Action 

16.1 Workforce Planning  
16.1.5 Workforce skills audit  HP             Currently re-thinking approach.. 

P
age 64



  

BROMSGROVE DISTRICT COUNCIL 
 

CABINET 
 

1ST JULY 2009 
 
NEW IMPROVEMENT PLAN 2009-2010 
 
Responsible Portfolio Holder  Cllr. Roger Hollingworth, Portfolio 

Holder for the Improvement Plan 
Responsible Head of Service Hugh Bennett,  

Assistant Chief Executive 
Non-Key Decision 
 
1.  SUMMARY 
 
1.1 To provide the Cabinet with a draft version of the new Improvement Plan 

2009-10 for consideration (Attached as Appendix 1). 
 
2. RECOMMENDATION  
 
2.1 That the Cabinet consider the actions and timescales Heads of Service 

submitted for inclusion in the draft Improvement Plan and recommend any 
alterations, additions or amendments that should be made to the 
Improvement Plan before it becomes live in July 2009.  

 
3. BACKGROUND 
 
3.1 The new Improvement Plan is based on the key deliverables and outcome 

measures detailed in the Council Plan 2009-10. It is monitored each month 
on an exception basis and focuses on Council delivery across the Council’s 
priorities and across financial, process and human resources perspectives. 
As was the case in 2008-09, Heads of Service have been asked to populate 
the Improvement Plan with the major actions that will be undertaken by their 
service in the 12 months from July 2009.  CMT should therefore ensure that 
all major areas of work are covered by the Improvement Plan in sufficient 
detail, and that appropriate and realistic timescales are allocated.   

   
 
4. FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 
 
4.1 There are no financial implications. The Council’s priorities were set in 

September 2008 and budget bids (included as actions on the Improvement 
Plan where appropriate) were decided as part of the 2008-09 budget round.  
The Improvement Plan details the resource available for each action. 
 

5. LEGAL IMPLICATIONS 
 

Agenda Item 12

Page 65



 

5.1 There are no legal implications associated with the development of the new 
Improvement Plan. 

 
6. COUNCIL OBJECTIVES 
 
6.1   The Improvement Plan outlines delivery activities for the coming year in all 

of the Council’s objectives and priority areas. 
 
7. RISK MANAGEMENT 
 
7.1 The risks associated with the Improvement Plan are covered in the CCPP 

departmental risk register. Specific corporate risks are related to the 
Improvement Plan in the following ways: 

 
Corporate Risk Title Improvement Plan Reference 
KO1: Effective Financial Management 
and Internal Control 

FP1: Managing Finances 
FP2: Governing the Business 
FP3: Managing Resources 

KO2: Effective corporate leadership FP1: Managing Finances 
FP2: Governing the Business 
FP3: Managing Resources 
FP4: Managing Performance 
PR2: Political Governance 

KO3: Effective  Member / Officer 
relations 

PR2: Political Governance 
HROD1:  Learning & Development 

KO4: Effective Member / Member 
relations 

PR2: Political Governance 
HROD1:  Learning & Development 

KO5*: Full compliance with the Civil 
Contingencies Act and effective 
Business Continuity 

FP2: Governing the Business 

KO6: Maximising the benefits of 
investment in ICT equipment and 
training 

PR1: Customer Processes 
 

KO7: Effective partnership working PR4: Improved Partnership 
Working 

KO8: Effective communications 
(internal and external) 

PR1: Customer Processes 
FP1: Managing Finances 
FP4: Managing Performance  

KO9: Equalities and diversity agenda 
embedded across the Authority 

CP3: Sense of Community 
FP4: Managing Performance 

KO10: Appropriate investment in 
employee development and training 

FP3: Managing Resources 
HROD1:  Learning & Development 
HROD2:  Modernisation 
HROD3: Positive Employee Climate 

KO11: Effective employee recruitment 
and retention 

FP3: Managing Resources 
HROD2: Modernisation 
HROD3: Positive Employee Climate 

KO12: Full compliance with all Health 
and Safety legislation 

FP2: Governing the Business 
HROD2: Modernisation 

Page 66



 

HROD3: Positive Employee Climate 
KO13: Effective two tier working and 
Community Engagement 

CP3: Sense of Community 
PR4: Improved Partnership 

Working 
KO14: Successful implementation of 
Job Evaluation 

HROD2: Modernisation 
 

KO15: All Council data is accurate and 
of high quality 

FP1: Managing Finances 
FP4: Managing Performance  
PR1: Customer Processes 
HROD4 – Performance culture 

KO16: The Council no longer in 
recovery 

FP1 – Value for Money 
FP4: Managing Performance 

KO17: Effective Projects Management FP1: Managing Finances 
FP4: Managing Performance  
PR1: Customer Processes 

KO19: Effective Business and 
Performance Management 

FP2: Governing the Business 
FP4: Managing Performance  

KO20: Effective Customer Focused 
Authority 

CP3: Sense of Community 
PR1: Customer Processes 

 
* KO5 and KO18 have been merged 

 
  
8. CUSTOMER IMPLICATIONS 
 
8.1  The Improvement Plan will have an affect on internal customers in particular 

as they will be responsible for delivering the actions within the timescales 
allocated.  Non-delivery or delayed delivery of actions is likely to result in 
more focussed attention on that are by elected Members, and in the context 
of the CAA inspection, the scrutiny of inspectors. 

 
9. EQUALITIES AND DIVERSITY IMPLICATIONS 
 
9.1 Please see sections CP3 and FP4 of the Improvement Plan 

 
10. VALUE FOR MONEY IMPLICATIONS 
 
10.1 Sections FP1-FP4 of the new Improvement Plan cover actions that will 

address Value for Money implications. 
 
11. OTHER IMPLICATIONS 
 

Procurement Issues: See Section FP2 of the Improvement Plan. 
Personnel Implications: See Sections HROD1-HROD3 of the 
Improvement Plan.  
Governance/Performance Management:  See Sections FP2, FP4, and 
PR2 of the Improvement Plan. 
Community Safety including Section 17 of Crime and Disorder Act 
1998:  See section CP3 of the Improvement Plan 

Page 67



 

Policy:  All sections of the Improvement Plan relate to this. 
Environmental:  See sections CP4 and PR4 of the Improvement Plan. 

 
 
12. OTHERS CONSULTED ON THE REPORT 
 

Portfolio Holder 
 

No 

Chief Executive 
 

At CMT 

Executive Director - Partnerships and Projects  
 

At CMT 

Executive Director - Services 
 

At CMT 

Assistant Chief Executive 
 

Yes 

Head of Service 
 

Yes 

Head of Financial Services 
 

At CMT 

Head of Legal, Equalities & Democratic 
Services 
 

At CMT 

Head of Organisational Development & HR 
 

At CMT 

Corporate Procurement Team 
 

No 

 
13. WARDS AFFECTED 
 

All Wards 
 
14. APPENDICES 
 
 Appendix 1 Draft Improvement Plan 2009-10 
  
 
15. BACKGROUND PAPERS 
 
 None  
 

CONTACT OFFICER 
Name:   Rebecca Dunne  
E Mail:  r.dunne@bromsgrove.gov.uk 
Tel:       (01527) 881616 

 

Page 68



Im
p
ro
ve
m
en
t 
P
la
n
: 
T
em

p
la
te
   
   
   

20
09
/1
0 
D
ra
ft
 V
er
si
o
n
   
 

   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
  

 
1 

Im
pr
ov
em
en
t P
la
n 
G
ui
da
nc
e 

   
G
re
y 
= 
P
ro
g
ra
m
m
ed
 d
at
es
 

T
hi
s 
is
 th
e 
pl
an
ne
d 
tim
es
ca
le
 fo
r 
th
e 
ac
tio
n-
 T
H
E
S
E
 A
R
E
 F
IX
E
D
 A
N
D
 S
H
O
U
LD
 N
O
T
 B
E
 A
LT
E
R
E
D
 / 
D
E
LE
T
E
D
 

 
 

G
re
en
 =
 O
n
 t
ar
g
et
 

T
he
 a
ct
io
n 
is
 o
n 
ta
rg
et
. 

 
 

A
m
b
er
 =
 O
n
e 
m
o
n
th
 b
eh
in
d
 

T
he
 a
ct
io
n 
is
 o
ne
 m
on
th
 b
eh
in
d 
sc
he
du
le
. 

 
 

R
ed
 =
 O
ve
r 
o
n
e 
m
o
n
th
 b
eh
in
d
 

T
he
 a
ct
io
n 
is
 o
ve
r 
on
e 
m
on
th
 b
eh
in
d 
sc
he
du
le
. 

 
 

H
as
h
in
g
 =
 R
ep
ro
g
ra
m
m
ed
 / 
ex
te
n
d
ed
 / 
re
vi
se
d
 

T
hi
s 
is
 to
 b
e 
us
ed
 to
 s
ho
w
 a
ny
 n
ew
 d
at
es
 fo
r 
an
 a
ct
io
n,
 w
he
th
er
 th
at
 is
 b
ec
au
se
 it
 h
as
 b
ee
n 
re
pr
og
ra
m
m
ed
 to
 a
 la
te
r 
da
te
 in
 

th
e 
ye
ar
 o
r 
ex
te
nd
ed
 b
y 
a 
se
t p
er
io
d.
 T
h
is
 r
eq
u
ir
es
 a
p
p
ro
va
l. 

 
B
lu
e 
= 
S
u
sp
en
d
ed
 

T
hi
s 
is
 w
he
re
 a
n 
ac
tio
n 
ha
s 
be
en
 s
us
pe
nd
ed
 c
om
pl
et
el
y 
fo
r 
th
e 
pe
rio
d 
co
ve
re
d 
by
 th
e 
Im
pr
ov
em
en
t P
la
n.
 T
h
is
 r
eq
u
ir
es
 

ap
p
ro
va
l. 

  

o
 
In
 th
e 
‘S
ta
tu
s 
/ C
or
re
ct
iv
e 
A
ct
io
n’
 c
ol
um
n,
 y
ou
 s
ho
ul
d 
in
cl
ud
e 
an
y 
re
le
va
nt
 in
fo
rm
at
io
n 
th
at
 w
ill
 a
id
 th
e 
re
ad
er
.  

o
 
H
ow
ev
er
, f
or
 a
ll 
ac
tio
ns
 th
at
 a
re
 e
ith
er
 a
m
be
r 
or
 r
ed
, y
ou
 s
ho
ul
d 
in
cl
ud
e 
a 
co
m
m
en
t a
s 
to
 w
hy
 th
e 
ac
tio
n 
ha
s 
fa
lle
n 
be
hi
nd
 

tim
es
ca
le
 a
n
d
 a
 b
rie
f p
la
n 
of
 w
ha
t y
ou
 in
te
nd
 to
 d
o 
to
 a
dd
re
ss
 th
e 
si
tu
at
io
n.
  

o
 
A
ls
o 
in
 th
e 
‘S
ta
tu
s 
/ C
or
re
ct
iv
e 
A
ct
io
n’
 c
ol
um
n,
 p
le
as
e 
cl
ea
rly
 s
ta
te
 (
in
 c
ap
ita
l l
et
te
rs
) 
at
 th
e 
st
ar
t o
f a
ny
 c
om
m
en
t i
f t
he
 a
ct
io
n 

ha
s 
be
en
 S
U
S
P
E
N
D
E
D
, R
E
P
R
O
G
R
A
M
M
E
D
, E
X
T
E
N
D
E
D
 o
r 
is
 C
O
M
P
LE
T
E
. 

o
 
P
le
as
e 
en
su
re
 th
at
 if
 a
n 
ac
tio
n 
is
 d
ep
en
de
nt
 o
n 
a 
pr
ev
io
us
 a
ct
io
n 
th
at
 h
as
 b
ee
n 
de
la
ye
d,
 th
at
 th
is
 is
 r
ef
le
ct
ed
 in
 th
e 
st
at
us
 

up
da
te
. 

Page 69



Im
p
ro
ve
m
en
t 
P
la
n
: 
T
em

p
la
te
   
   
   

20
09
/1
0 
D
ra
ft
 V
er
si
o
n
   
 

   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
  

 
2 

P
ri
o
ri
ty
 C
P
1:
 T
o
w
n
 C
en
tr
e 

1 
E
xp
ec
te
d
 O
u
tc
o
m
e 

R
eg
en
er
at
io
n
 o
f 
th
e 
T
o
w
n
 C
en
tr
e 

R
ef
. 

M
ea
su
re
s 
o
f 
S
u
cc
es
s 

A
ct
io
n
s 
R
eq
u
ir
ed
 

T
im
es
ca
le
s 

L
ea
d
 

R
es
o
u
rc
es
 

1.
1 

A
gr
ee
m
en
t o
n 
pr
ef
er
re
d 

op
tio
n 
of
 A
re
a 
A
ct
io
n 
P
la
n 

C
om
pl
et
e 
ev
id
en
ce
-b
as
ed
 

un
ifi
ed
 v
is
io
n 

 C
on
du
ct
 fu
rt
he
r 
co
ns
ul
ta
tio
n 

w
ith
 k
ey
 s
ta
ke
ho
ld
er
s 

30
 J
un
e 
20
09
 

  
30
 S
ep
te
m
be
r 
20
09
 

P
S
 

T
ow
n 
C
en
tr
e 

R
eg
en
er
at
io
n 
P
ar
tn
er
sh
ip
 

1.
2 

D
es
ig
n 
fo
r 
H
ig
h 
S
tr
ee
t  

W
rit
e 
br
ie
f f
or
 d
es
ig
n 

sc
he
m
e 
an
d 
ap
pr
oa
ch
 

ar
ch
ite
ct
s 

 Id
en
tif
y 
an
d 
ap
pr
oa
ch
 

fu
nd
er
s 
an
d 
pr
ep
ar
e 
bi
ds
 

 

30
 S
ep
te
m
be
r 
20
09
 

   
30
 S
ep
te
m
be
r 
20
09
 

P
S
 

T
ow
n 
C
en
tr
e 

R
eg
en
er
at
io
n 
P
ar
tn
er
sh
ip
 

1.
3 

R
ed
ev
el
op
m
en
t o
f t
he
 

M
ar
ke
t H
al
l s
ite
 

R
ea
ch
 a
gr
ee
m
en
t, 
cl
os
e 

M
ar
ke
t H
al
l a
nd
 r
el
oc
at
e 

m
ar
ke
t t
o 
an
 o
ut
do
or
 s
ite
 o
n 

th
e 
H
ig
h 
S
tr
ee
t 

31
 D
ec
em
be
r 
20
09
 

P
S
 

T
ow
n 
C
en
tr
e 

R
eg
en
er
at
io
n 
P
ar
tn
er
sh
ip
 

1.
4 

C
om
m
un
ity
 e
ng
ag
em
en
t 

C
re
at
io
n 
of
 s
ta
ke
ho
ld
er
 

fo
ru
m
 

 P
ro
du
ce
 C
om
m
un
ity
 

E
ng
ag
em
en
t S
tr
at
eg
y 
fo
r 

pr
oj
ec
t 

1 
A
pr
il 
20
09
 o
nw
ar
ds
 

  
1 
A
pr
il 
20
09
 o
nw
ar
ds
 

P
S
 

R
eg
en
er
at
io
n 

P
ro
gr
am
m
e 
C
or
e 

op
er
at
io
ns
 g
ro
up
 

  

Page 70



Im
p
ro
ve
m
en
t 
P
la
n
: 
T
em

p
la
te
   
   
   

20
09
/1
0 
D
ra
ft
 V
er
si
o
n
   
 

   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
  

 
3 

R
ef
. 

A
ct
io
n
 

L
ea
d
 

July 

Aug. 

Sep. 

Oct. 

Nov. 

Dec. 

Jan. 

Feb. 

Mar. 

Apr. 

May 

June 

S
ta
tu
s 
/ C
o
rr
ec
ti
ve
 A
ct
io
n
 

1.
1.
 

A
g
re
em

en
t 
o
n
 p
re
fe
rr
ed
 o
p
ti
o
n
 o
f 
A
re
a 
A
ct
io
n
 P
la
n
 

1.
1.
1 

 
E
ng
ag
e 
sp
ec
ia
lis
t 

or
ga
ni
sa
tio
n 
to
 c
om
pl
et
e 

un
ifi
ed
 v
is
io
n 

P
S
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

1.
1.
2 

D
ra
w
 to
ge
th
er
 th
e 
un
ifi
ed
 

vi
si
on
 a
nd
 th
e 
is
su
es
 a
nd
 

op
tio
ns
 d
at
a 

P
S
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

1.
1.
3 

P
re
pa
re
 th
e 
pr
ef
er
re
d 

op
tio
n 
 

P
S
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

1.
2.
 

D
es
ig
n
 f
o
r 
H
ig
h
 S
tr
ee
t 
 

1.
2.
1 

D
ra
w
 u
p 
pr
op
os
al
 fo
r 

fu
nd
in
g 
to
 s
up
po
rt
 d
es
ig
n 

w
or
k 

P
S
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

1.
2.
2 

S
ec
ur
e 
fu
nd
in
g 
fo
r 
de
si
gn
 

w
or
k 

P
S
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

1.
2.
3 

T
en
de
r 
fo
r 
de
si
gn
 

or
ga
ni
sa
tio
n 

P
S
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

1.
2.
4 

A
pp
oi
nt
 d
es
ig
n 

or
ga
ni
sa
tio
n 

P
S
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

1.
2.
5 

P
la
ns
 fo
r 
de
si
gn
 p
re
pa
re
d 

P
S
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
1.
2.
6 

C
om
m
en
ce
 id
en
tif
ic
at
io
n 

of
 fu
nd
in
g 

P
S
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

1.
3 

R
ed
ev
el
o
p
m
en
t 
o
f 
th
e 
M
ar
ke
t 
H
al
l s
it
e 

1.
3.
1 

P
re
pa
re
 r
ep
or
t o
n 
fu
tu
re
 

fo
r 
M
ar
ke
t H
al
l s
ite
 

P
S
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

1.
3.
2 

P
re
se
nt
 r
ep
or
t t
o 
T
ow
n 

C
en
tr
e 
S
te
er
in
g 
G
ro
up
 

P
S
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

1.
3.
3 

U
nd
er
ta
ke
 a
ct
io
ns
 

re
co
m
m
en
de
d 
in
 r
ep
or
t 

P
S
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

1.
4 

C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y 
en
g
ag
em

en
t 

1.
4.
1 

D
ra
w
 u
p 
st
ak
eh
ol
de
r 

m
em
be
rs
hi
p 
fo
r 
fo
ru
m
   

P
S
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

1.
4.
2 

E
st
ab
lis
h 
da
te
s 
fo
r 
 

P
S
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

Page 71



Im
p
ro
ve
m
en
t 
P
la
n
: 
T
em

p
la
te
   
   
   

20
09
/1
0 
D
ra
ft
 V
er
si
o
n
   
 

   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
  

 
4 

R
ef
. 

A
ct
io
n
 

L
ea
d
 

July 

Aug. 

Sep. 

Oct. 

Nov. 

Dec. 

Jan. 

Feb. 

Mar. 

Apr. 

May 

June 

S
ta
tu
s 
/ C
o
rr
ec
ti
ve
 A
ct
io
n
 

m
ee
tin
gs
 a
 y
ea
r 
ah
ea
d 

1.
4.
3 

C
on
ve
ne
 fi
rs
t m
ee
tin
g 

P
S
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

1.
4.
4 

H
ol
d 
m
ee
tin
gs
 

P
S
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
1.
4.
5 

E
st
ab
lis
h 
Le
is
ur
e 
C
en
tr
e 

S
tu
dy
 G
ro
up
 

P
S
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

1.
4.
6 

E
st
ab
lis
h 
P
ro
po
se
d 
C
iv
ic
 

C
en
tr
e 
S
tu
dy
 G
ro
up
 

P
S
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

1.
5 

T
ra
in
 S
ta
ti
o
n
 

1.
5.
1 

F
un
di
ng
 p
ac
ka
ge
 s
ec
ur
ed
. 

H
B
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
1.
5.
2 

P
ub
lic
 c
on
su
lta
tio
n 

co
m
pl
et
e.
 

H
B
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

1.
5.
3 

P
la
nn
in
g 
pe
rm
is
si
on
 

ob
ta
in
ed
 

H
B
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

1.
5.
4 

W
or
k 
on
 s
ite
 c
om
m
en
ce
s.
 

H
B
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
1.
6 

T
ra
n
sp
o
rt
 &
 A
cc
es
s 

1.
6.
1 

H
ol
d 
di
sc
us
si
on
 w
ith
 

C
ou
nt
y 
C
ou
nc
il 
ab
ou
t 

m
ul
ti-
m
od
al
 s
tu
dy
 

P
S
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

1.
6.
2 

C
om
m
is
si
on
 m
ul
ti-
m
od
al
 

st
ud
y 

P
S
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

1.
6.
3 

P
ro
du
ce
 m
ul
ti-
m
od
al
 

re
po
rt
 

P
S
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

  P
ri
o
ri
ty
 C
P
2:
 H
o
u
si
n
g
  

2 
E
xp
ec
te
d
 O
u
tc
o
m
e 

D
el
iv
er
y 
o
f 
H
o
u
si
n
g
 S
tr
at
eg
y 

R
ef
. 

M
ea
su
re
s 
o
f 
S
u
cc
es
s 

A
ct
io
n
s 
R
eq
u
ir
ed
 

T
im
es
ca
le
s 

L
ea
d
 

R
es
o
u
rc
es
 

2 
.1
 

 

A
ffo
rd
ab
le
 h
ou
si
ng
 

S
up
po
rt
 a
nd
 e
na
bl
e 

ap
pl
ic
at
io
ns
 fo
r 
af
fo
rd
ab
le
 

ho
us
in
g 
on
 a
pp
ro
ve
d 
si
te
 in
 

31
 M
ar
ch
 2
01
2 

 
S
tr
at
eg
ic
 H
ou
si
ng
; 

P
rin
ci
pl
e 
R
S
L 
P
ar
tn
er
 

Page 72



Im
p
ro
ve
m
en
t 
P
la
n
: 
T
em

p
la
te
   
   
   

20
09
/1
0 
D
ra
ft
 V
er
si
o
n
   
 

   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
  

 
5 

P
ri
o
ri
ty
 C
P
2:
 H
o
u
si
n
g
  

2 
E
xp
ec
te
d
 O
u
tc
o
m
e 

D
el
iv
er
y 
o
f 
H
o
u
si
n
g
 S
tr
at
eg
y 

R
ef
. 

M
ea
su
re
s 
o
f 
S
u
cc
es
s 

A
ct
io
n
s 
R
eq
u
ir
ed
 

T
im
es
ca
le
s 

L
ea
d
 

R
es
o
u
rc
es
 

ac
co
rd
an
ce
 w
ith
 C
or
e 

S
tr
at
eg
y 
an
d 
R
S
S
 a
llo
ca
tio
n.
 

 U
til
is
e 
re
su
lts
 fr
om
 H
ou
si
ng
 

M
ar
ke
t A
ss
es
sm
en
t a
nd
 

O
ld
er
 P
er
so
ns
 H
ou
si
ng
 a
nd
 

S
up
po
rt
 N
ee
ds
 S
ur
ve
y 
to
 

id
en
tif
y 
ho
us
in
g 
ne
ed
s 
an
d 

gu
id
e 
af
fo
rd
ab
le
 h
ou
si
ng
 

de
ve
lo
pm
en
t. 

C
on
su
lta
tio
n 
G
ro
up
 

2.
2 

H
om
el
es
sn
es
s 
pr
ev
en
tio
n 

an
d 
re
du
ct
io
n 
in
 th
e 
us
e 
of
 

te
m
po
ra
ry
 a
cc
om
m
od
at
io
n  

 

C
on
tin
ue
 to
 m
on
ito
r 
an
d 

su
pp
or
t t
he
 e
ffe
ct
iv
en
es
s 
of
 

P
ar
tn
er
sh
ip
 h
om
el
es
sn
es
s 

pr
ev
en
tio
n 
se
rv
ic
es
 

 Im
pl
em
en
t m
or
tg
ag
e 
re
sc
ue
 

sc
he
m
e 

31
 M
ar
ch
 2
01
2 

    1s
t  A
pr
il 
20
09
 o
nw
ar
ds
 

 
S
tr
at
eg
ic
 H
ou
si
ng
 T
ea
m
; 

R
S
L 
P
ar
tn
er
s;
 C
A
B
; 

B
D
H
T
; B
Y
H
T
 

2.
3 

P
riv
at
e 
se
ct
or
 h
ou
si
ng
 

O
ng
oi
ng
 im
pr
ov
em
en
t i
n 

de
liv
er
y 
tim
e 
fo
r 
D
is
ab
le
d 

F
ac
ili
tie
s 
G
ra
nt
s 

31
 M
ar
ch
 2
01
2 

 
P
riv
at
e 
S
ec
to
r 
T
ea
m
; C
ar
e 

an
d 
R
ep
ai
r 
ag
en
cy
,  

  R
ef
. 

A
ct
io
n
 

L
ea
d
 

July 

Aug. 

Sep. 

Oct. 

Nov. 

Dec. 

Jan. 

Feb. 

Mar. 

Apr. 

May 

June 

S
ta
tu
s 
/ C
o
rr
ec
ti
ve
 A
ct
io
n
 

2.
1.
 

A
ff
o
rd
ab
le
 h
o
u
si
n
g
 

2.
1.
1 

D
et
er
m
in
e 
pl
an
ni
ng
 

D
H
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

Page 73



Im
p
ro
ve
m
en
t 
P
la
n
: 
T
em

p
la
te
   
   
   

20
09
/1
0 
D
ra
ft
 V
er
si
o
n
   
 

   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
  

 
6 

R
ef
. 

A
ct
io
n
 

L
ea
d
 

July 

Aug. 

Sep. 

Oct. 

Nov. 

Dec. 

Jan. 

Feb. 

Mar. 

Apr. 

May 

June 

S
ta
tu
s 
/ C
o
rr
ec
ti
ve
 A
ct
io
n
 

ap
pl
ic
at
io
ns
 o
n 
th
ei
r 
m
er
its
 

ha
vi
ng
 r
eg
ar
d 
to
 th
e 

D
ev
el
op
m
en
t P
la
n 
an
d 

ot
he
r 
m
at
er
ia
l 

co
ns
id
er
at
io
ns
 

2.
1.
2 

Id
en
tif
y 
pu
bl
ic
 a
nd
 

pr
iv
at
el
y 
ow
ne
d 
si
te
s 

su
ita
bl
e 
fo
r 
af
fo
rd
ab
le
 

ho
us
in
g,
 li
ai
se
 w
ith
 

pr
ef
er
re
d 
pa
rt
ne
r 
R
S
Ls
 

an
d 
su
pp
or
t b
id
s 
fo
r 

fu
nd
in
g 
to
 th
e 
H
om
es
 &
 

C
om
m
un
iti
es
 A
ge
nc
y.
  

A
C
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

2.
1.
3 

Q
ua
rt
er
ly
 r
e-
as
se
ss
m
en
t 

of
 th
e 
vi
ab
ili
ty
 a
nd
 

pr
oj
ec
te
d 
de
liv
er
y 
of
 

pi
pe
lin
e 
sc
he
m
es
 a
nd
 

up
da
te
 o
f p
ro
gr
es
s 
ag
ai
ns
t 

th
e 
LA
A
 ta
rg
et
.  

A
C
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

2.
1.
4 

U
til
is
e 
da
ta
 fr
om
 H
M
A
 a
nd
 

H
ou
si
ng
 a
nd
 S
up
po
rt
 

N
ee
ds
 o
f O
ld
er
 P
er
so
ns
 

re
se
ar
ch
 to
 a
ct
 a
s 
fr
on
t 

lo
ad
in
g 
ev
id
en
ce
 to
 ju
st
ify
 

af
fo
rd
ab
le
 h
ou
si
ng
 w
ith
in
 

th
e 
ev
ol
vi
ng
 L
oc
al
 

de
ve
lo
pm
en
t F
ra
m
ew
or
k 

an
d 
Lo
ng
br
id
ge
 

re
de
ve
lo
pm
en
t s
ch
em
e.
 

A
C
/M
D
 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

2.
2.
 

H
o
m
el
es
sn
es
s 
p
re
ve
n
ti
o
n
 &
 r
ed
u
ct
io
n
 in
 u
se
 o
f 
te
m
p
o
ra
ry
 a
cc
o
m
m
o
d
at
io
n
 

2.
2.
1 

C
on
tin
ue
 to
 m
on
ito
r 

ef
fe
ct
iv
en
es
s 
of
 

pa
rt
ne
rs
hi
p 
ho
m
el
es
sn
es
s 

pr
ev
en
tio
n 
se
rv
ic
es
 a
nd
 

A
C
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

Page 74



Im
p
ro
ve
m
en
t 
P
la
n
: 
T
em

p
la
te
   
   
   

20
09
/1
0 
D
ra
ft
 V
er
si
o
n
   
 

   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
  

 
7 

R
ef
. 

A
ct
io
n
 

L
ea
d
 

July 

Aug. 

Sep. 

Oct. 

Nov. 

Dec. 

Jan. 

Feb. 

Mar. 

Apr. 

May 

June 

S
ta
tu
s 
/ C
o
rr
ec
ti
ve
 A
ct
io
n
 

en
ha
nc
e 
w
he
re
 p
os
si
bl
e 
to
 

m
ai
nt
ai
n 
us
e 
of
 te
m
po
ra
ry
 

ac
co
m
m
od
at
io
n 
at
 b
el
ow
 

G
ov
er
nm
en
t t
ar
ge
ts
.  

2.
2.
2 

S
et
 u
p 
a 
M
or
tg
ag
e 
R
es
cu
e 

T
as
k 
G
ro
up
 to
 a
dv
is
e 

up
on
 th
e 
ef
fe
ct
iv
e 

op
er
at
io
n 
of
 th
e 
M
or
tg
ag
e 

R
es
cu
e 
S
ch
em
e,
 th
e 

de
ve
lo
pm
en
t o
f a
 

M
or
tg
ag
e 
R
es
cu
e 
A
ct
io
n 

P
la
n 
an
d 
m
ak
e 

re
co
m
m
en
da
tio
ns
 

re
ga
rd
in
g 
us
e 
of
 E
co
no
m
ic
 

D
ow
nt
ur
n 
fu
nd
in
g.
  

A
C
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

2.
2.
3 

A
na
ly
se
 th
e 
fin
an
ci
al
 

pr
of
ile
 o
f c
lie
nt
s 
ac
ce
ss
in
g 

th
e 
C
A
B
 F
in
an
ci
al
 A
dv
is
er
 

fo
r 
O
w
ne
r 
O
cc
up
ie
rs
 to
 

gu
id
e 
w
he
re
 p
os
si
bl
e 
a 

lo
ca
l r
es
po
ns
e 
to
 c
ha
ng
in
g 

ne
ed
s 
at
tr
ib
ut
ed
 to
 th
e 

ec
on
om
ic
 d
ow
nt
ur
n.
  

A
C
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

2.
3 
 

P
ri
va
te
 s
ec
to
r 
h
o
u
si
n
g
 

2.
3.
1 

S
tr
at
eg
ic
 H
ou
si
ng
 

M
an
ag
er
 a
nd
 P
S
 T
ea
m
 

Le
ad
er
 to
 u
nd
er
ta
ke
 L
ea
n 

M
an
ag
em
en
t t
ra
in
in
g 

N
V
Q
. 

A
C
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

2.
3.
2 

U
nd
er
ta
ke
 L
ea
n 
S
ys
te
m
s 

P
ilo
t o
n 
D
F
G
 p
ro
ce
ss
. 

A
C
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

2.
3.
3 

C
om
pl
et
e 
im
pl
em
en
ta
tio
n 

of
 C
on
tr
ac
to
r 
P
ro
cu
re
m
en
t 

F
ra
m
ew
or
k 
fo
r 
le
ve
l 

A
C
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

Page 75



Im
p
ro
ve
m
en
t 
P
la
n
: 
T
em

p
la
te
   
   
   

20
09
/1
0 
D
ra
ft
 V
er
si
o
n
   
 

   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
  

 
8 

R
ef
. 

A
ct
io
n
 

L
ea
d
 

July 

Aug. 

Sep. 

Oct. 

Nov. 

Dec. 

Jan. 

Feb. 

Mar. 

Apr. 

May 

June 

S
ta
tu
s 
/ C
o
rr
ec
ti
ve
 A
ct
io
n
 

ac
ce
ss
 s
ho
w
er
s.
 

2.
3.
4 

Im
pl
em
en
t i
m
pr
ov
em
en
t 

an
d 
ef
fic
ie
nc
y 
m
ea
su
re
s 

id
en
tif
ie
d 
fr
om
 th
e 
Le
an
 

S
ys
te
m
s 
P
ilo
t. 
 

A
C
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

  P
ri
o
ri
ty
 C
P
3:
 S
en
se
 o
f 
C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y 

3.
 

E
xp
ec
te
d
 O
u
tc
o
m
e 

Im
p
ro
ve
d
 C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y 
C
o
h
es
io
n
 

R
ef
. 

M
ea
su
re
s 
o
f 
S
u
cc
es
s 

A
ct
io
n
s 
R
eq
u
ir
ed
 

T
im
es
ca
le
s 

L
ea
d
 

R
es
o
u
rc
es
 

3.
1 

 

S
at
is
fa
ct
io
n 
w
ith
 e
ve
nt
s 

pr
og
ra
m
m
e 

R
ev
is
e 
ev
en
ts
 p
ro
gr
am
m
e 
to
 

ex
te
nd
 c
ov
er
ag
e 
th
ro
ug
ho
ut
 

D
is
tr
ic
t 

 R
ol
l o
ut
 e
ve
nt
s 
fa
ci
lit
at
io
n 

pa
ck
 to
 p
ar
tn
er
s 
an
d 
lo
ca
l 

or
ga
ni
sa
tio
ns
 

 

30
 S
ep
te
m
be
r 
20
09
 

 
  

31
 M
ar
ch
 2
01
2 

 
S
tr
ee
t S
ce
ne
 a
nd
 

C
om
m
un
ity
 S
er
vi
ce
s 

 

3.
2 

R
ed
uc
tio
n 
in
 fe
ar
 o
f c
rim
e 

68
 P
A
C
T
 m
ee
tin
gs
 o
ve
r 
12
 

m
on
th
s,
 r
ep
ea
te
d 
an
nu
al
ly
 

 
P
ro
m
ot
io
n 
of
 C
D
R
P
 a
ct
io
n 

pl
an
 

31
 M
ar
ch
 2
01
2 

 
 

31
 M
ar
ch
 2
01
2 

 

 
M
em
be
rs
, S
en
io
r 

O
ffi
ce
rs
 a
nd
 C
om
m
un
ity
 

S
af
et
y 
T
ea
m
 

  

3.
3 

C
om
m
un
ity
 e
ng
ag
em
en
t 

C
om
m
un
ity
 b
id
s 
su
bm
itt
ed
 to
 

E
qu
al
ity
 a
nd
 D
iv
er
si
ty
 F
or
um
 

 D
el
iv
er
y 
ag
ai
ns
t 3
 y
ea
r 

30
 S
ep
te
m
be
r 
20
09
 

  
31
 M
ar
ch
 2
01
2 

C
F
/H
B
 

O
ffi
ce
rs
; E
 &
 D
 F
or
um
; 

D
is
ab
le
d 
U
se
rs
’ G
ro
up
 &
 

B
ro
m
sg
ro
ve
 B
la
ck
 

H
is
to
ry
 S
oc
ie
ty
 

Page 76



Im
p
ro
ve
m
en
t 
P
la
n
: 
T
em

p
la
te
   
   
   

20
09
/1
0 
D
ra
ft
 V
er
si
o
n
   
 

   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
  

 
9 

P
ri
o
ri
ty
 C
P
3:
 S
en
se
 o
f 
C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y 

3.
 

E
xp
ec
te
d
 O
u
tc
o
m
e 

Im
p
ro
ve
d
 C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y 
C
o
h
es
io
n
 

R
ef
. 

M
ea
su
re
s 
o
f 
S
u
cc
es
s 

A
ct
io
n
s 
R
eq
u
ir
ed
 

T
im
es
ca
le
s 

L
ea
d
 

R
es
o
u
rc
es
 

de
pa
rt
m
en
ta
l E
qu
al
ity
 Im
pa
ct
 

A
ss
es
sm
en
t a
ct
io
n 
pl
an
s 
 

H
oS
 

3.
4 

Y
ou
ng
 p
eo
pl
e’
s 

pa
rt
ic
ip
at
io
n 
in
 p
os
iti
ve
 

ac
tiv
iti
es
 

C
Y
P
 P
ar
tic
ip
at
or
y 
B
ud
ge
tin
g 

ev
en
t 

  

31
 J
ul
y 
20
10
 

   

H
B
 

C
C
P
P
 T
ea
m
, W

C
C
 

F
LO
S
S
  

  
 R
ef
. 

A
ct
io
n
 

L
ea
d
 

July 

Aug. 

Sep. 

Oct. 

Nov. 

Dec. 

Jan. 

Feb. 

Mar. 

Apr. 

May 

June 

S
ta
tu
s 
/ C
o
rr
ec
ti
ve
 A
ct
io
n
 

3.
1.
 

S
at
is
fa
ct
io
n
 w
it
h
 e
ve
n
ts
 p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e 

3.
1.
1 

P
la
n 
th
e 
im
pl
em
en
ta
tio
n 

an
d 
ex
pa
ns
io
n 
of
 th
e 

ba
nd
st
an
d 
pr
og
ra
m
m
e 

in
to
 th
e 
ne
w
 a
re
as
 c
ov
er
 

by
 th
e 
ex
pa
nd
ed
 s
tr
ee
t 

th
ea
tr
e 
pr
og
ra
m
m
e.
 

JG
/H
M
 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

3.
1.
2 

D
el
iv
er
y 
th
e 
ad
di
tio
na
l 

se
ss
io
ns
 in
 R
ub
er
y,
 

H
ag
le
y 
&
 W
yt
ha
ll 
an
d 

un
de
r 
ta
ke
 u
se
r 

co
ns
ul
ta
tio
n 
to
 g
ai
n 

fe
ed
ba
ck
 o
n 
th
e 
pr
ov
is
io
n.
 

JG
/H
M
 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

3.
1.
3 

P
ro
du
ce
 a
 r
ep
or
t t
o 
re
vi
ew
 

th
e 
ne
w
 e
ve
nt
s 
an
d 
bu
ild
 

an
y 
re
co
m
m
en
da
tio
ns
 in
to
 

fu
tu
re
 p
ro
gr
am
m
es
. 

JG
/H
M
 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

3.
1.
4 

W
he
re
 r
eq
ui
re
d 
pr
od
uc
e 

bu
dg
et
 b
id
s 
to
 s
up
po
rt
 

fu
tu
re
 d
el
iv
er
y/
ex
pa
ns
io
n 

JG
/H
M
 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

Page 77



Im
p
ro
ve
m
en
t 
P
la
n
: 
T
em

p
la
te
   
   
   

20
09
/1
0 
D
ra
ft
 V
er
si
o
n
   
 

   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
  

 
10
 

R
ef
. 

A
ct
io
n
 

L
ea
d
 

July 

Aug. 

Sep. 

Oct. 

Nov. 

Dec. 

Jan. 

Feb. 

Mar. 

Apr. 

May 

June 

S
ta
tu
s 
/ C
o
rr
ec
ti
ve
 A
ct
io
n
 

of
 th
e 
pr
og
ra
m
m
e.
 

3.
1.
5 

P
ro
du
ce
 a
nd
 im
pl
em
en
t a
 

re
si
de
nt
 s
ur
ve
y 
to
 e
ng
ag
e 

w
ith
 th
e 
pu
bl
ic
 o
n 
th
e 

fu
tu
re
 

re
qu
ire
m
en
ts
/a
sp
ira
tio
ns
 

an
d 
bu
ild
 th
es
e 
in
to
 th
e 

A
rt
s 
&
 E
ve
nt
s 
S
tr
at
eg
y.
  

JG
/H
M
 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

3.
1.
6 

P
ro
du
ce
 a
nd
 p
ub
lic
is
e 
th
e 

ne
w
 A
rt
s 
&
 E
ve
nt
s 

st
ra
te
gy
 a
nd
 e
st
ab
lis
h 
a 

w
or
k 
gr
ou
p 
to
 p
ro
du
ce
 a
n 

ac
tio
n 
pl
an
 to
 d
el
iv
er
 it
s 

ai
m
s 
an
d 
ob
je
ct
iv
es
. 

JG
/H
M
 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

3.
2 

R
ed
u
ct
io
n
 in
 f
ea
r 
o
f 
cr
im
e 

3.
2.
1 

A
gr
ee
 a
nd
 p
ub
lic
is
e 
th
e 

C
S
P
’s
 1
2-
m
on
th
 a
ct
io
n 

pl
an
 r
el
at
in
g 
to
 th
e 

st
ra
te
gi
c 
as
se
ss
m
en
t. 

JG
/C
S

S
S
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

3.
2.
2 

E
st
ab
lis
h 
a 

co
m
m
un
ic
at
io
ns
 g
ro
up
 

an
d 
pr
od
uc
e 
a 

co
m
m
un
ic
at
io
ns
 p
la
nn
er
 

to
 p
ro
m
ot
e 
th
e 
ke
y 

ac
tiv
iti
es
 w
ith
 in
 th
e 
pl
an
 

an
d 
in
cr
ea
se
 g
oo
d 
ne
w
s 

st
or
ie
s.
 

C
S
S
/A

M
D
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

3.
2.
3 

E
st
ab
lis
h 
an
d 
im
pl
em
en
t 

th
e 
ke
y 
pe
rf
or
m
an
ce
 

m
ea
su
re
 fr
om
 th
e 
gr
ou
p 

(b
as
ed
 o
n 
pl
ac
e 
su
rv
ey
 

ou
t t
ur
ns
) 
an
d 
pr
od
uc
e 

qu
ar
te
rly
 p
er
fo
rm
an
ce
 

re
po
rt
s 
of
 th
e 
fu
ll 

JG
/R
M
/

B
H
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

Page 78



Im
p
ro
ve
m
en
t 
P
la
n
: 
T
em

p
la
te
   
   
   

20
09
/1
0 
D
ra
ft
 V
er
si
o
n
   
 

   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
  

 
11
 

R
ef
. 

A
ct
io
n
 

L
ea
d
 

July 

Aug. 

Sep. 

Oct. 

Nov. 

Dec. 

Jan. 

Feb. 

Mar. 

Apr. 

May 

June 

S
ta
tu
s 
/ C
o
rr
ec
ti
ve
 A
ct
io
n
 

pa
rt
ne
rs
hi
p 
th
at
 c
an
 b
e 

se
nt
 to
 P
M
B
 if
 r
eq
ui
re
d.
 

3.
2.
4 

R
ev
ie
w
 th
e 
ne
ed
 fo
r 

ad
di
tio
na
l c
om
m
un
ity
 

en
ga
ge
m
en
t/c
on
su
lta
tio
n 

at
 a
 lo
ca
l l
ev
el
 in
 h
ot
 s
po
t 

ar
ea
s 
to
 e
st
ab
lis
h 

re
si
de
nt
s 
vi
ew
 o
n 
lo
ca
l 

is
su
es
 a
nd
 p
ot
en
tia
l 

re
so
lu
tio
ns
 to
 th
es
e 

m
at
te
rs
 (
pa
rt
ne
rs
hi
p 

ba
se
d)
. 

C
S
P
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

3.
2.
5 

R
ev
ie
w
 a
nd
 w
he
re
 

re
qu
ire
d 
re
fr
es
h 
th
e 
C
S
P
 

ac
tio
n 
pl
an
 b
as
ed
 o
n 

ab
ov
e 
in
fo
rm
at
io
n 
an
d 

pe
rf
or
m
an
ce
 a
ga
in
st
 K
P
I’s
 

at
 6
 m
on
th
ly
 in
te
rv
al
s.
 

JG
/B
H
/

C
S
S
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

3.
3 

C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y 
en
g
ag
em

en
t 

3.
3.
1 

R
ep
or
t t
o 
E
 a
nd
 D
 fo
ru
m
 

on
 b
id
 p
ro
ce
ss
 2
00
9/
10
 

H
B
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

  
3.
3.
2 

F
or
um
 c
om
pi
le
d 
an
d 

su
bm
itt
ed
 b
id
s 

H
B
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

3.
3.
3 

R
ep
or
t t
o 
F
or
um
 o
n 
st
at
us
 

an
d 
su
cc
es
s 
of
 b
id
s 

H
B
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

3.
3.
4 

D
el
iv
er
 tr
ai
ni
ng
 to
 E
qu
al
ity
 

an
d 
D
iv
er
si
ty
 F
or
um
 o
n 

co
m
pl
et
io
n 
of
 Im
pa
ct
 

A
ss
es
sm
en
ts
 

C
F
/F
S
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

3.
3.
5 

D
el
iv
er
 E
qu
al
ity
 Im
pa
ct
 

A
ss
es
sm
en
t W

or
ks
ho
ps
 to
 

m
an
ag
er
s 

C
F
/F
S
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

3.
3.
6 

D
ev
el
op
 a
nd
 r
ol
l o
ut
 

E
qu
al
ity
 d
at
a 
m
on
ito
rin
g 

H
B
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

Page 79



Im
p
ro
ve
m
en
t 
P
la
n
: 
T
em

p
la
te
   
   
   

20
09
/1
0 
D
ra
ft
 V
er
si
o
n
   
 

   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
  

 
12
 

R
ef
. 

A
ct
io
n
 

L
ea
d
 

July 

Aug. 

Sep. 

Oct. 

Nov. 

Dec. 

Jan. 

Feb. 

Mar. 

Apr. 

May 

June 

S
ta
tu
s 
/ C
o
rr
ec
ti
ve
 A
ct
io
n
 

pr
oc
es
s 

3.
3.
7 

A
nn
ua
l S
at
is
fa
ct
io
n 

S
ur
ve
y 
of
 E
qu
al
ity
 a
nd
 

D
iv
er
si
ty
 F
or
um
  

H
B
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

3.
4 

Y
o
u
n
g
 p
eo
p
le
’s
 p
ar
ti
ci
p
at
io
n
 in
 p
o
si
ti
ve
 a
ct
iv
it
ie
s 

3.
4.
1 

R
ev
ie
w
 le
ss
on
s 
le
ar
nt
 a
nd
 

es
ta
bl
is
h 
pr
oj
ec
t p
la
n 
fo
r 

20
10
. 

H
B
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

3.
4.
2 

A
gr
ee
 fu
nd
in
g 
w
ith
 F
ul
l 

C
ou
nc
il 
an
d 
C
ou
nt
y 

C
ou
nc
il.
 

H
B
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

3.
4.
3 

D
ev
el
op
 a
nd
 im
pl
em
en
t 

pr
oj
ec
t p
la
n.
 

H
B
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

3.
4.
4 

P
re
pa
re
 a
nd
 r
un
 e
ve
nt
. 

H
B
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

Ju
ly
 2
01
0 
 

3.
4.
5 

C
om
pl
et
e 
in
iti
al
 le
ss
on
s 

le
ar
nt
 a
nd
 r
ep
or
t t
o 

G
O
W
M
. 

H
B
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

Ju
ly
 2
01
0 

  C
P
4:
 C
le
an
 S
tr
ee
ts
 &
 C
lim

at
e 
C
h
an
g
e 

4 
E
xp
ec
te
d
 O
u
tc
o
m
e 

Im
p
ro
ve
d
 C
u
st
o
m
er
 P
er
ce
p
ti
o
n
 o
f 
C
le
an
lin
es
s 

R
ef
. 

M
ea
su
re
s 
o
f 
S
u
cc
es
s 

A
ct
io
n
s 
R
eq
u
ir
ed
 

T
im
es
ca
le
s 

L
ea
d
 

R
es
o
u
rc
es
 

4.
1 

Im
pr
ov
ed
 s
tr
ee
t a
nd
 

en
vi
ro
nm
en
ta
l c
le
an
lin
es
s 

R
ap
id
 r
es
po
ns
e 
hi
t s
qu
ad
 

 P
ro
gr
am
m
ed
 c
le
an
 

ac
co
rd
in
g 
to
 E
nv
iro
nm
en
ta
l 

P
ro
te
ct
io
n 
A
ct
 

 G
ra
du
al
 in
cr
ea
se
 in
 

E
nf
or
ce
m
en
t A
ct
iv
ity
 

31
 M
ar
ch
 2
01
2 

 
31
 M
ar
ch
 2
01
2 

   
31
 M
ar
ch
 2
01
2 

K
 H
iro
ns
 

A
pp
ro
ve
d 
bu
dg
et
 

Page 80



Im
p
ro
ve
m
en
t 
P
la
n
: 
T
em

p
la
te
   
   
   

20
09
/1
0 
D
ra
ft
 V
er
si
o
n
   
 

   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
  

 
13
 

C
P
4:
 C
le
an
 S
tr
ee
ts
 &
 C
lim

at
e 
C
h
an
g
e 

4 
E
xp
ec
te
d
 O
u
tc
o
m
e 

Im
p
ro
ve
d
 C
u
st
o
m
er
 P
er
ce
p
ti
o
n
 o
f 
C
le
an
lin
es
s 

R
ef
. 

M
ea
su
re
s 
o
f 
S
u
cc
es
s 

A
ct
io
n
s 
R
eq
u
ir
ed
 

T
im
es
ca
le
s 

L
ea
d
 

R
es
o
u
rc
es
 

4.
2 

C
us
to
m
er
 s
at
is
fa
ct
io
n 
w
ith
 

cl
ea
nl
in
es
s 
of
 D
is
tr
ic
t  

R
es
ch
ed
ul
e 
cl
ea
ns
in
g 

ac
tiv
iti
es
. 

 P
ro
gr
am
m
ed
 c
le
an
 

ac
co
rd
in
g 
to
 E
nv
iro
nm
en
ta
l 

P
ro
te
ct
io
n 
A
ct
 

 G
ra
du
al
 in
cr
ea
se
 in
 

E
nf
or
ce
m
en
t A
ct
iv
ity
 

31
 M
ar
ch
 2
01
2 

 
31
 M
ar
ch
 2
01
2 

   
31
 M
ar
ch
 2
01
2 

K
 H
iro
ns
 

A
pp
ro
ve
d 
bu
dg
et
 

4.
3 

In
cr
ea
se
d 
re
cy
cl
in
g 
ra
te
s 

C
ha
ng
e 
m
et
ho
d 
of
 c
ol
le
ct
io
n 

to
 c
o-
m
in
gl
ed
 w
ith
 n
ew
 

ve
hi
cl
es
 

31
 M
ar
ch
 2
01
2 

I R
ob
er
ts
 

B
ud
ge
t  
sa
vi
ng
 a
pp
ro
ve
d 

 R
ef
. 

A
ct
io
n
 

L
ea
d
 

July 

Aug. 

Sep. 

Oct. 

Nov. 

Dec. 

Jan. 

Feb. 

Mar. 

Apr. 

May 

June 

S
ta
tu
s 
/ C
o
rr
ec
ti
ve
 A
ct
io
n
 

4.
1 

Im
p
ro
ve
d
 s
tr
ee
t 
an
d
 e
n
vi
ro
n
m
en
ta
l c
le
an
lin
es
s 

4.
1.
1 

R
es
ch
ed
ul
e 
th
e 
cu
rr
en
t 

cl
ea
ns
in
g 
op
er
at
io
n 
to
 

m
ax
im
is
e 
re
so
ur
ce
s 
an
d 

im
pr
ov
e 
ef
fic
ie
nc
y 
of
 

se
rv
ic
e.
 Id
en
tif
yi
ng
 a
re
as
 

of
 c
on
ce
rn
 a
nd
 

re
qu
ire
m
en
ts
 fo
r 
ad
di
tio
na
l 

cl
ea
ni
ng
. 

K
H
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

4.
1.
2 

In
tr
od
uc
e 
ch
an
ge
s 
to
 

se
rv
ic
e 
to
 im
pr
ov
e 

cl
ea
nl
in
es
s 

K
H
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

P
ot
en
tia
l B
ud
ge
t b
id
 r
eq
ui
re
m
en
t. 

4.
1.
3 

R
es
ch
ed
ul
e 
th
e 
cu
rr
en
t 

K
H
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

Page 81



Im
p
ro
ve
m
en
t 
P
la
n
: 
T
em

p
la
te
   
   
   

20
09
/1
0 
D
ra
ft
 V
er
si
o
n
   
 

   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
  

 
14
 

R
ef
. 

A
ct
io
n
 

L
ea
d
 

July 

Aug. 

Sep. 

Oct. 

Nov. 

Dec. 

Jan. 

Feb. 

Mar. 

Apr. 

May 

June 

S
ta
tu
s 
/ C
o
rr
ec
ti
ve
 A
ct
io
n
 

gr
ou
nd
s 
m
ai
nt
en
an
ce
 

op
er
at
io
n 
to
 m
ax
im
is
e 

re
so
ur
ce
s 
an
d 
im
pr
ov
e 

ef
fic
ie
nc
y 
of
 s
er
vi
ce
. 

Id
en
tif
yi
ng
 a
re
as
 o
f 

co
nc
er
n 
an
d 
re
qu
ire
m
en
ts
 

fo
r 
ad
di
tio
na
l 

m
ai
nt
en
an
ce
. 

4.
1.
4 

In
tr
od
uc
e 
ch
an
ge
s 
to
 

se
rv
ic
e 
to
 im
pr
ov
e 

cl
ea
nl
in
es
s 

K
H
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

4.
2 

C
u
st
o
m
er
 s
at
is
fa
ct
io
n
 w
it
h
 c
le
an
lin
es
s 
o
f 
D
is
tr
ic
t 

4.
2.
1 

M
on
ito
r 
im
pr
ov
em
en
t i
n 

cl
ea
nl
in
es
s 
th
ro
ug
h 

sc
he
du
le
d 
 4
 m
on
th
ly
 

in
sp
ec
tio
n 

K
H
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

4.
3 

In
cr
ea
se
d
 r
ec
yc
lin
g
 r
at
es
  

4.
3.
1 

In
tr
od
uc
e 
a 
co
-m
in
gl
ed
 

co
lle
ct
io
n 
of
 r
ec
yc
la
bl
e 

m
at
er
ia
ls
, m
od
ify
in
g 
th
e 

ex
is
tin
g 
ke
rb
si
de
 s
or
t 

sy
st
em
 

M
B
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

M
on
th
ly
 m
ee
tin
g 
of
 P
ro
je
ct
 T
ea
m
 in
 

pl
ac
e 
co
m
pr
is
in
g 
re
pr
es
en
ta
tiv
es
 fr
om
 

IC
T
, F
in
an
ce
 a
nd
 C
S
C
. 

4.
3.
2 

P
re
pa
re
 te
nd
er
 fo
r 
an
d 

pu
rc
ha
se
 v
eh
ic
le
s 

K
H
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

4.
3.
3 

P
re
pa
re
 te
nd
er
 fo
r 
an
d 

pu
rc
ha
se
 b
in
s 

K
H
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

4.
3.
4 

D
ev
el
op
 a
nd
 p
ub
lic
is
e 

co
m
m
un
ic
at
io
n 
st
ra
te
gy
 

A
W
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

4.
3.
5 

H
ol
d 
re
gu
la
r 
m
ee
tin
gs
 w
ith
 

C
ou
nt
y 
C
ou
nc
il 

M
B
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

M
ee
tin
gs
 e
ve
ry
 2
 m
on
th
s 

4.
3.
6 

R
eg
ul
ar
 p
ro
je
ct
 te
am
 

M
B
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

M
ee
tin
g 
ev
er
y 
2 
w
ee
ks
. 

Page 82



Im
p
ro
ve
m
en
t 
P
la
n
: 
T
em

p
la
te
   
   
   

20
09
/1
0 
D
ra
ft
 V
er
si
o
n
   
 

   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
  

 
15
 

R
ef
. 

A
ct
io
n
 

L
ea
d
 

July 

Aug. 

Sep. 

Oct. 

Nov. 

Dec. 

Jan. 

Feb. 

Mar. 

Apr. 

May 

June 

S
ta
tu
s 
/ C
o
rr
ec
ti
ve
 A
ct
io
n
 

m
ee
tin
gs
 

 
 

F
P
1:
 M
an
ag
in
g
 F
in
an
ce
s 
(i
n
cl
u
d
in
g
 V
al
u
e 
fo
r 
M
o
n
ey
) 
  

5 
E
xp
ec
te
d
 O
u
tc
o
m
es
  

Im
p
ro
ve
d
 F
in
an
ci
al
 M
an
ag
em

en
t 

R
ef
. 

M
ea
su
re
s 
o
f 
S
u
cc
es
s 

A
ct
io
n
s 
R
eq
u
ir
ed
 

T
im
es
ca
le
s 

L
ea
d
 

R
es
o
u
rc
es
 

5.
1 

 

In
te
gr
at
ed
 fi
na
nc
ia
l a
nd
 

pe
rf
or
m
an
ce
 in
fo
rm
at
io
n 

In
te
gr
at
ed
 fi
na
nc
ia
l a
nd
 

pe
rf
or
m
an
ce
 m
an
ag
em
en
t 

ta
bl
e 

 M
ee
tin
gs
 w
ith
 b
ud
ge
t 

ho
ld
er
s 

31
 M
ar
ch
 2
01
2 

  
 

31
 M
ar
ch
 2
01
2 

JL
P
 

  
JL
P
 

S
er
vi
ce
 a
cc
ou
nt
an
ts
 a
nd
 

bu
dg
et
 h
ol
de
rs
 

5.
2 

D
el
iv
er
 M
ed
iu
m
 T
er
m
 

F
in
an
ci
al
 P
la
n 
an
d 

st
at
ut
or
y 
ac
co
un
ts
 

F
in
an
ci
al
 P
la
n 
tim
et
ab
le
 

 N
ew
 U
se
 o
f R
es
ou
rc
es
 

A
ct
io
n 
P
la
n 

31
 M
ar
ch
 2
01
2 

 
31
 M
ar
ch
 2
01
2 

JL
P
 

 
JL
P
 

S
er
vi
ce
 a
cc
ou
nt
an
ts
 a
nd
 

bu
dg
et
 h
ol
de
rs
 

5.
3 

C
le
ar
 u
nd
er
st
an
di
ng
 o
f 

co
st
s 
ba
se
 a
nd
 c
om
p 

D
et
ai
le
d 
co
st
 a
na
ly
si
s 

 T
ra
ns
ac
tio
n 
co
st
in
g 

un
de
rt
ak
en
  

31
 M
ar
ch
 2
01
1 

 
31
 M
ar
ch
 2
01
1 

JL
P
 

JL
P
 

 

S
er
vi
ce
 a
cc
ou
nt
an
ts
 a
nd
 

bu
dg
et
 h
ol
de
rs
 

5.
4 

B
ud
ge
t c
on
su
lta
tio
n 

 
R
ep
ea
t B
ud
ge
t J
ur
y 

 F
ur
th
er
 o
nl
in
e 
B
ud
ge
t 

C
on
su
lta
tio
n 

31
 J
an
ua
ry
 2
01
0 
an
d 

an
nu
al
ly
 th
er
ea
fte
r 

31
 J
an
ua
ry
 2
01
0 
an
d 

an
nu
al
ly
 th
er
ea
fte
r 

H
B
/J
LP
 

H
ea
d 
of
 F
in
an
ci
al
 

S
er
vi
ce
s 
an
d 
C
C
P
P
 te
am
 

5.
5 

A
lte
rn
at
iv
e 
m
et
ho
ds
 o
f 

se
rv
ic
e 
de
liv
er
y 

Q
ua
rt
er
ly
 r
ep
or
t 

31
 M
ar
ch
 2
01
2 

JL
P
 

S
er
vi
ce
 a
cc
ou
nt
an
ts
 a
nd
 

bu
dg
et
 h
ol
de
rs
 

 

Page 83



Im
p
ro
ve
m
en
t 
P
la
n
: 
T
em

p
la
te
   
   
   

20
09
/1
0 
D
ra
ft
 V
er
si
o
n
   
 

   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
  

 
16
 

R
ef
. 

A
ct
io
n
 

    

L
ea
d
 

July 

Aug. 

Sep. 

Oct. 

Nov. 

Dec. 

Jan. 

Feb. 

Mar. 

Apr. 

May 

June 

S
ta
tu
s 
/ C
o
rr
ec
ti
ve
 A
ct
io
n
 

5.
1 

In
te
g
ra
te
d
 f
in
an
ci
al
 a
n
d
 p
er
fo
rm
an
ce
 in
fo
rm
at
io
n
 

5.
1.
1 

P
re
se
nt
 In
te
gr
at
ed
 fi
na
nc
e 

an
d 
pe
rf
or
m
an
ce
 r
ep
or
t t
o 

P
M
B
 a
nd
 C
ab
in
et
  

JL
P
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

5.
1.
2 

D
ev
el
op
 c
om
m
itm
en
t 

ac
co
un
tin
g 
fo
r 
in
cl
us
io
n 
in
 

fin
an
ci
al
 r
ep
or
ts
  

JL
P
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

5.
1.
3 

E
na
bl
e 
re
al
 ti
m
e 
ac
ce
ss
 to
 

th
e 
fin
an
ci
al
 s
ys
te
m
 to
 

su
pp
or
t b
ud
ge
t h
ol
de
rs
 in
 

th
e 
re
vi
ew
 o
f t
he
ir 

m
on
ito
rin
g 
re
po
rt
s.
 

JL
P
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

5.
1.
4 

R
ev
ie
w
 u
se
 o
f o
n-
lin
e 

pu
rc
ha
si
ng
 s
ys
te
m
 to
 

en
su
re
 it
 is
 b
ei
ng
 u
se
d 
to
 

its
 fu
ll 
po
te
nt
ia
l a
cr
os
s 
th
e 

C
ou
nc
il 
 

JL
P
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

5.
2 

D
el
iv
er
 M
ed
iu
m
 T
er
m
 F
in
an
ci
al
 P
la
n
 a
n
d
 s
ta
tu
to
ry
 a
cc
o
u
n
ts
 

5.
2.
1 

P
re
se
nt
 s
um
m
ar
y 
fin
an
ci
al
 

po
si
tio
n 
at
 M
em
be
rs
 a
w
ay
 

da
y 
 

JL
P
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

5.
2.
2 

P
re
se
nt
 fi
na
nc
ia
l p
la
nn
in
g 

tim
et
ab
le
 to
 M
em
be
rs
 

JL
P
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

5.
2.
3 

Id
en
tif
y 
bu
dg
et
 p
re
ss
ur
es
 

fr
om
 s
er
vi
ce
 b
us
in
es
s 

pl
an
s 

JL
P
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

5.
2.
4 

C
on
su
lta
tio
n 
w
ith
 b
ud
ge
t 

ju
ry
, e
qu
al
ity
 a
nd
 d
iv
er
si
ty
 

fo
ru
m
 a
nd
 r
es
id
en
ts
 v
ia
 

on
-li
ne
 fe
ed
ba
ck
 a
nd
  

JL
P
 

 
  

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

5.
2.
5 

D
ev
el
op
 d
et
ai
le
d 
bu
dg
et
 

JL
P
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
5.
2.
6 

P
re
se
nt
 d
ra
ft 
bu
dg
et
 

JL
P
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

Page 84



Im
p
ro
ve
m
en
t 
P
la
n
: 
T
em

p
la
te
   
   
   

20
09
/1
0 
D
ra
ft
 V
er
si
o
n
   
 

   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
  

 
17
 

R
ef
. 

A
ct
io
n
 

    

L
ea
d
 

July 

Aug. 

Sep. 

Oct. 

Nov. 

Dec. 

Jan. 

Feb. 

Mar. 

Apr. 

May 

June 

S
ta
tu
s 
/ C
o
rr
ec
ti
ve
 A
ct
io
n
 

po
si
tio
n 
to
 M
em
be
rs
 

5.
2.
7 

A
pp
ro
va
l o
f f
in
al
 b
ud
ge
t  

JL
P
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
5.
2.
8 

D
ev
el
op
 U
se
 o
f R
es
ou
rc
es
 

ac
tio
n 
pl
an
 in
 r
el
at
io
n 
to
 

ne
w
 fr
am
ew
or
k 
 

JL
P
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

5.
2.
9 

P
re
pa
re
 fi
na
l a
cc
ou
nt
s 

tim
et
ab
le
  

JL
P
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

5.
2.
10
 

F
in
al
 a
cc
ou
nt
s 
tr
ai
ni
ng
 fo
r 

de
pa
rt
m
en
ta
l s
ta
ff 

JL
P
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

5.
2.
11
 

P
re
pa
ra
tio
n 
of
 a
cc
ou
nt
s 

JL
P
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
5.
2.
12
 

A
pp
ro
va
l b
y 
A
ud
it 
B
oa
rd
 

JL
P
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
5.
3 

U
n
d
er
st
an
d
in
g
 C
o
st
 B
as
e 

5.
3.
1 

U
nd
er
ta
ke
 a
na
ly
si
s 
of
 

fin
an
ci
al
 s
er
vi
ce
s 
co
st
s 
 

JL
P
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

5.
3.
2 

D
ev
el
op
 m
et
ho
d 
fo
r 
al
l 

se
rv
ic
es
 to
 id
en
tif
y 
co
st
 

ba
se
 a
nd
 id
en
tif
y 

tr
an
sa
ct
io
n 
co
st
 fo
r 

co
m
pa
ris
on
 w
ith
 o
th
er
 

or
ga
ni
sa
tio
ns
 

JL
P
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

5.
3.
3 

C
om
pa
ris
on
 o
f c
os
ts
 w
ith
 

ot
he
r 
C
ou
nc
ils
 to
 id
en
tif
y 

hi
gh
 c
os
t s
er
vi
ce
s 
 

JL
P
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

5.
3.
4 

Id
en
tif
y 
a 
pr
og
ra
m
m
e 
of
 

re
vi
ew
 o
f h
ig
h 
co
st
/ l
ow
 

qu
al
ity
 s
er
vi
ce
s 
fo
llo
w
in
g 

de
ve
lo
pm
en
t o
f c
os
t 

an
al
ys
is
 a
nd
 

be
nc
hm
ar
ki
ng
 

JL
P
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

5.
4 

B
u
d
g
et
 c
o
n
su
lt
at
io
n
 

5.
4.
1 

R
ec
ru
it 
bu
dg
et
 ju
ry
 x
 2
 

fr
om
 s
ch
oo
l a
nd
 fr
om
 

H
B
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

Page 85



Im
p
ro
ve
m
en
t 
P
la
n
: 
T
em

p
la
te
   
   
   

20
09
/1
0 
D
ra
ft
 V
er
si
o
n
   
 

   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
  

 
18
 

R
ef
. 

A
ct
io
n
 

    

L
ea
d
 

July 

Aug. 

Sep. 

Oct. 

Nov. 

Dec. 

Jan. 

Feb. 

Mar. 

Apr. 

May 

June 

S
ta
tu
s 
/ C
o
rr
ec
ti
ve
 A
ct
io
n
 

ge
ne
ra
l p
op
ul
at
io
n.
 

 
5.
4.
2 

H
ol
d 
in
iti
al
 b
ud
ge
t j
ur
y.
 

H
B
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
5.
4.
3 

H
ol
d 
se
co
nd
 b
ud
ge
t j
ur
y 

H
B
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
5.
4.
4 

H
ol
d 
th
ird
 b
ud
ge
t j
ur
y 

H
B
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
5.
4.
5 

H
ol
d 
fo
ur
th
 b
ud
ge
t j
ur
y 

H
B
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
5.
4.
6 

R
ep
or
t f
in
di
ng
s 
to
 C
ab
in
et
 

H
B
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
5.
4.
7 

D
ev
el
op
 m
ed
ia
 p
la
n 
an
d 

re
po
rt
 e
ac
h 
st
ag
e 
in
 

m
ed
ia
, l
in
ke
d 
to
 In
te
rn
et
 

co
ns
ul
ta
tio
n 
op
tio
n.
 

H
B
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

5.
4.
8 

Ju
ro
rs
 to
 a
tte
nd
 F
ul
l 

C
ou
nc
il.
 

H
B
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

5.
4.
9 

C
om
pl
et
e 
ev
al
ua
tio
n 
an
d 

le
ss
on
s 
le
ar
nt
. 

H
B
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

5.
5 

A
lt
er
n
at
iv
e 
m
et
h
o
d
s 
o
f 
se
rv
ic
e 
d
el
iv
er
y 

5.
5.
1 

P
re
se
nt
 d
et
ai
le
d 
sa
vi
ng
s 

re
qu
ire
m
en
t t
o 
C
M
T
 fo
r 

in
iti
al
 d
is
cu
ss
io
ns
 o
n 

de
liv
er
y 
fo
r 
20
10
/1
1 

JL
P
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

5.
5.
2 

D
ev
el
op
 d
et
ai
le
d 
co
st
in
gs
 

of
 a
re
as
 o
f s
av
in
gs
 

id
en
tif
ie
d 
by
 C
M
T
 fo
r 

20
10
/1
1 

JL
P
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

5.
5.
3 

P
re
se
nt
 o
pt
io
ns
 fo
r 

de
liv
er
y 
of
 s
av
in
gs
 v
ia
 

al
te
rn
at
iv
e 
m
et
ho
ds
 o
f 

de
liv
er
y 
to
 M
em
be
rs
 

JL
P
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

5.
5.
4 

A
pp
ro
va
l o
f M
T
F
P
 to
 

in
cl
ud
e 
de
liv
er
y 
of
 

al
te
rn
at
iv
e 
se
rv
ic
e 
de
liv
er
y 

to
 a
ch
ie
ve
 s
av
in
gs
 

JL
P
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

Page 86



Im
p
ro
ve
m
en
t 
P
la
n
: 
T
em

p
la
te
   
   
   

20
09
/1
0 
D
ra
ft
 V
er
si
o
n
   
 

   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
  

 
19
 

R
ef
. 

A
ct
io
n
 

    

L
ea
d
 

July 

Aug. 

Sep. 

Oct. 

Nov. 

Dec. 

Jan. 

Feb. 

Mar. 

Apr. 

May 

June 

S
ta
tu
s 
/ C
o
rr
ec
ti
ve
 A
ct
io
n
 

5.
5.
5 

R
ep
or
t t
o 
M
em
be
rs
 

(q
ua
rt
er
ly
) 
 a
nd
 C
M
T
 

(m
on
th
ly
 )
 to
 m
on
ito
r 

ac
tu
al
 s
av
in
gs
 a
ga
in
st
 

ta
rg
et
s 
w
ith
in
 in
te
gr
at
ed
 

fin
an
ce
 a
nd
 p
er
fo
rm
an
ce
 

re
po
rt
 

JL
P
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

Page 87



Im
p
ro
ve
m
en
t 
P
la
n
: 
T
em

p
la
te
   
   
   

20
09
/1
0 
D
ra
ft
 V
er
si
o
n
   
 

   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
  

 
20
 

 F
P
2:
 G
o
ve
rn
in
g
 t
h
e 
B
u
si
n
es
s(
in
cl
u
d
in
g
 V
al
u
e 
fo
r 
M
o
n
ey
) 
  

6 
E
xp
ec
te
d
 O
u
tc
o
m
es
  

Im
p
ro
ve
d
 p
ro
cu
re
m
en
t 
, r
is
k 
m
an
ag
em

en
t 
an
d
 c
o
u
n
te
r 
fr
au
d
 

ar
ra
n
g
em

en
ts
 

R
ef
. 

M
ea
su
re
s 
o
f 
S
u
cc
es
s 

A
ct
io
n
s 
R
eq
u
ir
ed
 

T
im
es
ca
le
s 

L
ea
d
 

R
es
o
u
rc
es
 

6.
1 

Im
pr
ov
ed
 p
ro
cu
re
m
en
t 

P
ro
cu
re
m
en
t A
ct
io
n 
P
la
n 

31
 M
ar
ch
 2
01
2 

JL
P
 

P
ro
cu
re
m
en
t M
an
ag
er
 

an
d 
C
M
T
 

6.
2 

S
up
pl
ie
r 
en
ga
ge
m
en
t w
ith
 

pr
oc
ur
em
en
t 

S
up
pl
ie
r 
S
em
in
ar
s 
to
 b
e 

de
ve
lo
pe
d 

31
 M
ar
ch
 2
01
2 

JL
P
 

P
ro
cu
re
m
en
t M
an
ag
er
 

6.
3 

E
ffe
ct
iv
e 
ris
k 
m
an
ag
em
en
t 
R
is
k 
M
an
ag
em
en
t S
tr
at
eg
y 

31
 M
ar
ch
 2
01
2 

JL
P
 

In
te
rn
al
 A
ud
it 

  R
ef
. 

A
ct
io
n
 

L
ea
d
 
July 

Aug. 

Sep. 

Oct. 

Nov. 

Dec. 

Jan. 

Feb. 

Mar. 

Apr. 

May 

June 

S
ta
tu
s 
/ C
o
rr
ec
ti
ve
 A
ct
io
n
 

6.
1 

Im
p
ro
ve
d
 p
ro
cu
re
m
en
t 

6.
1.
1 

D
ev
el
op
 jo
in
t p
ro
cu
re
m
en
t 

ac
tio
n 
pl
an
 b
et
w
ee
n 
B
D
C
 

an
d 
R
B
C
 

JL
P
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

6.
1.
2 

D
ev
el
op
 s
us
ta
in
ab
ili
ty
 

st
ra
te
gy
 to
 in
cl
ud
e 

pr
oc
ur
em
en
t o
f g
oo
ds
 a
nd
 

se
rv
ic
es
 

JL
P
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

6.
1.
3 

Id
en
tif
y 
co
nt
ra
ct
s 
in
 p
la
ce
 

at
 B
D
C
  

JL
P
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

6.
1.
4 

P
ro
vi
de
 tr
ai
ni
ng
 fo
r 
of
fic
er
s 

on
 p
ro
cu
re
m
en
t a
dv
is
e 

an
d 
su
pp
or
t 

JL
P
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

6.
1.
5 

D
ev
el
op
 fr
am
ew
or
k 

co
nt
ra
ct
s 
w
he
re
 r
el
ev
an
t 

an
d 
re
du
ce
 th
e 
nu
m
be
r 
of
 

su
pp
lie
rs
 to
 th
e 
C
ou
nc
il 
 

JL
P
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

6.
1.
6 

R
ep
or
t p
ro
cu
re
m
en
t 

JL
P
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

Page 88



Im
p
ro
ve
m
en
t 
P
la
n
: 
T
em

p
la
te
   
   
   

20
09
/1
0 
D
ra
ft
 V
er
si
o
n
   
 

   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
  

 
21
 

 R
ef
. 

A
ct
io
n
 

L
ea
d
 

July 

Aug. 

Sep. 

Oct. 

Nov. 

Dec. 

Jan. 

Feb. 

Mar. 

Apr. 

May 

June 

S
ta
tu
s 
/ C
o
rr
ec
ti
ve
 A
ct
io
n
 

su
cc
es
se
s 
an
d 
up
da
te
s 
to
 

M
em
be
rs
 a
nd
 C
M
T
 

6.
2 

S
u
p
p
lie
r 
en
g
ag
em

en
t w
it
h
 p
ro
cu
re
m
en
t 

6.
2.
1 

A
rr
an
ge
 s
up
pl
ie
r 
se
m
in
ar
s 

to
 a
dd
re
ss
 is
su
es
 o
f 

pr
oc
ur
em
en
t a
nd
 r
ai
se
 

aw
ar
en
es
s 
of
 

op
po
rt
un
iti
es
 to
 tr
ad
e 
w
ith
 

th
e 
C
ou
nc
il 
 

JL
P
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

6.
3 

E
ff
ec
ti
ve
 r
is
k 
m
an
ag
em

en
t 

6.
3.
1 

R
ev
ie
w
 r
is
k 
re
gi
st
er
s 
vi
a 

th
e 
ris
k 
st
ee
rin
g 
gr
ou
p 
on
 

a 
m
on
th
ly
 b
as
is
 to
 e
ns
ur
e 

ris
k 
ac
tio
ns
 a
re
 o
n 
tr
ac
k 

an
d 
re
le
va
nt
 to
 s
er
vi
ce
 

ob
je
ct
iv
es
 

JL
P
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

6.
3.
2 

P
re
se
nt
 s
um
m
ar
y 
ris
k 

re
gi
st
er
 tr
ac
ki
ng
 to
 A
ud
it 

B
oa
rd
  

JL
P
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

  
 

 
 

 

6.
3.
3 

D
ev
el
op
 r
is
k 
re
gi
st
er
s 

20
10
/1
1 
as
 p
ar
t o
f t
he
 

bu
si
ne
ss
 p
la
n 
pr
oc
es
s 

JL
P
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

6.
3.
4 

P
re
se
nt
 r
is
k 
m
an
ag
em
en
t 

tr
ai
ni
ng
 to
 O
ffi
ce
rs
  

JL
P
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

6.
3.
5 

P
re
se
nt
 r
is
k 
m
an
ag
em
en
t 

tr
ai
ni
ng
 to
 M
em
be
rs
  

JL
P
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

6.
3.
6 

R
ev
ie
w
 th
e 
de
ve
lo
pm
en
t 

of
 r
is
k 
m
iti
ga
tio
n 

ob
je
ct
iv
es
 w
ith
 Z
ur
ic
h 

in
su
ra
nc
e 
to
 m
ai
nt
ai
n 
lo
w
 

pr
em
iu
m
 le
ve
ls
  

JL
P
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

6.
3.
7 

R
ai
se
 a
w
ar
en
es
s 
of
 th
e 

C
or
po
ra
te
 F
ra
ud
 T
ea
m
 

JL
P
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

Page 89



Im
p
ro
ve
m
en
t 
P
la
n
: 
T
em

p
la
te
   
   
   

20
09
/1
0 
D
ra
ft
 V
er
si
o
n
   
 

   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
  

 
22
 

 R
ef
. 

A
ct
io
n
 

L
ea
d
 

July 

Aug. 

Sep. 

Oct. 

Nov. 

Dec. 

Jan. 

Feb. 

Mar. 

Apr. 

May 

June 

S
ta
tu
s 
/ C
o
rr
ec
ti
ve
 A
ct
io
n
 

w
ith
 s
ta
ff 
an
d 
m
em
be
rs
 

6.
3.
8 

R
ev
ie
w
 a
nd
 u
pd
at
e 

po
lic
ie
s 
in
 r
el
at
io
n 
to
 fr
au
d 

to
 in
cl
ud
e 
m
on
ey
 

la
un
de
rin
g,
 w
hi
st
le
 

bl
ow
in
g 
an
d 
th
e 
an
ti-
fr
au
d 

an
d 
co
rr
up
tio
n 
st
ra
te
gy
 

JL
P
 

 
   

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

6.
3.
9 

P
ro
vi
de
 tr
ai
ni
ng
 to
 A
ud
it 

B
oa
rd
 o
n 
In
te
rn
al
 C
on
tr
ol
 

an
d 
R
is
k 
M
an
ag
em
en
t 

Is
su
es
 

JL
P
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

6.
3.
10
 

R
ep
or
t t
o 
A
ud
it 
B
oa
rd
 o
n 

In
te
rn
al
 A
ud
it 
pe
rf
or
m
an
ce
 

an
d 
hi
gh
er
 r
is
k 
au
di
t 

re
po
rt
s 
as
 th
ey
 a
re
 

un
de
rt
ak
en
 

JL
P
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

   F
P
3:
 M
an
ag
in
g
 R
es
o
u
rc
es
 (
in
cl
u
d
in
g
 V
al
u
e 
fo
r 
M
o
n
ey
) 
  

7 
E
xp
ec
te
d
 O
u
tc
o
m
e 

E
ff
ec
ti
ve
 A
ss
et
 U
ti
lis
at
io
n
 

R
ef
. 

M
ea
su
re
s 
o
f 
S
u
cc
es
s 

A
ct
io
n
s 
R
eq
u
ir
ed
 

T
im
es
ca
le
s 

L
ea
d
 

R
es
o
u
rc
es
 

Page 90



Im
p
ro
ve
m
en
t 
P
la
n
: 
T
em

p
la
te
   
   
   

20
09
/1
0 
D
ra
ft
 V
er
si
o
n
   
 

   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
  

 
23
 

7.
1 

M
an
ag
e 
as
se
ts
 e
ffe
ct
iv
el
y 

A
nn
ua
l r
ev
ie
w
 o
f A
ss
et
 

M
an
ag
em
en
t P
la
n 

 D
is
po
se
 o
f/ 
re
ta
in
 a
ss
et
s 
as
 

pe
r 
C
ou
nc
il 
pr
io
rit
ie
s 

 U
nd
er
ta
ke
 r
eg
ul
ar
 

pr
og
ra
m
m
e 
of
 c
on
di
tio
n 

su
rv
ey
s 
fo
r 
al
l a
ss
et
s 
to
 

en
su
re
 th
ey
 a
re
 fi
t f
or
 

pu
rp
os
e 

31
 M
ar
ch
 2
01
2 
 

  
31
 M
ar
ch
 2
01
2 
 

  
31
 M
ar
ch
 2
01
2 

 
Le
ga
l a
nd
 D
em
oc
ra
tic
 

S
er
vi
ce
s 

7.
2 

P
ro
du
ce
 W
or
kf
or
ce
 P
la
n 

A
nn
ua
l u
pd
at
e 
of
 w
or
kf
or
ce
 

pl
an
 

 Im
pl
em
en
ta
tio
n 
of
 w
or
kf
or
ce
 

pl
an
 s
tr
at
eg
ie
s 

31
 M
ar
ch
 2
01
2 

 

31
 M
ar
ch
 2
01
2 

 
O
D
 B
ud
ge
t; 
S
er
vi
ce
 

m
an
ag
er
s 

7.
3 

E
nv
iro
nm
en
ta
l r
is
k 

m
an
ag
em
en
t 

B
ud
ge
t b
id
 fo
r 
jo
in
t C
lim
at
e 

C
ha
ng
e 
O
ffi
ce
r 
w
ith
 

R
ed
di
tc
h 
B
C
 

 C
lim
at
e 
C
ha
ng
e 
A
ct
io
n 
P
la
n 

31
 M
ar
ch
 2
01
2 

   
31
 M
ar
ch
 2
01
2 

 
B
ud
ge
t b
id
 fo
r 
C
lim
at
e 

C
ha
ng
e 
O
ffi
ce
r 

 R
ef
. 

A
ct
io
n
 

L
ea
d
 

July 

Aug. 

Sep. 

Oct. 

Nov. 

Dec. 

Jan. 

Feb. 

Mar. 

Apr. 

May 

June 

S
ta
tu
s 
/ C
o
rr
ec
ti
ve
 A
ct
io
n
 

7.
1 

M
an
ag
e 
as
se
ts
 e
ff
ec
ti
ve
ly
 

7.
1.
1 

A
ss
et
 M
an
ag
em
en
t G
ro
up
 

w
ill
 r
ev
ie
w
 p
la
n 
as
 p
ar
t o
f 

th
e 
w
or
k 
pr
og
ra
m
m
e 

T
B
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

7.
1.
2 

A
ss
et
 r
ev
ie
w
 h
av
e 
be
en
 

ca
rr
ie
d 
ou
t b
y 
W
C
C
 a
nd
 

w
ill
 b
e 
re
po
rt
ed
 to
 

T
B
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

Page 91



Im
p
ro
ve
m
en
t 
P
la
n
: 
T
em

p
la
te
   
   
   

20
09
/1
0 
D
ra
ft
 V
er
si
o
n
   
 

   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
  

 
24
 

R
ef
. 

A
ct
io
n
 

L
ea
d
 

July 

Aug. 

Sep. 

Oct. 

Nov. 

Dec. 

Jan. 

Feb. 

Mar. 

Apr. 

May 

June 

S
ta
tu
s 
/ C
o
rr
ec
ti
ve
 A
ct
io
n
 

M
em
be
rs
 in
 S
ep
t 2
00
9 

7.
1.
3 

A
ll 
as
se
ts
 id
en
tif
ie
d,
 

ca
te
go
ris
ed
 a
nd
 lo
ad
ed
 o
n 

to
 a
ss
et
 m
an
ag
em
en
t d
at
a 

ba
se
 

T
B
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

7.
1.
4 

E
st
ab
lis
h 
as
se
t r
ev
ie
w
 

pr
oc
es
s 
in
 li
ne
 w
ith
 U
se
 o
f 

R
es
ou
rc
es
 g
ui
de
lin
es
 

T
B
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

7.
1.
5 

D
is
po
se
 o
f/ 
re
ta
in
 a
ss
et
s 

as
 p
er
 C
ou
nc
il 
pr
io
rit
ie
s 

T
B
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

7.
2 

P
ro
d
u
ce
 W
o
rk
fo
rc
e 
P
la
n
 (
se
e 
S
ec
ti
o
n
 1
5.
3 
M
o
d
er
n
is
at
io
n
) 

7.
3 

E
n
vi
ro
n
m
en
ta
l r
is
k 
m
an
ag
em

en
t 

7.
3.
1 

In
tr
od
uc
e 
ac
tio
ns
 to
 ta
ck
le
 

C
ou
nc
il’
s 
ca
rb
on
 

em
is
si
on
s 

P
S
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

7.
3.
2 

P
ro
m
ot
e 
ac
tio
ns
 to
 r
ed
uc
e 

ca
rb
on
 e
m
is
si
on
s 
in
 th
e 

co
m
m
un
ity
 

P
S
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

7.
3.
3 

P
ur
su
e 
C
lim
at
e 
C
ha
ng
e 

M
at
rix
 

P
S
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

  F
P
4:
 M
an
ag
in
g
 P
er
fo
rm
an
ce
 (
in
cl
u
d
in
g
 V
al
u
e 
fo
r 
M
o
n
ey
) 
 

8 
E
xp
ec
te
d
 O
u
tc
o
m
e 

E
m
b
ed
d
ed
 P
er
fo
rm
an
ce
 M
an
ag
em
en
t 
A
rr
an
g
em

en
ts
 

R
ef
. 

M
ea
su
re
s 
o
f 
S
u
cc
es
s 

A
ct
io
n
s 
R
eq
u
ir
ed
 

T
im
es
ca
le
s 

L
ea
d
 

R
es
o
u
rc
es
 

8.
1 

Id
en
tif
y 
an
d 
de
liv
er
 p
rio
rit
y 

se
rv
ic
es
, o
ut
co
m
es
 a
nd
 

im
pr
ov
em
en
ts
 

P
ro
du
ct
io
n 
of
 m
on
th
ly
 r
ep
or
t 

A
s 
pe
r 
fo
rw
ar
d 
pl
an
 

H
B
 

C
C
P
P
 T
ea
m
 

8.
2 

P
ro
vi
de
 th
e 
le
ad
er
sh
ip
, 

D
el
iv
er
y 
of
 th
e 
P
er
fo
rm
an
ce
 

31
 M
ar
ch
 2
01
2 

H
B
 

C
C
P
P
 T
ea
m
 

Page 92



Im
p
ro
ve
m
en
t 
P
la
n
: 
T
em

p
la
te
   
   
   

20
09
/1
0 
D
ra
ft
 V
er
si
o
n
   
 

   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
  

 
25
 

ca
pa
ci
ty
 a
nd
 c
ap
ab
ili
ty
 

ne
ce
ss
ar
y 
to
 d
el
iv
er
 fu
tu
re
 

im
pr
ov
em
en
ts
 

M
an
ag
em
en
t S
tr
at
eg
y 

A
ct
io
n 
P
la
n 

 
8.
3 

C
on
tr
ib
ut
e 
to
 im
pr
ov
in
g 
w
id
er
 

co
m
m
un
ity
 o
ut
co
m
es
 (
e.
g.
 

LA
A
, M
A
A
) 

S
us
ta
in
ab
le
 C
om
m
un
ity
 

S
tr
at
eg
y 
fu
nd
am
en
ta
l r
ev
ie
w
 

co
m
pl
et
ed
 

30
 N
ov
em
be
r 
20
09
 

H
B
 

C
C
P
P
 T
ea
m
; L
S
P
 

T
he
m
e 
G
ro
up
 L
ea
de
rs
 

8.
4 

T
ac
kl
e 
in
eq
ua
lit
y 
an
d 
im
pr
ov
e 

ou
tc
om
es
 fo
r 
pe
op
le
 in
 

vu
ln
er
ab
le
 c
irc
um
st
an
ce
s 

A
nn
ua
l E
&
D
 F
or
um
/ D
U
G
 

co
nf
er
en
ce
 to
 id
en
tif
y 
to
p 

pr
io
rit
ie
s 
fo
r 
vu
ln
er
ab
le
 

gr
ou
ps
 

30
 S
ep
te
m
be
r 
20
09
 

C
F
 

C
C
P
P
 T
ea
m
; E
qu
al
iti
es
 

O
ffi
ce
r;
 E
 &
 D
 F
or
um
; 

D
is
ab
le
d 
U
se
rs
’ G
ro
up
 

  R
ef
. 

A
ct
io
n
 

L
ea
d
 

July 

Aug. 

Sep. 

Oct. 

Nov. 

Dec. 

Jan. 

Feb. 

Mar. 

Apr. 

May 

June 

S
ta
tu
s 
/ C
o
rr
ec
ti
ve
 A
ct
io
n
 

8.
1 

Id
en
ti
fy
 a
n
d
 d
el
iv
er
 p
ri
o
ri
ty
 s
er
vi
ce
s,
 o
u
tc
o
m
es
 a
n
d
 im
p
ro
ve
m
en
ts
 

8.
1.
1 

M
on
th
ly
 p
er
fo
rm
an
ce
 

re
po
rt
 to
 C
M
T
/L
ea
de
rs
 

an
d 
P
M
B
. 

H
B
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

8.
1.
2 

R
ep
or
t p
re
di
ct
ed
 o
ut
tu
rn
. 

H
B
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
8.
1.
3 

A
nn
ua
l r
ev
ie
w
 o
f i
nd
ic
at
or
 

se
t. 

H
B
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

8.
1.
4 

A
nn
ua
l R
ep
or
t 

H
B
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
8.
2 

P
ro
vi
d
e 
th
e 
le
ad
er
sh
ip
, c
ap
ac
it
y 
an
d
 c
ap
ab
ili
ty
 n
ec
es
sa
ry
 t
o
 d
el
iv
er
 f
u
tu
re
 im

p
ro
ve
m
en
ts
 

8.
2.
1 

R
ev
ie
w
 P
er
fo
rm
an
ce
 

S
tr
at
eg
y 
ac
tio
n 
pl
an
 e
ac
h 

m
on
th
 (
in
cl
ud
in
g 
da
ta
 

qu
al
ity
 s
tr
at
eg
y 
ac
tio
n 

pl
an
).
 

H
B
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

8.
2.
2 

C
om
pl
et
e 
in
iti
al
 d
ra
ft 
of
 

V
F
M
 d
as
hb
oa
rd
. 

H
B
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

S
ee
 5
.3
 fo
r 
us
ag
e 
of
 d
as
hb
oa
rd
 

8.
2.
3 

U
pd
at
e 
pr
og
ra
m
m
e/
pr
oj
ec
t 

m
an
ag
em
en
t 

ar
ra
ng
em
en
ts
 w
ith
 a
ud
it 

fin
di
ng
s.
 

H
B
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

Page 93



Im
p
ro
ve
m
en
t 
P
la
n
: 
T
em

p
la
te
   
   
   

20
09
/1
0 
D
ra
ft
 V
er
si
o
n
   
 

   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
  

 
26
 

 R
ef
. 

A
ct
io
n
 

L
ea
d
 

July 

Aug. 

Sep. 

Oct. 

Nov. 

Dec. 

Jan. 

Feb. 

Mar. 

Apr. 

May 

June 

S
ta
tu
s 
/ C
o
rr
ec
ti
ve
 A
ct
io
n
 

8.
2.
4 

C
om
pl
et
e 
le
an
 s
ys
te
m
s 

pi
lo
ts
. 

H
B
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

8.
2.
5 

C
us
to
m
er
 F
irs
t P
ar
t 3
 

tr
ai
ni
ng
 c
om
pl
et
e.
 

H
B
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

8.
2.
6 

D
at
a 
qu
al
ity
 s
po
t c
he
ck
s 

co
m
pl
et
e.
 

H
B
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

8.
3 

C
o
n
tr
ib
u
te
 t
o
 im

p
ro
vi
n
g
 w
id
er
 c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y 
o
u
tc
o
m
es
 (
e.
g
. L
A
A
, M
A
A
) 

8.
3.
1 

U
nd
er
ta
ke
 L
S
P
 B
oa
rd
 

A
w
ay
 D
ay
s 

H
B
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

8.
3.
2 

C
om
pl
et
e 
lo
ca
lit
y 

ev
al
ua
tio
n.
 

H
B
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

8.
3.
3 

C
om
pl
et
e 
fir
st
 d
ra
ft 
of
 

st
ra
te
gy
. 

H
B
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

8.
3.
4 

U
nd
er
ta
ke
 im
pa
ct
 

as
se
ss
m
en
t o
n 
co
m
m
un
ity
 

en
ga
ge
m
en
t. 

H
B
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

8.
3.
5 

U
nd
er
ta
ke
 a
dd
iti
on
al
 

en
ga
ge
m
en
t a
s 
re
qu
ire
d.
 

H
B
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

8.
3.
6 

C
om
pl
et
e 
an
nu
al
 r
ep
or
t 

H
B
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
8.
3.
7 

F
ul
l C
ou
nc
il 
ap
pr
ov
al
 

H
B
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
8.
4 

T
ac
kl
e 
in
eq
u
al
it
y 
an
d
 im

p
ro
ve
 o
u
tc
o
m
es
 f
o
r 
p
eo
p
le
 in
 v
u
ln
er
ab
le
 c
ir
cu
m
st
an
ce
s 

8.
4.
1 

E
qu
al
ity
 a
nd
 D
iv
er
si
ty
 

C
on
fe
re
nc
e 
E
ve
nt
 

C
F
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

8.
4.
2 

R
ef
re
sh
er
 tr
ai
ni
ng
 fo
r 
H
at
e 

C
rim
e 
R
ep
or
tin
g 
C
en
tr
es
 

th
ro
ug
ho
ut
 D
is
tr
ic
t 

C
F
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

8.
4.
3 

D
el
iv
er
 N
V
Q
 tr
ai
ni
ng
 to
 a
ll 

E
qu
al
ity
 a
nd
 D
iv
er
si
ty
 

C
ha
m
pi
on
s 

C
F
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

8.
4.
4 

D
el
iv
er
 a
ll 
ta
rg
et
s 
w
ith
in
 

th
e 
E
qu
al
ity
 a
nd
 D
iv
er
si
ty
 

Le
ve
l 3
 a
ct
io
n 
pl
an
 

C
F
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

8.
4.
5 

D
el
iv
er
 B
la
ck
 H
is
to
ry
 

C
F
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

Page 94



Im
p
ro
ve
m
en
t 
P
la
n
: 
T
em

p
la
te
   
   
   

20
09
/1
0 
D
ra
ft
 V
er
si
o
n
   
 

   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
  

 
27
 

 R
ef
. 

A
ct
io
n
 

L
ea
d
 

July 

Aug. 

Sep. 

Oct. 

Nov. 

Dec. 

Jan. 

Feb. 

Mar. 

Apr. 

May 

June 

S
ta
tu
s 
/ C
o
rr
ec
ti
ve
 A
ct
io
n
 

M
on
th
 E
ve
nt
 

8.
4.
6 

D
el
iv
er
 th
e 
D
iw
al
i E
ve
nt
 

C
F
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
8.
4.
7 

D
el
iv
er
 th
e 
LG
B
T
 tr
ai
ni
ng
 

an
d 
aw
ar
en
es
s 
w
ee
k 

C
F
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

  P
R
1:
 C
u
st
o
m
er
 P
ro
ce
ss
es
  

9 
E
xp
ec
te
d
 O
u
tc
o
m
e 

Im
p
ro
ve
d
 C
u
st
o
m
er
 P
ro
ce
ss
es
 

R
ef
. 

M
ea
su
re
s 
o
f 
S
u
cc
es
s 

A
ct
io
n
s 
R
eq
u
ir
ed
 

Ti
m
es
ca
le
s 

L
ea
d
 

R
es
o
u
rc
es
 

9.
1 

C
us
to
m
er
 S
er
vi
ce
 C
en
tr
e 

D
el
iv
er
y 
ag
ai
ns
t C
us
to
m
er
 

F
irs
t S
tr
at
eg
y 
A
ct
io
n 
pl
an
 

 A
na
ly
si
s 
of
 e
nq
ui
rie
s 
by
 ty
pe
 

31
 D
ec
em
be
r 
20
10
 

D
P
 

H
ea
d 
of
 E
-G
ov
er
nm
en
t; 

Im
pr
ov
em
en
t M
an
ag
er
; 

C
S
C
 s
ta
ff 

9.
2 

C
us
to
m
er
 S
at
is
fa
ct
io
n 

D
el
iv
er
y 
of
 C
us
to
m
er
 F
irs
t 

an
d 
A
cc
es
s 
S
tr
at
eg
y 
A
ct
io
n 

P
la
n 

31
 M
ar
ch
 2
01
2 

H
B
 

C
us
to
m
er
 F
irs
t B
oa
rd
 

9.
3 

C
om
pl
ai
nt
s 
H
an
dl
in
g 

P
ro
du
ct
io
n 
of
 r
ep
or
t 

Q
ua
rt
er
ly
 fr
om
 1
st
 A
pr
il 

20
09
 o
nw
ar
ds
 

H
B
 

C
C
P
P
 T
ea
m
 

9.
4 

S
pa
tia
l P
ro
je
ct
 

C
oo
rd
in
at
io
n 
of
 s
er
vi
ce
 

sp
ec
ifi
c 
fe
ed
ba
ck
 fr
om
 

H
ea
ds
 o
f S
er
vi
ce
 to
 in
fo
rm
 

ev
al
ua
tio
n 

31
 D
ec
em
be
r 
20
09
 

D
P
 

E
-G
ov
 T
ea
m
 

  

Page 95



Im
p
ro
ve
m
en
t 
P
la
n
: 
T
em

p
la
te
   
   
   

20
09
/1
0 
D
ra
ft
 V
er
si
o
n
   
 

   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
  

 
28
 

R
ef
. 

A
ct
io
n
 

L
ea
d
 

July 

Aug. 

Sep. 

Oct. 

Nov. 

Dec. 

Jan. 

Feb. 

Mar. 

Apr. 

May 

June 

S
ta
tu
s 
/ C
o
rr
ec
ti
ve
 A
ct
io
n
 

9.
1 

C
u
st
o
m
er
 S
er
vi
ce
 C
en
tr
e 

9.
1.
1 

C
as
ca
de
 r
el
ev
an
t a
ct
io
ns
 

in
to
 C
S
A
s 
ta
sk
 li
st
s.
 

D
P
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

9.
1.
2 

M
on
ito
r 
de
liv
er
y 
of
 

in
di
vi
du
al
 ta
sk
 li
st
s 
at
 

m
on
th
ly
 1
:2
:1
 m
ee
tin
gs
 

D
P
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

9.
1.
3 

R
ep
or
t p
er
fo
rm
an
ce
 

ag
ai
ns
t a
ct
io
ns
 to
 th
e 

C
us
to
m
er
 F
irs
t B
oa
rd
 

D
P
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

9.
2 

C
u
st
o
m
er
 s
at
is
fa
ct
io
n
 (
d
el
iv
er
y 
o
f 
cu
st
o
m
er
 a
cc
es
s 
st
ra
te
g
y)
 

 
9.
2.
1 

M
on
th
ly
 r
ev
ie
w
 o
f a
ct
io
n 

pl
an
 a
t C
us
to
m
er
 F
irs
t 

B
oa
rd
. 

H
B
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

9.
2.
2 

A
nn
ua
l u
pd
at
e 
to
 C
ab
in
et
 

H
B
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
9.
2.
3 

C
us
to
m
er
 F
irs
t P
ar
t 3
 

tr
ai
ni
ng
 c
om
pl
et
e.
 

H
B
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

9.
2.
4 

La
un
ch
 o
f u
pd
at
ed
 

cu
st
om
er
 s
ta
nd
ar
ds
. 

H
B
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

9.
2.
5 

D
ev
el
op
m
en
t o
f b
ud
ge
t 

bi
ds
 fo
r 
im
pr
ov
ed
 

m
ar
ke
tin
g 
an
d 
cu
st
om
er
 

in
si
gh
t s
of
tw
ar
e.
 

H
B
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

9.
3 

C
o
m
p
la
in
ts
 h
an
d
lin
g
 

9.
3.
1 

Q
ua
rt
er
ly
 r
ep
or
t t
o 

C
ab
in
et
/P
M
B
. 

H
B
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

9.
4 

S
p
at
ia
l p
ro
je
ct
 

9.
4.
1 

C
on
ta
ct
 r
el
ev
an
t 

de
pa
rt
m
en
ts
 fo
r 
fe
ed
ba
ck
 

D
P
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

9.
4.
2 

P
ro
du
ce
 e
va
lu
at
io
n 
re
po
rt
 

D
P
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
  

Page 96



Im
p
ro
ve
m
en
t 
P
la
n
: 
T
em

p
la
te
   
   
   

20
09
/1
0 
D
ra
ft
 V
er
si
o
n
   
 

   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
  

 
29
 

P
R
2:
 P
o
lit
ic
al
 G
o
ve
rn
an
ce
 

10
 

E
xp
ec
te
d
 O
u
tc
o
m
e 

Im
p
ro
ve
d
 G
o
ve
rn
an
ce
 

R
ef
. 

M
ea
su
re
s 
o
f 
S
u
cc
es
s 

A
ct
io
n
s 
R
eq
u
ir
ed
 

Ti
m
es
ca
le
s 

L
ea
d
 

R
es
o
u
rc
es
 

10
.1
 

   

O
ve
rv
ie
w
 a
nd
 S
cr
ut
in
y 

E
th
ic
al
 g
ov
er
na
nc
e 

im
pr
ov
em
en
t t
hr
ou
gh
 b
et
te
r 

re
po
rt
s 
an
d 
pr
e-
ch
ec
k 
an
d 

pr
es
en
ta
tio
n 
by
 P
or
tfo
lio
 

ho
ld
er
 

 C
om
m
un
ity
 C
al
ls
 fo
r 
ac
tio
n 

in
tr
od
uc
ed
 in
 a
cc
or
da
nc
e 

w
ith
 r
eg
ul
at
io
ns
 a
nd
 

gu
id
an
ce
 

31
 M
ar
ch
 2
01
2 

     
31
 M
ar
ch
 2
01
1 

C
F
 

Le
ga
l a
nd
 D
em
oc
ra
tic
 

S
er
vi
ce
s 

10
.2
 

M
em
be
r 
st
an
da
rd
s 

Is
su
in
g 
of
 g
ui
da
nc
e 
an
d 

tr
ai
ni
ng
 b
as
ed
 in
 id
en
tif
ie
d 

is
su
es
 a
nd
 im
pr
ov
ed
 

m
em
be
r 
co
nd
uc
t 

 R
eg
ul
ar
 tr
ai
ni
ng
 a
nd
 b
rie
fin
g 
 

se
ss
io
ns
 o
n 
co
nd
uc
t, 

be
ha
vi
ou
r,
 b
ia
s 
an
d 
pr
e-

de
te
rm
in
at
io
n 

31
 M
ar
ch
 2
01
2 

  

31
 M
ar
ch
 2
01
2 

 

C
F
 

Le
ga
l a
nd
 D
em
oc
ra
tic
 

S
er
vi
ce
s 

10
.3
 

M
od
er
n 
C
ou
nc
ill
or
 

P
ro
gr
am
m
e 

D
el
iv
er
y 
of
 m
an
da
to
ry
 a
nd
 

pr
io
rit
y 
el
em
en
ts
 o
f M
em
be
r 

D
ev
el
op
m
en
t P
ro
gr
am
m
e 

 M
em
be
r 
D
ev
el
op
m
en
t 

C
ha
rt
er
 

1 
A
pr
il 
20
09
 o
nw
ar
ds
 

   
31
 M
ar
ch
 2
01
2 

C
F
 

M
em
be
r 
T
ra
in
in
g 

ap
pr
ov
ed
 b
ud
ge
t 

 

10
.4
 

E
le
ct
io
ns
 

In
tr
od
uc
tio
n 
of
 e
le
ct
or
al
 

pe
rf
or
m
an
ce
 s
ta
nd
ar
ds
 

 

30
 J
un
e 
20
09
 

  

C
F
 

Le
ga
l a
nd
 D
em
oc
ra
tic
 

S
er
vi
ce
s 

Page 97



Im
p
ro
ve
m
en
t 
P
la
n
: 
T
em

p
la
te
   
   
   

20
09
/1
0 
D
ra
ft
 V
er
si
o
n
   
 

   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
  

 
30
 

P
R
2:
 P
o
lit
ic
al
 G
o
ve
rn
an
ce
 

10
 

E
xp
ec
te
d
 O
u
tc
o
m
e 

Im
p
ro
ve
d
 G
o
ve
rn
an
ce
 

R
ef
. 

M
ea
su
re
s 
o
f 
S
u
cc
es
s 

A
ct
io
n
s 
R
eq
u
ir
ed
 

Ti
m
es
ca
le
s 

L
ea
d
 

R
es
o
u
rc
es
 

D
ev
el
op
m
en
t o
f a
 s
ch
oo
ls
 

an
d 
co
m
m
un
ity
 p
ro
gr
am
m
e 

th
at
 e
nc
ou
ra
ge
s 
ev
er
yo
ne
 to
 

pa
rt
ic
ip
at
e 
in
 th
e 
de
m
oc
ra
tic
 

pr
oc
es
s.
 

 E
le
ct
or
al
 c
ha
rt
er
 m
ar
k 

31
 M
ar
ch
 2
01
2 

     
31
 M
ar
ch
 2
01
2 

 R
ef
. 

A
ct
io
n
 

L
ea
d
 

July 

Aug 

Sep. 

Oct. 

Nov. 

Dec. 

Jan. 

Feb. 

Mar. 

Apr. 

May 

June 

S
ta
tu
s 
/ C
o
rr
ec
ti
ve
 A
ct
io
n
 

10
.1
 

O
ve
rv
ie
w
 a
n
d
 S
cr
u
ti
n
y 

10
.1
.1
 

D
et
er
m
in
at
io
n 
of
 p
ro
ce
ss
 

fo
r 
co
ns
id
er
in
g 
C
ou
nc
ill
or
 

C
al
ls
 fo
r 
A
ct
io
n 
 

C
F
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

10
.1
.2
 

C
ou
nc
ill
or
s 

tr
ai
ne
d/
in
fo
rm
ed
 o
n 

C
ou
nc
ill
or
 C
al
ls
 fo
r 
A
ct
io
n 

C
F
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

10
.1
.3
 

R
ep
or
t t
o 
C
ou
nc
il 
on
 n
ew
 

go
ve
rn
an
ce
 a
rr
an
ge
m
en
ts
 

re
qu
ire
d 
by
 L
G
P
IH
A
 2
00
7 

w
ith
 p
ro
po
se
d 
co
ns
ul
ta
tio
n 

ar
ra
ng
em
en
ts
 

C
F
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

10
.1
.4
 

C
ou
nc
il 
to
 d
ec
id
e 
on
 n
ew
 

go
ve
rn
an
ce
 a
rr
an
ge
m
en
ts
 

fo
llo
w
in
g 
co
ns
ul
ta
tio
n 
 

C
F
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

10
.1
.5
 

P
et
iti
on
s 
sc
he
m
e 
to
 b
e 

ag
re
ed
 b
y 
C
ou
nc
il 
(s
ub
je
ct
 

C
F
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

Page 98



Im
p
ro
ve
m
en
t 
P
la
n
: 
T
em

p
la
te
   
   
   

20
09
/1
0 
D
ra
ft
 V
er
si
o
n
   
 

   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
  

 
31
 

R
ef
. 

A
ct
io
n
 

L
ea
d
 

July 

Aug 

Sep. 

Oct. 

Nov. 

Dec. 

Jan. 

Feb. 

Mar. 

Apr. 

May 

June 

S
ta
tu
s 
/ C
o
rr
ec
ti
ve
 A
ct
io
n
 

to
 L
D
E
D
C
 B
ill
 b
ei
ng
 

en
ac
te
d)
 

10
.2
 

M
em

b
er
 S
ta
n
d
ar
d
s 

10
.2
.1
 

A
do
pt
io
n 
of
 n
ew
 C
od
e 
of
 

C
on
du
ct
 fo
r 
M
em
be
rs
 

C
F
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

10
.2
.2
 

T
ra
in
in
g 
on
 n
ew
 C
od
e 
of
 

C
on
du
ct
 fo
r 
M
em
be
rs
 

C
F
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

10
.2
.3
 

P
ro
m
ot
io
n 
of
 e
th
ic
al
 

st
an
da
rd
s 
re
gi
m
e 
an
d 

co
m
pl
ai
nt
s 
pr
oc
ed
ur
e 
 

C
F
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

10
.3
 

M
o
d
er
n
 C
o
u
n
ci
llo
r 
P
ro
g
ra
m
m
e 

10
.3
.1
 

G
ap
 a
na
ly
si
s 
an
d 
tr
ai
ni
ng
 

pl
an
 fo
r 
20
09
/1
0 

co
m
m
itt
ee
/b
oa
rd
 

m
em
be
rs
hi
p 

C
F
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

C
O
M
P
LE
T
E
 

10
.3
.2
 

Id
en
tif
y 
ke
y 
ac
tio
ns
 to
 

de
liv
er
 r
ec
om
m
en
da
tio
ns
 

w
ith
in
 th
e 
pr
im
ar
y 
ch
ar
te
r 

as
se
ss
m
en
t 

C
F
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

10
.3
.3
 

E
va
lu
at
io
n 
st
ra
te
gy
 

C
F
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
10
.3
.4
 

P
D
P
s 
fo
r 
m
em
be
rs
 

C
F
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

10
.4
 

E
le
ct
io
n
s 

10
.4
.1
 

D
el
iv
er
 ta
rg
et
s 
w
ith
in
 

E
le
ct
or
al
 S
ta
nd
ar
ds
 

C
F
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

10
.4
.2
 

D
el
iv
er
 D
em
oc
ra
cy
 W
ee
k 

E
ve
nt
 

C
F
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

10
.4
.3
 

D
el
iv
er
 r
eg
ul
ar
 b
rie
fin
gs
 to
 

E
qu
al
ity
 a
nd
 D
iv
er
si
ty
 a
nd
 

D
U
G
 g
ro
up
 to
 e
nc
ou
ra
ge
 

vo
te
r 
pa
rt
ic
ip
at
io
n 

C
F
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

Page 99



Im
p
ro
ve
m
en
t 
P
la
n
: 
T
em

p
la
te
   
   
   

20
09
/1
0 
D
ra
ft
 V
er
si
o
n
   
 

   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
  

 
32
 

R
ef
. 

A
ct
io
n
 

L
ea
d
 

July 

Aug 

Sep. 

Oct. 

Nov. 

Dec. 

Jan. 

Feb. 

Mar. 

Apr. 

May 

June 

S
ta
tu
s 
/ C
o
rr
ec
ti
ve
 A
ct
io
n
 

10
.4
.5
 

W
or
k 
w
ith
 O
ld
er
 P
eo
pl
es
 

F
or
um
, H
om
es
 a
nd
 

S
he
lte
re
d 
S
ch
em
es
 to
 

en
co
ur
ag
e 
vo
te
r 

pa
rt
ic
ip
at
io
n 

C
F
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

10
.4
.6
 

D
el
iv
er
 ta
rg
et
s 
w
ith
in
 

C
ha
rt
er
 M
ar
k 
A
ct
io
n 
P
la
n 

C
F
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

   P
R
3:
 J
o
in
t 
C
E
O
 w
it
h
 R
ed
d
it
ch
 B
o
ro
u
g
h
 C
o
u
n
ci
l 

11
. 

E
xp
ec
te
d
 O
u
tc
o
m
e 

In
cr
ea
se
d
 V
al
u
e 
fo
r 
M
o
n
ey
 

R
ef
. 

M
ea
su
re
s 
o
f 
S
u
cc
es
s 

A
ct
io
n
s 
R
eq
u
ir
ed
 

Ti
m
es
ca
le
s 

L
ea
d
 

R
es
o
u
rc
es
 

11
.1
 

 

M
ed
iu
m
 w
in
s 

 
D
el
iv
er
y 
of
 p
ro
je
ct
 p
la
ns
 fo
r 

ea
ch
 b
us
in
es
s 
ca
se
 

ap
pr
ov
ed
. 

31
 J
ul
y 
20
09
 

K
D
 

H
ea
ds
 o
f S
er
vi
ce
 

11
.2
 

C
om
pl
et
io
n 
of
 p
ha
se
 3
 

bu
si
ne
ss
 c
as
e 
w
ith
 c
le
ar
 

st
at
em
en
t o
f s
er
vi
ce
 

de
liv
er
y 
be
ne
fit
 a
nd
 

ef
fic
ie
nc
ie
s 

 

D
ev
el
op
m
en
t o
f b
us
in
es
s 

ca
se
. 

31
 J
ul
y 
20
09
 

K
D
 

H
ea
ds
 o
f S
er
vi
ce
 

11
.3
 

D
ec
is
io
n 
to
 p
ro
gr
es
s 

 
R
ep
or
t t
o 
bo
th
 F
ul
l C
ou
nc
ils
 

se
tti
ng
 o
ut
 s
er
vi
ce
 a
nd
 

ef
fic
ie
nc
y 
be
ne
fit
s.
 

A
s 
pe
r 
ea
ch
 a
gr
ee
d 

bu
si
ne
ss
 c
as
e.
 

 
F
ul
l C
ou
nc
il 
31
 J
ul
y 

20
09
 

K
D
 

 
 
K
D
 

A
ct
in
g 
Jo
in
t C
E
O
. 

 C
M
T
 o
f b
ot
h 
co
un
ci
ls
 

 E
xt
er
na
l s
up
po
rt
 fu
nd
ed
 

Page 100



Im
p
ro
ve
m
en
t 
P
la
n
: 
T
em

p
la
te
   
   
   

20
09
/1
0 
D
ra
ft
 V
er
si
o
n
   
 

   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
  

 
33
 

P
R
3:
 J
o
in
t 
C
E
O
 w
it
h
 R
ed
d
it
ch
 B
o
ro
u
g
h
 C
o
u
n
ci
l 

11
. 

E
xp
ec
te
d
 O
u
tc
o
m
e 

In
cr
ea
se
d
 V
al
u
e 
fo
r 
M
o
n
ey
 

R
ef
. 

M
ea
su
re
s 
o
f 
S
u
cc
es
s 

A
ct
io
n
s 
R
eq
u
ir
ed
 

Ti
m
es
ca
le
s 

L
ea
d
 

R
es
o
u
rc
es
 

£4
0,
00
0 
fo
r 
ea
ch
 

au
th
or
ity
 

 R
ef
. 

   

A
ct
io
n
 

L
ea
d
 

July 

Aug. 

Sep. 

Oct. 

Nov. 

Dec. 

Jan. 

Feb. 

Mar. 

Apr. 

May 

June 

S
ta
tu
s 
/ C
o
rr
ec
ti
ve
 A
ct
io
n
 

11
.1
 

M
ed
iu
m
 w
in
s 

11
.1
.1
 

B
us
in
es
s 
ca
se
s 
su
bm
itt
ed
 

to
 F
ul
l C
ou
nc
il 

K
D
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

B
us
in
es
s 
ca
se
s 
w
ill
 b
e 
su
bm
itt
ed
 fo
r 

E
co
no
m
ic
 D
ev
el
op
m
en
t, 
IT
 a
nd
 C
C
T
V
 / 

Li
fe
lin
e.
  

11
.1
.2
 

Im
pl
em
en
ta
tio
n 
of
 m
ed
iu
m
 

te
rm
 w
in
s 

K
D
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

D
ep
en
de
nt
 u
po
n 
de
ci
si
on
 a
t f
ul
l C
ou
nc
il 

m
ee
tin
gs
 a
t e
nd
 o
f J
ul
y.
 M
or
e 
de
ta
ile
d 

im
pl
em
en
ta
tio
n 
pl
an
s 
w
ill
 b
e 
de
ve
lo
pe
d 

as
 p
ar
t o
f t
he
 p
ro
du
ct
io
n 
of
 th
e 
bu
si
ne
ss
 

ca
se
s 
an
d 
th
e 
Im
pr
ov
em
en
t P
la
n 

up
da
te
d 
ac
co
rd
in
gl
y.
 S
ta
ff 
co
ns
ul
ta
tio
n 

w
ill
 n
ee
d 
to
 b
e 
un
de
rt
ak
en
. 

11
.2
 

C
o
m
p
le
ti
o
n
 o
f 
p
h
as
e 
3 
b
u
si
n
es
s 
ca
se
 w
it
h
 c
le
ar
 s
ta
te
m
en
t 
o
f 
se
rv
ic
e 
d
el
iv
er
y 
b
en
ef
it
 a
n
d
 e
ff
ic
ie
n
ci
es
 

11
.2
.1
 

B
us
in
es
s 
ca
se
 s
ub
m
itt
ed
 

to
 fu
ll 
C
ou
nc
il 

K
D
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

B
us
in
es
s 
ca
se
s 
su
bm
itt
ed
 to
 b
ot
h 
fu
ll 

C
ou
nc
ils
. 

11
.3
 

D
ec
is
io
n
 t
o
 p
ro
g
re
ss
  

11
.3
.1
 

Im
pl
em
en
ta
tio
n 
of
 

bu
si
ne
ss
 c
as
e 

K
D
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

D
ep
en
de
nt
 u
po
n 
de
ci
si
on
 a
t f
ul
l C
ou
nc
il 

m
ee
tin
gs
 a
t e
nd
 o
f J
ul
y.
 M
or
e 
de
ta
ile
d 

im
pl
em
en
ta
tio
n 
pl
an
 w
ill
 b
e 
de
ve
lo
pe
d 
as
 

pa
rt
 o
f t
he
 p
ro
du
ct
io
n 
of
 th
e 
bu
si
ne
ss
 

ca
se
s 
an
d 
th
e 
Im
pr
ov
em
en
t P
la
n 

up
da
te
d 
ac
co
rd
in
gl
y.
 S
ta
ff 
co
ns
ul
ta
tio
n 

w
ill
 n
ee
d 
to
 b
e 
un
de
rt
ak
en
. 

  

Page 101



Im
p
ro
ve
m
en
t 
P
la
n
: 
T
em

p
la
te
   
   
   

20
09
/1
0 
D
ra
ft
 V
er
si
o
n
   
 

   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
  

 
34
 

 P
R
4:
 Im

p
ro
ve
d
 P
ar
tn
er
sh
ip
 W
o
rk
in
g
 

12
 

E
xp
ec
te
d
 O
u
tc
o
m
e 

Im
p
ro
ve
d
 P
ar
tn
er
sh
ip
 W
o
rk
in
g
 

R
ef
. 

M
ea
su
re
s 
o
f 
S
u
cc
es
s 

A
ct
io
n
s 
R
eq
u
ir
ed
 

Ti
m
es
ca
le
s 

L
ea
d
 

R
es
o
u
rc
es
 

12
.1
 

C
o-
m
in
gl
ed
 r
ec
yc
la
bl
es
 

co
lle
ct
io
n 

Jo
in
t w
or
ki
ng
 w
ith
 W
C
C
 to
 

de
liv
er
 c
o 
-m
in
gl
ed
 s
er
vi
ce
 

30
 A
pr
il 
20
10
 

M
B
 

B
ud
ge
t b
id
 

12
.2
 

 

F
un
da
m
en
ta
l r
ev
ie
w
 o
f 

B
ro
m
sg
ro
ve
 S
us
ta
in
ab
le
 

C
om
m
un
ity
 S
tr
at
eg
y 
 

S
us
ta
in
ab
le
 C
om
m
un
ity
 

S
tr
at
eg
y 
fu
nd
am
en
ta
l r
ev
ie
w
 

co
m
pl
et
ed
 

30
 N
ov
em
be
r 
20
09
 

 
H
B
 

C
C
P
P
 T
ea
m
; L
S
P
 T
he
m
e 

G
ro
up
 L
ea
de
rs
 

12
.3
 

G
ra
nt
s 
P
ol
ic
y 
 

 
R
es
ea
rc
h 
an
d 
co
ns
ul
ta
tio
n 
to
 

pr
ep
ar
e 
dr
af
t p
ol
ic
y 

31
 D
ec
em
be
r 
20
09
 

H
B
 

C
C
P
P
 T
ea
m
 

 R
ef
. 

A
ct
io
n
 

L
ea
d
 

July 

Aug. 

Sep. 

Oct. 

Nov. 

Dec. 

Jan. 

Feb. 

Mar. 

Apr. 

May 

June 

S
ta
tu
s 
/ C
o
rr
ec
ti
ve
 A
ct
io
n
 

12
.1
 

C
o
-m
in
g
le
d
 r
ec
yc
la
b
le
s 
co
lle
ct
io
n
 (
se
e 
S
ec
ti
o
n
 4
.3
 C
le
an
 S
tr
ee
ts
 &
 C
lim

at
e 
C
h
an
g
e)
 

12
.2
 

F
u
n
d
am

en
ta
l r
ev
ie
w
 o
f 
B
ro
m
sg
ro
ve
 S
u
st
ai
n
ab
le
 C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y 
S
tr
at
eg
y 
(s
ee
 S
ec
ti
o
n
 8
.2
 M
an
ag
in
g
 P
er
fo
rm
an
ce
) 

12
.3
 

G
ra
n
ts
 p
o
lic
y 

12
.3
.1
 

B
en
ch
m
ar
k 
gr
an
ts
 p
ol
ic
ie
s 

of
 o
th
er
 c
ou
nc
ils
. 

H
B
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

12
.3
.2
 

D
ev
el
op
 d
ra
ft 
an
d 
se
ek
 

C
ab
in
et
 a
pp
ro
va
l. 

H
B
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

   P
R
5:
 P
la
n
n
in
g
  

13
. 

E
xp
ec
te
d
 O
u
tc
o
m
e 

Im
p
ro
ve
d
 P
la
n
n
in
g
 S
er
vi
ce
 a
n
d
 B
al
an
ce
d
 D
ev
el
o
p
m
en
t 
o
f 
D
is
tr
ic
t 

R
ef
. 

M
ea
su
re
s 
o
f 
S
u
cc
es
s 

A
ct
io
n
s 
R
eq
u
ir
ed
 

Ti
m
es
ca
le
s 

L
ea
d
 

R
es
o
u
rc
es
 

13
.1
 

 

Lo
ng
br
id
ge
 

 
P
ro
gr
es
s 
A
re
a 
A
ct
io
n 
P
la
n 
to
 

ad
op
tio
n 

 

30
 J
un
e 
20
09
 

  

M
D
 

D
ev
el
op
m
en
t C
on
tr
ol
  

an
d 
S
tr
at
eg
ic
 P
la
nn
in
g 
 

Page 102



Im
p
ro
ve
m
en
t 
P
la
n
: 
T
em

p
la
te
   
   
   

20
09
/1
0 
D
ra
ft
 V
er
si
o
n
   
 

   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
  

 
35
 

 P
R
5:
 P
la
n
n
in
g
  

13
. 

E
xp
ec
te
d
 O
u
tc
o
m
e 

Im
p
ro
ve
d
 P
la
n
n
in
g
 S
er
vi
ce
 a
n
d
 B
al
an
ce
d
 D
ev
el
o
p
m
en
t 
o
f 
D
is
tr
ic
t 

R
ef
. 

M
ea
su
re
s 
o
f 
S
u
cc
es
s 

A
ct
io
n
s 
R
eq
u
ir
ed
 

Ti
m
es
ca
le
s 

L
ea
d
 

R
es
o
u
rc
es
 

S
ec
ur
e 
co
m
m
un
ity
 b
en
ef
its
 

vi
a 
s.
10
6 
ag
re
em
en
ts
 

31
 M
ar
ch
 2
01
2 

13
.2
 

R
eg
io
na
l S
pa
tia
l S
tr
at
eg
y 

R
S
S
2 
-e
xa
m
in
at
io
n 
in
 p
ub
lic
 

 R
S
S
3 
– 
su
bm
it 
C
ou
nc
il 

re
sp
on
se
 to
 o
pt
io
ns
 

co
ns
ul
ta
tio
n 

 R
S
S
3 
- 
S
ub
m
it 
co
un
ci
l 

re
sp
on
se
 to
 p
re
fe
rr
ed
 

op
tio
ns
 c
on
su
lta
tio
n 

 R
S
S
 3
 –
 e
xa
m
in
at
io
n 
in
 

pu
bl
ic
 

30
 J
un
e 
20
09
 

 
30
 J
ul
y 
20
09
 

   
31
 M
ay
 2
01
0 

   30
th
 S
ep
te
m
be
r 
20
10
 

M
D
 

S
tr
at
eg
ic
 P
la
nn
in
g 
 

13
.3
 

Lo
ca
l D
ev
el
op
m
en
t 

F
ra
m
ew
or
k 

P
ro
du
ct
io
n,
 s
ub
m
is
si
on
 a
nd
 

ad
op
tio
n 
of
 L
D
F
 d
oc
um
en
ts
:  

• 
C
or
e 
S
tr
at
eg
y 

• 
T
ow
n 
C
en
tr
e 
(S
ee
 1
.1
 

ab
ov
e)
 

P
ro
du
ct
io
n,
 s
ub
m
is
si
on
 a
nd
 

ad
op
tio
n 
of
 D
ev
el
op
m
en
t 

P
la
n 
D
oc
um
en
ts
 o
n 
ro
lli
ng
 

ba
si
s 

  
30
 J
un
e 
20
10
 

30
 J
un
e 
20
11
 

 
31
 M
ar
ch
 2
01
2 

M
D
 

S
tr
at
eg
ic
 P
la
nn
in
g 
 

13
.4
 

E
ffe
ct
iv
e 
D
ev
el
op
m
en
t 

C
on
tr
ol
 S
er
vi
ce
 

R
ec
ru
itm
en
t a
nd
 r
et
en
tio
n 
of
 

st
af
f t
o 
en
su
re
 c
ap
ac
ity
 

ex
is
ts
  t
o 
de
liv
er
 a
ga
in
st
 

ta
rg
et
s 

 

31
 D
ec
em
be
r 
20
09
 a
nd
 

an
nu
al
ly
 th
er
ea
fte
r 

   

D
H
 
    

D
ev
el
op
m
en
t C
on
tr
ol
  

 

Page 103



Im
p
ro
ve
m
en
t 
P
la
n
: 
T
em

p
la
te
   
   
   

20
09
/1
0 
D
ra
ft
 V
er
si
o
n
   
 

   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
  

 
36
 

 P
R
5:
 P
la
n
n
in
g
  

13
. 

E
xp
ec
te
d
 O
u
tc
o
m
e 

Im
p
ro
ve
d
 P
la
n
n
in
g
 S
er
vi
ce
 a
n
d
 B
al
an
ce
d
 D
ev
el
o
p
m
en
t 
o
f 
D
is
tr
ic
t 

R
ef
. 

M
ea
su
re
s 
o
f 
S
u
cc
es
s 

A
ct
io
n
s 
R
eq
u
ir
ed
 

Ti
m
es
ca
le
s 

L
ea
d
 

R
es
o
u
rc
es
 

D
et
er
m
in
at
io
n 
of
 p
la
nn
in
g 

ap
pl
ic
at
io
ns
 in
 a
cc
or
da
nc
e 

w
ith
 p
ol
ic
y,
 ta
ki
ng
 in
to
 

ac
co
un
t a
ll 
m
at
er
ia
l 

co
ns
id
er
at
io
ns
 

 Q
ua
rt
er
ly
 M
em
be
r 
P
la
nn
in
g 

tr
ai
ni
ng
 

 P
ee
r 
R
ev
ie
w
 o
f D
ev
el
op
m
en
t 

C
on
tr
ol
 S
er
vi
ce
 

 M
ig
ra
tio
n 
of
 s
er
vi
ce
 to
 

C
us
to
m
er
 S
er
vi
ce
 C
en
tr
e 

31
 M
ar
ch
 2
01
2 

     
31
 M
ar
ch
 2
01
2 

 
 
31

st
 O
ct
ob
er
 2
00
9 

  
31
 J
ul
y 
20
09
 

D
H
 
     
D
H
 
  

H
B
/D
H
 

  
D
H
 

 R
ef
. 

A
ct
io
n
 

L
ea
d
 

July 

Aug. 

Sep. 

Oct. 

Nov. 

Dec. 

Jan. 

Feb. 

Mar. 

Apr. 

May 

June 

S
ta
tu
s 
/ C
o
rr
ec
ti
ve
 A
ct
io
n
 

13
.1
 

L
o
n
g
b
ri
d
g
e 

13
.1
.1
 

A
tte
nd
 P
ro
je
ct
 D
el
iv
er
y 

B
oa
rd
 M
ee
tin
gs
 

P
S
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

13
.1
.2
 

A
tte
nd
 P
ro
je
ct
 D
el
iv
er
y 

G
ro
up
 m
ee
tin
gs
 a
nd
  

M
D
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

13
.1
.3
 

R
eg
ul
ar
 m
ee
tin
g 
w
ith
 

de
ve
lo
pe
rs
 la
nd
ow
ne
rs
 

de
pe
nd
an
t o
n 
pr
og
re
ss
 

w
ith
 th
e 
A
pp
lic
at
io
ns
  

M
D
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

13
.2
 

R
eg
io
n
al
 S
p
at
ia
l S
tr
at
eg
y 

13
.2
.1
 

R
es
po
nd
 to
 R
S
S
3 

M
D
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

Page 104



Im
p
ro
ve
m
en
t 
P
la
n
: 
T
em

p
la
te
   
   
   

20
09
/1
0 
D
ra
ft
 V
er
si
o
n
   
 

   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
  

 
37
 

R
ef
. 

A
ct
io
n
 

L
ea
d
 

July 

Aug. 

Sep. 

Oct. 

Nov. 

Dec. 

Jan. 

Feb. 

Mar. 

Apr. 

May 

June 

S
ta
tu
s 
/ C
o
rr
ec
ti
ve
 A
ct
io
n
 

op
tio
ns
 

13
.2
.2
 

R
ec
ei
ve
 R
S
S
2 
P
an
el
 

re
po
rt
 a
nd
 r
es
po
nd
 if
 

ne
ce
ss
ar
y 

M
D
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

13
.2
.3
 

R
ec
ei
ve
 a
nd
 r
es
po
nd
 to
 

R
S
S
2 
P
ro
po
se
d 

C
ha
ng
es
 

M
D
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

13
.2
.4
 

P
re
pa
re
 R
S
S
3 

co
ns
ul
ta
tio
n 
re
sp
on
se
 

M
D
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

13
.2
.5
 

S
ub
m
it 
R
S
S
3 
R
es
po
ns
e 

M
D
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
13
.3
 

L
o
ca
l D
ev
el
o
p
m
en
t 
F
ra
m
ew
o
rk
 

13
.3
.1
 

A
ss
em
bl
e 
C
or
e 
S
tr
at
eg
y 

E
vi
de
nc
e 
ba
se
 

M
D
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

13
.3
.2
 

P
re
pa
re
 F
ur
th
er
 D
ra
ft 

C
or
e 
S
tr
at
eg
y 

M
D
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

13
.3
.3
 

C
on
su
lt 
on
 F
ur
th
er
 D
ra
ft 

C
or
e 
st
ra
te
gy
  

M
D
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

13
.3
.4
 

C
on
su
lt 
on
 F
in
al
 C
or
e 

st
ra
te
gy
 

M
D
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

13
.4
 

E
ff
ec
ti
ve
 D
ev
el
o
p
m
en
t 
C
o
n
tr
o
l S
er
vi
ce
 

13
.4
.1
 

R
ec
ru
itm
en
t a
nd
 

re
te
nt
io
n 
of
 s
ta
ff 

D
H
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

13
.4
.2
 

D
et
er
m
in
at
io
n 
of
 

pl
an
ni
ng
 a
pp
lic
at
io
ns
 

D
H
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

13
.4
.3
 

Q
ua
rt
er
ly
 M
em
be
r 

P
la
nn
in
g 
tr
ai
ni
ng
 

D
H
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

13
.4
.4
. 

M
ig
ra
tio
n 
of
 

D
ev
el
op
m
en
t C
on
tr
ol
 

S
er
vi
ce
 to
 C
us
to
m
er
 

S
er
vi
ce
 C
en
tr
e 

D
H
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

13
.4
.5
 

U
nd
er
ta
ke
 I&
D
eA
 P
ee
r 

R
ev
ie
w
 

H
B
/D
H
 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

Page 105



Im
p
ro
ve
m
en
t 
P
la
n
: 
T
em

p
la
te
   
   
   

20
09
/1
0 
D
ra
ft
 V
er
si
o
n
   
 

   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
  

 
38
 

R
ef
. 

A
ct
io
n
 

L
ea
d
 

July 

Aug. 

Sep. 

Oct. 

Nov. 

Dec. 

Jan. 

Feb. 

Mar. 

Apr. 

May 

June 

S
ta
tu
s 
/ C
o
rr
ec
ti
ve
 A
ct
io
n
 

13
.4
.6
 

C
on
si
de
r 
re
su
lts
 a
t 

C
us
to
m
er
 F
irs
t B
oa
rd
 

an
d 
C
M
T
, i
nc
lu
di
ng
 

ac
tio
n 
pl
an
. 

H
B
/D
H
 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

13
.4
.7
 

R
ep
or
t c
on
cl
us
io
ns
 to
 

M
em
be
rs
. 

H
B
/D
H
 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

13
.4
.8
 

D
el
iv
er
 a
ct
io
n 
pl
an
. 

H
B
/D
H
 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

  H
R
 &
 O
D
1:
 L
ea
rn
in
g
 a
n
d
 D
ev
el
o
p
m
en
t 
 

14
 

E
xp
ec
te
d
 O
u
tc
o
m
e 

M
o
d
er
n
 C
o
u
n
ci
llo
rs
 a
n
d
 O
ff
ic
er
s 

R
ef
. 

M
ea
su
re
s 
o
f 
S
u
cc
es
s 

A
ct
io
n
s 
R
eq
u
ir
ed
 

T
im
es
ca
le
s 

L
ea
d
 

R
es
o
u
rc
es
 

14
.1
 

E
m
pl
oy
ee
 s
ki
lls
 a
nd
 

ca
pa
ci
ty
 

 

D
ev
el
op
 c
or
e 
co
m
pe
te
nc
ie
s 

fo
r 
al
l s
ta
ff 

 R
ev
ie
w
 o
f P
D
R
 p
ro
ce
ss
 

S
tr
ea
m
lin
e 
M
od
er
n 
M
an
ag
er
 

 F
ra
m
ew
or
k 
to
 m
ak
e 
m
or
e 

ac
ce
ss
ib
le
 

31
 J
an
 2
01
0 

  
31
 J
an
 2
01
0 

  
31
 J
an
 2
01
0 

H
P
 

L&
D
 M
an
ag
er
 

14
.2
 

M
ai
nt
ai
n 
In
ve
st
or
s 
in
 

P
eo
pl
e 
 a
cc
re
di
ta
tio
n 

R
ev
ie
w
 a
nd
 d
el
iv
er
 II
P
 a
ct
io
n 

pl
an
 

 H
ol
d 
an
nu
al
 M
an
ag
em
en
t 

C
on
fe
re
nc
e 

30
 A
pr
il 
20
11
 

  
31
 O
ct
ob
er
 2
00
9 
an
d 

an
nu
al
ly
 th
er
ea
fte
r 

H
P
 

H
R
O
D
 te
am
 

 

Page 106



Im
p
ro
ve
m
en
t 
P
la
n
: 
T
em

p
la
te
   
   
   

20
09
/1
0 
D
ra
ft
 V
er
si
o
n
   
 

   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
  

 
39
 

R
ef
 

A
ct
io
n
 

L
ea
d
 

July 

Aug. 

Sep. 

Oct. 

Nov. 

Dec. 

Jan. 

Feb. 

Mar. 

Apr. 

May 

June 

S
ta
tu
s 
/ C
o
rr
ec
ti
ve
 A
ct
io
n
 

14
.1
 

E
m
p
lo
ye
e 
sk
ill
s 
an
d
 c
ap
ac
it
y 

14
.1
.1
 

F
in
is
h 
‘T
he
 B
ro
m
sg
ro
ve
 

W
ay
’ f
ra
m
ew
or
k 
in
c 
st
af
f 

co
m
ps
 a
nd
 c
ha
ng
es
 to
 

w
ho
le
 P
D
R
 s
ch
em
e 

H
P
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

14
.1
.2
 

1s
t  d
ra
ft 
to
 C
M
T
 fo
r 

fe
ed
ba
ck
 

H
P
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

14
.1
.3
 

C
on
su
lt 
un
io
ns
 a
nd
 s
ta
ff 

w
or
ki
ng
 g
ro
up
 

H
P
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

14
.1
.4
 

T
o 
C
M
T
 fo
r 
fin
al
 a
pp
ro
va
l 

H
P
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
14
.1
.5
 

T
ra
in
in
g 
fo
r 
st
af
f a
nd
 

m
an
ag
er
s 
to
 s
up
po
rt
 

la
un
ch
 

H
P
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

14
.2
 

M
ai
n
ta
in
 In
ve
st
o
rs
 in
 P
eo
p
le
  a
cc
re
d
it
at
io
n
 

14
.2
.1
 

A
nn
ua
l m
gt
 c
on
f –
 

pr
op
os
al
 to
 C
M
T
 

H
P
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

14
.2
.2
 

A
nn
ua
l m
gt
 c
on
f -
 d
el
iv
er
 

H
P
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
14
.2
.3
 

F
ut
ur
e 
st
ar
s 
– 
pr
op
os
al
 to
 

C
M
T
 

H
P
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

14
.2
.4
 

F
ut
ur
e 
st
ar
s 
– 
la
un
ch
 (
as
 

pa
rt
 o
f w
or
kf
or
ce
 p
la
n/
 

su
cc
es
si
on
 p
la
n)
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

14
.2
.5
 

M
gt
 in
du
ct
io
n 
– 
la
un
ch
  

H
P
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
14
.2
.6
 

M
gt
 in
du
ct
io
n 
– 
T
N
A
/P
D
P
 

H
P
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
14
.2
.7
 

M
gt
 in
du
ct
io
n 
– 
im
pl
em
en
t 

in
di
vi
du
al
 P
D
P
s 

H
P
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

14
.2
.8
 

M
g 
in
du
ct
io
n 
– 
ev
al
ua
tio
n 

re
po
rt
 to
 C
M
T
 

H
P
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

14
.2
.9
 

IiP
 s
po
t c
he
ck
 b
y 
us
ua
l 

ex
te
rn
al
 a
ss
es
so
r 
to
 

be
nc
hm
ar
k 
pr
og
re
ss
 

ag
ai
ns
t n
ew
 s
ta
nd
ar
ds
 

(B
ro
nz
e/
S
ilv
er
/G
ol
d)
 

H
P
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

Page 107



Im
p
ro
ve
m
en
t 
P
la
n
: 
T
em

p
la
te
   
   
   

20
09
/1
0 
D
ra
ft
 V
er
si
o
n
   
 

   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
  

 
40
 

R
ef
 

A
ct
io
n
 

L
ea
d
 

July 

Aug. 

Sep. 

Oct. 

Nov. 

Dec. 

Jan. 

Feb. 

Mar. 

Apr. 

May 

June 

S
ta
tu
s 
/ C
o
rr
ec
ti
ve
 A
ct
io
n
 

14
.2
.1
0 

IiP
 s
po
t c
he
ck
 –
 r
ep
or
t 

fin
di
ng
s 
to
 C
M
T
 w
ith
 a
ny
 

re
co
ve
ry
 p
ro
po
sa
ls
 

H
P
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

  H
R
&
O
D
2:
 M
o
d
er
n
is
at
io
n
 

15
 

E
xp
ec
te
d
 O
u
tc
o
m
e 

C
o
n
si
st
en
cy
 in
 p
eo
p
le
 m
an
ag
em

en
t 

R
ef
. 

M
ea
su
re
s 
o
f 
S
u
cc
es
s 

A
ct
io
n
s 
R
eq
u
ir
ed
 

T
im
es
ca
le
s 

L
ea
d
 

R
es
o
u
rc
es
 

15
.1
 

M
ai
nt
en
an
ce
 o
f e
qu
al
 p
ay
 

 
A
nn
ua
l m
on
ito
rin
g 
of
 p
ay
 

st
ru
ct
ur
e 

 D
el
iv
er
y 
of
 J
E
 a
pp
ea
ls
 

pr
oc
es
s 

 D
ev
el
op
m
en
t o
f M
ar
ke
t 

F
or
ce
s 
S
up
pl
em
en
t p
ol
ic
y 

31
 M
ar
ch
 2
01
0 
an
d 

an
nu
al
ly
 th
er
ea
fte
r 

 
T
B
C
 d
ep
en
de
nt
 u
po
n 

nu
m
be
r 
of
 a
pp
ea
ls
. 

  
S
ep
te
m
be
r 
20
09
 

 

JP
 

  S
G
 

   M
S
 

H
R
 te
am
 

C
M
T
 

T
ra
de
 U
ni
on
s 

 

15
.2
 

P
ol
ic
y 
re
vi
ew
 a
nd
 

de
ve
lo
pm
en
t 

 

D
el
iv
er
 th
e 
an
nu
al
 H
R
 p
ol
ic
y 

pr
og
ra
m
m
e 

 C
on
su
lta
tio
n 
w
ith
 m
an
ag
er
s 

an
d 
tr
ad
e 
un
io
ns
 a
s 
po
lic
ie
s 

ar
e 
re
vi
ew
ed
/ d
ev
el
op
ed
 

31
 M
ar
ch
 2
01
0 

  
31
 M
ar
ch
 2
01
0 

 
H
R
 te
am
 

15
.3
 

C
re
at
io
n 
of
 a
 w
or
kf
or
ce
 

pl
an
 

D
el
iv
er
y 
of
 g
ap
 a
na
ly
si
s 

ba
se
d 
on
 S
E
R
C
O
 b
us
in
es
s 

ca
se
 

 D
el
iv
er
y 
of
 q
ua
lif
ic
at
io
ns
 

31
st
  M
ar
ch
 2
01
0 
 

H
P
 

Le
ar
ni
ng
 &
 O
D
 M
an
ag
er
 

O
D
 b
ud
ge
t 

Page 108



Im
p
ro
ve
m
en
t 
P
la
n
: 
T
em

p
la
te
   
   
   

20
09
/1
0 
D
ra
ft
 V
er
si
o
n
   
 

   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
  

 
41
 

H
R
&
O
D
2:
 M
o
d
er
n
is
at
io
n
 

15
 

E
xp
ec
te
d
 O
u
tc
o
m
e 

C
o
n
si
st
en
cy
 in
 p
eo
p
le
 m
an
ag
em

en
t 

R
ef
. 

M
ea
su
re
s 
o
f 
S
u
cc
es
s 

A
ct
io
n
s 
R
eq
u
ir
ed
 

T
im
es
ca
le
s 

L
ea
d
 

R
es
o
u
rc
es
 

su
rv
ey
/s
ki
lls
 s
ur
ve
y 

 Id
en
tif
y 
st
ra
te
gi
c 
H
R
 

so
lu
tio
ns
/s
tr
at
eg
ie
s 
to
 c
lo
se
 

th
e 
ga
p 

15
.4
 

D
el
iv
er
y 
of
 c
or
po
ra
te
 

ta
rg
et
 fo
r 
si
ck
ne
ss
 

ab
se
nc
e 
an
d 
co
ns
is
te
nc
y 

in
 m
an
ag
er
ia
l a
pp
ro
ac
h 

D
el
iv
er
y 
of
 r
et
ur
n 
to
 w
or
k 

in
te
rv
ie
w
 tr
ai
ni
ng
 fo
r 

m
an
ag
er
s 

 U
se
 o
f P
er
fo
rm
an
ce
 c
lin
ic
s 

 P
ro
du
ct
io
n 
of
 m
on
th
ly
 

m
on
ito
rin
g 
re
po
rt
s 

  

31
st
 M
ar
ch
 2
01
0 

S
G
 

H
R
 A
dv
is
or
s 

O
D
 B
ud
ge
t 

A
ss
is
ta
nt
 C
hi
ef
 E
xe
cu
tiv
e 

H
ea
d 
of
 H
um
an
 

R
es
ou
rc
es
 a
nd
 O
D
 

 

 R
ef
. 

A
ct
io
n
 

L
ea
d
 

July 

Aug. 

Sep. 

Oct. 

Nov. 

Dec. 

Jan. 

Feb. 

Mar. 

Apr. 

May 

June 

S
ta
tu
s 
/ C
o
rr
ec
ti
ve
 A
ct
io
n
 

15
.1
 

M
ai
n
te
n
an
ce
 o
f 
eq
u
al
 p
ay
 

15
.1
.1
 

3 
m
on
th
ly
 J
E
 A
ud
iti
ng
  a
nd
 

an
nu
al
 r
ev
ie
w
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

15
.1
.2
 

JE
 A
pp
ea
ls
  (
T
im
el
in
es
 to
 

be
 p
op
ul
at
ed
 w
he
n 

nu
m
be
rs
 o
f a
pp
ea
ls
 a
re
 

kn
ow
n)
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

15
.1
.3
 

D
el
iv
er
y 
of
 M
ar
ke
t F
or
ce
s 

S
up
pl
em
en
t p
ol
ic
y 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

Page 109



Im
p
ro
ve
m
en
t 
P
la
n
: 
T
em

p
la
te
   
   
   

20
09
/1
0 
D
ra
ft
 V
er
si
o
n
   
 

   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
  

 
42
 

R
ef
. 

A
ct
io
n
 

L
ea
d
 

July 

Aug. 

Sep. 

Oct. 

Nov. 

Dec. 

Jan. 

Feb. 

Mar. 

Apr. 

May 

June 

S
ta
tu
s 
/ C
o
rr
ec
ti
ve
 A
ct
io
n
 

15
.2
 

P
o
lic
y 
re
vi
ew
 a
n
d
 d
ev
el
o
p
m
en
t 

15
.2
.1
 

H
ar
m
on
is
at
io
n 
of
 

em
pl
oy
ee
 te
rm
s 
an
d 

co
nd
iti
on
s 
of
 e
m
pl
oy
m
en
t; 

po
st
 S
E
R
C
O
 r
ep
or
t. 
  

JP
/H
R
 

A
dv
is
or

s 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

S
E
R
C
O
 r
ep
or
t r
ec
ei
ve
d 
03
.0
6.
09
. 

 D
et
ai
le
d 
pr
oj
ec
t p
la
n 
to
 b
e 
de
ve
lo
pe
d 
in
 

re
ad
in
es
s 
fo
r 
en
d 
Ju
ne
 S
ha
re
d 
S
er
vi
ce
s 

B
oa
rd
 m
ee
tin
g.
   

 Im
pr
ov
em
en
t P
la
n 
tim
el
in
es
 to
 b
e 
re
-

po
pu
la
te
d 
on
ce
 o
ut
lin
e 
pr
oj
ec
t p
la
n 
ha
s 

be
en
 a
pp
ro
ve
d 
by
 P
ro
gr
am
m
e 
B
oa
rd
. 

 
15
.3
 

C
re
at
io
n
 o
f 
w
o
rk
fo
rc
e 
p
la
n
 

15
.3
.1
 

C
ar
ry
 o
ut
 g
ap
 a
na
ly
si
s 

H
P
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
15
.3
.2
 

R
e-
do
 q
ua
lif
ic
at
io
ns
/s
ki
lls
 

su
rv
ey
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

15
.3
.3
 

D
ev
el
op
 s
tr
at
eg
ic
 H
R
&
O
D
 

so
lu
tio
ns
 

JP
/H
P
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

15
.3
.4
 

P
ro
po
sa
ls
 to
 C
M
T
 

JP
/H
P
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
15
.3
.5
 

C
on
su
lt 
un
io
ns
/s
ta
ff 

w
or
ki
ng
 g
ro
up
 

H
P
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

15
.3
.6
 

P
la
n 
ba
ck
 to
 C
M
T
 fo
r 

ap
pr
ov
al
 

JP
/H
P
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

15
.3
.6
 

C
om
m
en
ce
 

im
pl
em
en
ta
tio
n 

JP
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

A
fte
r 
Ju
ne
 2
01
0 

 
 

H
R
&
 O
D
 3
: 
P
o
si
ti
ve
 E
m
p
lo
ye
e 
C
lim
at
e 
 

16
 

 
E
xp
ec
te
d
 O
u
tc
o
m
e 

T
o
 b
e 
p
er
ce
iv
ed
 a
s 
an
 E
m
p
lo
ye
r 
o
f 
C
h
o
ic
e 

R
ef
. 

M
ea
su
re
s 
o
f 
S
u
cc
es
s 

A
ct
io
n
s 
R
eq
u
ir
ed
 

T
im
es
ca
le
s 

L
ea
d
 

R
es
o
u
rc
es
 

Page 110



Im
p
ro
ve
m
en
t 
P
la
n
: 
T
em

p
la
te
   
   
   

20
09
/1
0 
D
ra
ft
 V
er
si
o
n
   
 

   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
  

 
43
 

H
R
&
 O
D
 3
: 
P
o
si
ti
ve
 E
m
p
lo
ye
e 
C
lim
at
e 
 

16
 

 
E
xp
ec
te
d
 O
u
tc
o
m
e 

T
o
 b
e 
p
er
ce
iv
ed
 a
s 
an
 E
m
p
lo
ye
r 
o
f 
C
h
o
ic
e 

R
ef
. 

M
ea
su
re
s 
o
f 
S
u
cc
es
s 

A
ct
io
n
s 
R
eq
u
ir
ed
 

T
im
es
ca
le
s 

L
ea
d
 

R
es
o
u
rc
es
 

16
.1
 

R
ec
ru
itm
en
t a
nd
 

R
et
en
tio
n 
of
 s
ta
ff 

 

R
ev
ie
w
 o
f w
or
k-
 li
fe
 b
al
an
ce
 

pr
ac
tic
es
 

 R
ev
ie
w
 o
f f
am
ily
 fr
ie
nd
ly
 

pr
ac
tic
es
 

31
 M
ar
ch
 2
01
0 

  

M
S
/S
G
/N
W
 

  “   

H
R
 T
ea
m
 

T
ra
de
 U
ni
on
s 

C
M
T
 

16
.2
 

E
m
pl
oy
ee
 s
at
is
fa
ct
io
n 

E
m
pl
oy
ee
 s
ur
ve
y 
re
co
ve
ry
 

pl
an
 

 

31
 M
ar
ch
 2
01
0 

H
P
 

Le
ar
ni
ng
 &
 O
D
 M
an
ag
er
 

O
D
 B
ud
ge
t 

16
.3
 

In
du
st
ria
l r
el
at
io
ns
 

6-
w
ee
kl
y 
m
ee
tin
g 
w
ith
 

un
io
ns
 a
tte
nd
ed
 b
y 
se
ni
or
 

m
an
ag
er
s 

 

31
 M
ar
ch
 2
01
2 

 
M
S
 

H
R
 a
nd
 O
D
 te
am
 

E
qu
al
iti
es
 O
ffi
ce
r 

H
ea
d 
of
 H
R
 a
nd
 O
D
 

T
ra
de
 U
ni
on
s 

16
.4
 

S
af
e 
an
d 
he
al
th
y 
w
or
ki
ng
 

en
vi
ro
nm
en
t 

 

D
ev
el
op
m
en
t o
f H
ea
lth
 a
nd
 

S
af
et
y 
po
lic
ie
s 

 C
om
m
itm
en
t t
o 
W
el
ln
es
s 

W
or
ks
 In
iti
at
iv
e 
an
d 
de
liv
er
y 

of
 w
el
lb
ei
ng
 p
ro
gr
am
m
e 
fo
r 

em
pl
oy
ee
s 

 O
pe
ra
tio
n 
of
 C
or
po
ra
te
 

H
ea
lth
 a
nd
 S
af
et
y 

C
om
m
itt
ee
 

 

30
 J
un
e 
20
10
 

D
I 

H
ea
lth
 a
nd
 S
af
et
y 

A
dv
is
or
 

E
xe
cu
tiv
e 
D
ire
ct
or
 

P
ar
tn
er
sh
ip
s 
an
d 
P
ro
je
ct
s  

H
ea
d 
of
 H
R
 a
nd
 O
D
 

H
ea
lth
 a
nd
 S
af
et
y 

C
om
m
itt
ee
 

T
ra
de
 U
ni
on
s 

 

 

Page 111



Im
p
ro
ve
m
en
t 
P
la
n
: 
T
em

p
la
te
   
   
   

20
09
/1
0 
D
ra
ft
 V
er
si
o
n
   
 

   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
  

 
44
 

R
ef
. 

A
ct
io
n
 

L
ea
d
 

July 

Aug. 

Sep. 

Oct. 

Nov. 

Dec. 

Jan. 

Feb. 

Mar. 

Apr. 

May 

June 

S
ta
tu
s 
/ C
o
rr
ec
ti
ve
 A
ct
io
n
 

16
.1
 

R
ec
ru
it
m
en
t 
an
d
 r
et
en
ti
o
n
 o
f 
st
af
f 

16
.1
.1
 

 R
ev
ie
w
 F
le
xi
 L
ea
ve
 

(W
or
k-
lif
e/
ba
la
nc
e 

pr
ac
tic
es
) 

S
G
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

T
hi
s 
w
or
k 
w
ill
 b
e 
de
pe
nd
en
t u
po
n 
te
am
 

ca
pa
ci
ty
 –
 th
e 
pr
io
rit
y 
w
ill
 b
e 
to
 a
dd
re
ss
 

15
.2
.1
 

16
.1
.2
 

R
ev
ie
w
 C
ar
ee
r 

B
re
ak
/S
ab
ba
tic
al
 p
ra
ct
ic
e 

(W
or
k-
lif
e 
ba
la
nc
e 

pr
ac
tic
es
) 

M
S
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

T
hi
s 
w
or
k 
w
ill
 b
e 
de
pe
nd
en
t u
po
n 
te
am
 

ca
pa
ci
ty
 –
 th
e 
pr
io
rit
y 
w
ill
 b
e 
to
 a
dd
re
ss
 

15
.2
.1
 

16
.1
.3
 

R
ev
ie
w
 H
om
e 
W
or
ki
ng
 

pr
ac
tic
es
 

(W
or
k-
lif
e 
ba
la
nc
e 

pr
ac
tic
es
) 

S
G
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

T
hi
s 
w
or
k 
w
ill
 b
e 
de
pe
nd
en
t u
po
n 
te
am
 

ca
pa
ci
ty
 –
 th
e 
pr
io
rit
y 
w
ill
 b
e 
to
 a
dd
re
ss
 

15
.2
.1
 

16
.1
.4
 

R
ep
or
ts
 to
 C
M
T
 

M
S
/S
G
 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
T
hi
s 
w
or
k 
w
ill
 b
e 
de
pe
nd
en
t u
po
n 
te
am
 

ca
pa
ci
ty
 –
 th
e 
pr
io
rit
y 
w
ill
 b
e 
to
 a
dd
re
ss
 

15
.2
.1
 

16
.1
. 

C
on
su
lt 
tr
ad
e 
un
io
ns
 p
os
t 

C
M
T
 a
pp
ro
va
l i
n 
re
sp
ec
t 

of
 fl
ex
i l
ea
ve
, c
ar
ee
r 

br
ea
k/
sa
bb
at
ic
al
 p
ra
ct
ic
es
 

M
S
/S
G
 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
T
hi
s 
w
or
k 
w
ill
 b
e 
de
pe
nd
en
t u
po
n 
te
am
 

ca
pa
ci
ty
 –
 th
e 
pr
io
rit
y 
w
ill
 b
e 
to
 a
dd
re
ss
 

15
.2
.1
 

16
.1
.6
 

C
om
m
en
ce
 fe
as
ib
ili
ty
 

st
ud
y 
in
to
 T
er
m
 T
im
e 
O
nl
y 

W
or
ki
ng
 a
rr
an
ge
m
en
ts
 

(F
am
ily
 F
rie
nd
ly
 p
ra
ct
ic
es
) 

N
W
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

T
hi
s 
w
or
k 
w
ill
 b
e 
de
pe
nd
en
t u
po
n 
te
am
 

ca
pa
ci
ty
 –
 th
e 
pr
io
rit
y 
w
ill
 b
e 
to
 a
dd
re
ss
 

15
.2
.1
 

16
.1
.7
 

R
ep
or
t t
o 
C
M
T
 o
n 
fin
di
ng
s 

of
 fe
as
ib
ili
ty
 s
tu
dy
 in
to
 

T
er
m
 T
im
e 
O
nl
y 
w
or
ki
ng
 

(F
am
ily
 F
rie
nd
ly
 p
ra
ct
ic
es
) 

N
W
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

T
hi
s 
w
or
k 
w
ill
 b
e 
de
pe
nd
en
t u
po
n 
te
am
 

ca
pa
ci
ty
 –
 th
e 
pr
io
rit
y 
w
ill
 b
e 
to
 a
dd
re
ss
 

15
.2
.1
 

16
.1
.8
 

C
on
su
lt 
tr
ad
e 
un
io
ns
 p
os
t 

C
M
T
 a
pp
ro
va
l i
n 
re
sp
ec
t 

of
 T
er
m
 T
im
e 
O
nl
y 

W
or
ki
ng
 p
ra
ct
ic
es
 

(F
am
ily
 F
rie
nd
ly
 p
ra
ct
ic
es
) 

N
W
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

T
hi
s 
w
or
k 
w
ill
 b
e 
de
pe
nd
en
t u
po
n 
te
am
 

ca
pa
ci
ty
 –
 th
e 
pr
io
rit
y 
w
ill
 b
e 
to
 a
dd
re
ss
 

15
.2
.1
 

16
.2
 

E
m
p
lo
ye
e 
sa
ti
sf
ac
ti
o
n
 

 

Page 112



Im
p
ro
ve
m
en
t 
P
la
n
: 
T
em

p
la
te
   
   
   

20
09
/1
0 
D
ra
ft
 V
er
si
o
n
   
 

   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
  

 
45
 

R
ef
. 

A
ct
io
n
 

L
ea
d
 

July 

Aug. 

Sep. 

Oct. 

Nov. 

Dec. 

Jan. 

Feb. 

Mar. 

Apr. 

May 

June 

S
ta
tu
s 
/ C
o
rr
ec
ti
ve
 A
ct
io
n
 

16
.2
.1
 

E
m
pl
oy
ee
 s
ur
ve
y 
- 

im
pl
em
en
ta
tio
n 
of
 

re
co
ve
ry
 p
la
n 
– 
sp
ec
ifi
c 

ta
sk
s 
no
t f
in
al
is
ed
 

th
er
ef
or
e 
no
 d
et
ai
l 

av
ai
la
bl
e 
@
 3
/6
/0
9 

H
P
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

F
oc
us
 g
ro
up
s 
ca
rr
ie
d 
ou
t i
n 
M
ay
 2
00
9.
  

R
ec
ov
er
y 
pr
op
os
al
s 
to
 C
M
T
 in
 J
un
e 

20
09
.  
E
xa
ct
 ti
m
el
in
es
 to
 b
e 
re
-p
op
ul
at
ed
 

po
st
 C
M
T
 r
ep
or
t. 

16
.3
 

In
d
u
st
ri
al
 r
el
at
io
n
s 

16
.3
.1
 

6 
w
ee
kl
y 
U
ni
on
 L
ia
is
on
 

M
ee
tin
gs
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

16
.4
 

S
af
e 
w
o
rk
in
g
 e
n
vi
ro
n
m
en
t 

16
.4
.1
 

D
el
iv
er
y 
of
 e
m
pl
oy
ee
 

he
al
th
 a
nd
 w
el
lb
ei
ng
 

pr
og
ra
m
m
e 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

16
.4
.2
 

R
ev
ie
w
 C
or
po
ra
te
 H
ea
lth
 

an
d 
sa
fe
ty
 p
ol
ic
y 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

16
.4
.3
 

D
ev
el
op
 A
lc
oh
ol
 a
nd
 

D
ru
gs
 A
w
ar
en
es
s 
po
lic
y 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

16
.4
.4
 

O
pe
ra
tio
n 
of
 C
or
po
ra
te
 

H
ea
lth
 a
nd
 S
af
et
y 

C
om
m
itt
ee
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

    

Page 113



Page 114

This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 To confirm the accuracy of the minutes of the meetings of the Cabinet held on 3rd June 2009 (attached) and 24th June 2009 (to follow)
	4 To receive the minutes of the meeting of the Overview Board held on 2nd June 2009
	5 Minutes of the meeting of the Audit Board held on 8th June 2009
	6 Minutes of the meeting of the Joint Overview and Scrutiny Board held on 9th June 2009
	7 Minutes of the meeting of the Performance Management Board held on 15th June 2009
	9 Revised Joint Waste Management Strategy
	Joint Waste Strategy Appendix

	10 Travel Plan
	11 Improvement Plan Exception Report (April 2009)
	12 Improvement Plan 2009/2010
	New Improvement Plan Appendix


